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As at the date of this announcement, the Board comprised two executive Directors,
Mr. Huang Liang and Ms. Yip Hiu Ying and three independent non-executive Directors,
Mr. Tang Chin Ting, Mr. Lee Man Chun and Ms. Tong Yuk Ying Yannie.

This announcement, for which the Directors collectively and individually accept full responsibility,
includes particulars given in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief, the information contained in this
announcement is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive,
and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this
announcement misleading.

This announcement will remain on the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
at www.hkexnews.hk on the “Latest Listed Company Information” page for at least 7 days from
the date of its posting and on the website of the Company at www.hephaestus.com.hk.



CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a higher
investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this annual
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any
loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this annual report.

This annual report, for which the directors (the “Directors” and each the “Director”) of Hephaestus Holdings Limited
(the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility,
includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange
(the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having
made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief, the information contained in this
annual report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other
matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this annual report misleading.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of the
Company, | am pleased to present the annual report of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2023 (the “Year").

During the year, although Hong Kong SAR Government
has launched several relief measures to provide assistance
to members of the public and enterprise, under the
heavy influence of COVID-19 as well as the subsequent
economic downturn, the Group’s overall performance has
been affected.

We have now entered the post-pandemic era, where
opportunities and challenges coexist. The Group will
closely monitor potential impact of economic downturn on
the Group's businesses and will continue to develop and
strengthen its overall competitiveness and business growth
in the interior design industry in Hong Kong.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend our sincere
appreciation to the support and trust of our shareholders,
business partners and customers. | would also extend
my gratitude and appreciation to all the Directors,
management and staff for their hard work and dedication
throughout the year. | believe all members of the Group
will dedicate their best efforts to drive business growth
and to deliver enhanced returns to Shareholders.

Huang Liang
Chairman, Chief Executive Director and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 23 June 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE DM

The Board announces the annual results of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2023 together with the audited
corresponding comparative figures.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

Revenue decreased from approximately HK$51.7 million
for the year ended 31 March 2022 to approximately
HK$35.5 million for the year ended 31 March 2023,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$16.2 million
or 31.4%. The decrease was mainly attributable to the
decrease in revenue from residential and show flat and
sales office projects.

Cost of services

Cost of services for the years ended 31 March 2022 and
2023 amounted to approximately HK$24.1 million and
HK$21.3 million, respectively, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$2.8 million or 11.8%. The decrease
was mainly due to the decrease in direct staff costs and
subcontracting charges.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

For the year ended 31 March 2023, gross profit amounted
to approximately HK$14.2 million, which decreased
by approximately HK$13.4 million from approximately
HK$27.6 million for the year ended 31 March 2022. The
decrease in gross profit was mainly due to a combination
of factors, including (i) the decrease in revenue of
approximately HK$16.2 million; and (ii) a decrease in cost
of services of approximately HK$2.8 million. The overall
gross profit margin decreased from approximately 53.4%
in 2022 to approximately 40.1% in 2023 due to the
decrease of cost of services relatively lower than decrease
of revenue.
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Other income

Other income for the years ended 31 March 2022 and
2023 amounted to approximately HK$48,000 and
HK$1,363,000, respectively, representing a significant
increase of approximately HK$1.3 million. The increase
was mainly due to government grants for the Employment
Support Scheme (the “ESS”) of approximately HK$1.3
million received for the year ended 31 March 2023 but
no government grants received during the year ended 31
March 2022.

Other gains and losses, net

Other gains decreased from approximately HK$368,000
for the year ended 31 March 2022 to loss of approximately
HK$1,471,000 for the year ended 31 March 2023. Such
decrease was mainly attributable to the fair value loss
of approximately HK$489,000 on investment in debt
securities, increase of impairment losses of contract assets
and trade receivables of approximately HK$702,000 and
exchange loss of approximately HK$255,000 recognised
during the year ended 31 March 2023.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses decreased from approximately
HK$21.1 million for the year ended 31 March 2022 to
approximately HK$16.9 million for the year ended 31
March 2023, representing an decrease of approximately
HK$4.2 million or 20%. Such decrease was mainly
attributable to the non-recurring legal and professional
fees incurred for the mandatory unconditional cash offer
during the year ended 31 March 2022 and decrease of
auditor’s remuneration for the year ended 31 March 2023,
as compared with last year.

Finance costs

Finance costs, which comprised interests on bank loans
and lease liabilities, decreased by approximately HK$1.2
million or 98.2%, from approximately HK$1.2 million
for the year ended 31 March 2022 to approximately
HK$22,000 for the year ended 31 March 2023. Such
decrease was mainly due to decrease in interest on bank
loans of approximately HK$1.1 million in relation to the
full repayment of the outstanding amounts of secured
bank loans during the year ended 31 March 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE RO

Profit before tax

Profit before tax decreased from approximately HK$5.7
million for the year ended 31 March 2022 to loss before
tax of approximately HK$2.8 million for the year ended
31 March 2023, representing a significant decrease of
approximately HK$8.5 million. Such decrease was mainly
attributable to a combination of factors, including (i) the
decrease in revenue of approximately HK$16.2 million;
(i) the decrease in cost of services of approximately
HK$2.8 million; (iii) in turn decrease in gross profit of
approximately HK$13.4 million; and (iv) decrease in
administrative expenses of approximately HK$4.2 million.

Income tax

Income tax decreased by approximately HK$1.3 million
from approximately HK$1.6 million for the year ended 31
March 2022 to approximately HK$0.3 million for the year
ended 31 March 2023. Such decrease in income tax was
mainly due to decrease in revenue and gross profit for the
year ended 31 March 2023.

Profit/loss and total comprehensive income/
(expenses)

Profit and total comprehensive income decreased by
approximately HK$7.2 million, from approximately HK$4.2
million for the year ended 31 March 2022 to loss and
total comprehensive expenses of approximately HK$3.1
million for the year ended 31 March 2023. Such decrease
was mainly attributable to the combined effect of the
aforementioned items.

Charge over assets of the Group

As at 31 March 2023, the Group did not have any charges
on its assets (As at 31 March 2022: Nil).
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2023, the lease liabilities of the Group
was approximately HK$0.6 million (31 March 2022:
approximately HK$1.0 million). As at 31 March 2023,
the Group had total assets of approximately HK$56.4
million (31 March 2022: approximately HK$59.1 million),
including cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$5.1 million (31 March 2022: approximately HK$22.6
million).

CURRENT RATIO AND GEARING RATIO

As at 31 March 2023, the Group has a current ratio
of approximately 3.8 times (as at 31 March 2022:
approximately 5.4 times). Gearing ratio was not applicable
as the Group was in net cash position as at 31 March
2023 and 2022.

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2023, the Group did not have any material
capital commitment (as at 31 March 2022: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities (as at 31 March 2022: Nil).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2023, the capital structure of the
Company comprised issued share capital and reserves.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE RO

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

Acquisition of the 50% of the issued shares of
Joy Chance Investment Limited (the “Target
Company”)

On 4 November 2022, BTR (HK) Limited, which is an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with the vendor and
the Target Company. Pursuant to the sale and purchase
agreement, BTR (HK) Limited has agreed to acquire, and
the vendor has agreed to sell the shares, representing
50% of the issued share capital of the Target Company, at
a consideration of HK$11,200,000. The Target Company
held the property which comprises a piece of agricultural
land situated at the northern side of Lam Kam Road in
the district of Yuen Long of the New Territories which is
currently vacant. The site area of the property is about
13,939 sq.ft. For details of this acquisition, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 4 November
2022.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and
affiliated companies during the year.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign exchange
risk of US$, RMB, Japanese yen and New Taiwan dollars.
Under the pegged exchange rate system, the financial
impact on exchange difference between HK$ and US$ will
be immaterial as all US$ denominated monetary assets
and liabilities are held by group entities having HK$ as
their functional currency. For RMB, Japanese yen and New
Taiwan dollars, as the amount involved is insignificant, the
foreign currency risk arising from RMB, Japanese yen and
New Taiwan dollars is immaterial.
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CREDIT RISK

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its
investment in debt securities, trade and other receivables,
contract assets and bank balances. The management
manages this exposure of credit risk from investment in
debt securities by maintaining a portfolio of investments
with different risk and return profiles. In respect of
trade receivables and contract assets, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers, which
focus on the customer’s reputation and past history of
making payments. In addition, management reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt
and contract asset regularly to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are recognised for irrecoverable debts.
For other receivables, management makes periodic
individual and collective assessments on the recoverability
of other receivables based on historical settlement records
and past experience. In this regard, the Group's credit risk
is significantly reduced.

LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements
in the short and longer term.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had 52 employees (as at
31 March 2022: 59 employees). Total staff costs including
directors’ emolument for the year ended 31 March 2023
amounted to approximately HK$23.8 million (for the year
ended 31 March 2022: approximately HK$26.3 million).
Their remuneration, promotion and salary review are
assessed based on each employee’s qualifications, relevant
experience, position and seniority. The employees in Hong
Kong joined the mandatory provident fund scheme.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE RO

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

On 3 September 2019, BTR (HK) Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability and
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
("BTR") entered into the Life Insurance Policy with FWD
Life Insurance Company (Bermuda) Limited ("FWD") to
insure Mr. Norman Chan, who resigned as the chairman,
the chief executive officer, an executive Director, the
compliance officer and an authorised representative
of the Company under Rule 5.24 of the GEM Listing
Rules of the Stock Exchange on 4 March 2022. Under
the Life Insurance Policy, BTR is the policy holder and
beneficiary. BTR paid a single premium of US$1,025,000
for the Life Insurance Policy (equivalent to approximately
HK$8,042,000) as the inception of the Life Insurance
Policy. BTR may request a surrender of the Life Insurance
Policy at any time and receive cash based on the Surrender
Value (“Withdrawal”).

The amount of the Surrender Charge decreases over time
and is no longer required from the 10th year of contract
conclusion onwards. BTR is entitled to interest at a rate
of 5% per annum applied on the balance of the cash
value for two years from the date of the payment of the
premium. Commencing from the third year, the interest
rate is 1.25% per annum plus a premium determined by
FWD on an annual basis.

The investment in the Life Insurance Policy had been
accounted for as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss in the Company’s audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(amounted to approximately HK$8.2 million) and the
accumulated interests earned were reflected in the
changes in fair value of the Life Insurance Policy.

On 8 June 2022, the Board has approved and submitted
the relevant form to FWD for the Withdrawal by BTR, an
indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company as the
policy holder and beneficiary, of the Life Insurance Policy
at the Surrender Value (after deduction of Surrender
Charge by FWD). Withdrawal has taken effect on 22 June
2022.
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Details of the Withdrawal was set out in the
announcement of the Company on 8 June 2022 and 27
June 2022.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not make any
other significant investments, acquisitions or disposal
during the year ended 31 March 2023 which would
constitute a discloseable transaction under GEM Listing
Rules.

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group does not have any concrete plan for material
investments or capital assets for the coming year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities subsequent to the year ended
31 March 2023 and up to the date of this report.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023 (31 March
2022: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

The Group is principally engaged in provision of interior
design and execution services to premises including private
residences, corporate offices, service apartments, hotels,
residential clubhouses, show flats and sales galleries.

The Group’s goals are to achieve sustainable growth and
further strengthen its overall competitiveness and business
growth in the interior design industry in Hong Kong. The
Directors are of the view that the Group’s capability to
understand customers’ requirements and transform far-
fetched concepts into visionary solutions that embrace
functionality and aesthetics has gained trust and
appreciation from customers and enabled the Group to be
one of the reputable players in the interior design industry
in Hong Kong.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE RO

The Group will remain cautiously attentive over the
market conditions given the unpredictable macroeconomic
environment across the globe. Despite weakening market
sentiment, the Company is of the view that the Hong
Kong residential market is likely to be supported by
relatively low mortgage rates and continuous demand.

The Group will continue to capitalise on opportunities
by leveraging the Group’s competitive strengths and
implementing the following strategies: (i) maintain and
strengthen market position in Hong Kong; (ii) enhance
brand recognition and strengthen marketing efforts;
and (iii) continue to recruit talents and enhance internal
training to support future growth.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Stock Exchange issued the Corporate Governance
Code (the "CG Code”) contained in Appendix 15 to
the GEM Listing Rules which sets out the principles and
the code provisions which listed issuers are expected to
apply and comply. The Company’s corporate governance
practices are based on the principles and code provisions
as set out in the CG Code.

The Company considers the maintenance of a high
standard of corporate governance important to the
continuous growth of the Group. The Board sets
appropriate policies and implements corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of
the Group’s business based on the principles and code
provisions as set out in the CG Code. In the opinion of
the Board, other than the deviation from code provision
C.2.1 (as disclosed in the paragraph headed “CHAIRMAN
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE"” below), D.2.5 and C.1.8, the
Company has complied with the code provisions of the
CG Code as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing
Rules throughout the year ended 31 March 2023.

Under Code Provision D.2.5 and C.1.8 of the CG Code,
the Group should have an internal audit function. The
Group conducted an annual review on the need for setting
up an internal audit department. Given the Group's simple
operating structure, instead of setting up an internal audit
department, the annual review on the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group has been
conducted by a professional third party and reported to
the members of the Audit Committee. The review covered
material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions of the
Group. The Board is of the view that appropriate measures
have been put in place to manage the risks and no major
issue was raised for improvement during the review.
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Under the code provision C.1.8 of the Code, provides that
an issuer should arrange appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against its directors. After 8 January
2022, the Company did not arrange any new insurance
cover in respect of potential legal actions against its
Directors and officers. The management of the Group
believes that all potential claims and legal actions against
the Directors can be handled effectively, and the possibility
of actual litigation against the Directors is very low. On
9 June 2022, the Company has arranged appropriate
insurance cover in respect of legal action against its
Directors and officers with retroactive date starting from
29 November 2021.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of
the Company are summarised as follows:

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the code of conduct for
securities transactions by Directors set out in Rules 5.48
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors.
The Company periodically issues notices to its Directors
4 times a year reminding them of the general prohibition
on dealing in the Company’s listed securities during the
blackout periods before the publication of announcements
of quarterly, interim and annual results.

The Company confirms that, having made specific enquiry
of all Directors, all Directors have complied with the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31 March
2023.

The Company has adopted the same code of conduct for
securities transactions by relevant employees to regulate
certain employees of the Group who are deemed to be
in possession of unpublished inside information of the
Company when dealing in the securities of the Company.
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CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY
Corporate Culture

The Board and the management of the Group set the tone
and shape the corporate culture, which is underpinned
by the core values of acting lawfully, ethically and
responsibly across all levels of the Group. The Board
leads the management in defining the purpose, values
and strategic direction of the Group and in fostering a
corporate culture that is building a long-term sustainable
business models where customers, partners, investors,
suppliers and employees can benefit in the shared value
of corporate success. The desired culture is developed and
reflected consistently in the Group’s business operations,
workplace policies and practices as well as relationships
with the Shareholders and other stakeholders. The Board,
together with the management of the Group, create an
organizational culture of maintaining and developing an
effective corporate governance framework with stringent
corporate governance practices and procedures through
workforce engagement, employee retention and training,
robust financial reporting, whistleblowing, data privacy
and anti-corruption policies, and legal and regulatory
compliance. Taking into account the corporate culture in
a range of contexts, the Board considers that the Group’s
culture, purpose, values and strategy are aligned.

Corporate Strategy

In order to achieve the Group’s principal objective
of enhancing long-term values and interests to the
Shareholders and other stakeholders, the Group
focuses on achieving sustainable growth in both
financial and environmental, social and governance
("ESG") performance. The Group executes disciplined
management of revenue and profitability, margin and
costs, capital and investment return and other financing
activities. The Group executes disciplined management
of revenue and profitability, margin and costs, capital
and investment return and other financing activities. The
"CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT” and the "MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” in this annual report include
discussions and analyses of the Group’s performance, the
basis on which the Board directs to generate the Group’s
core values in the longer term and delivers the Group’s
corporate culture, strategy and objectives. The Group is
increasingly conscious on ESG and focusing on supporting
the global low-carbon and sustainable future transition.
Further details on the Group’s ESG initiatives and
relationships with its key stakeholders are disclosed in the
"ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT"
of this annual report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and oversees the Group's business, strategic
decisions and performances and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing
and supervising its affairs. In practice, the Board takes
responsibilities for decisions making in all major matters
of the Company include approving and monitoring of all
policy matters, the setting of objectives, annual budgets
and overall strategies, material transactions, appointment
of directors and other significant financial and operational
matters. The day-to-day management, administration
and operation of the Company are delegated to the
senior management. These responsibilities include the
implementation of decisions of the Board, the coordination
and direction of day-to-day operation and management
of the Company in accordance with the management
strategies and plans approved by the Board. Approval has
to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by these senior management
and the Board has the full support of them to discharge its
responsibilities. In addition, the Board has also delegated
various responsibilities to the Board committees. Further
details of these committees are set out in this corporate
governance report.

The Board is also responsible for, among others,
performing the corporate governance duties as set out in
the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, which include:

- to develop and review the Group's policies and
practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations;

- to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

- review and monitor the Group’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

- to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct

and compliance manual (if any) applicable to the
Directors and employees; and
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- to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the corporate governance report.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance
coverage for all the Directors, including company
securities, employment practices, regulatory crisis event,
investigation, litigation, tax liabilities and public relation,
etc., which is to be reviewed by the Board on a regular
basis.

Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
five Directors and their respective details are set out as
follows:
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Name Position Age Gender Ethnicity services
HE B Fie MH BRE BR % F 5
Executive Directors  Mr. Huang Liang Chairman & Chief 44 Male Chinese 1 year
executive officer
HITEE Bkt TREFRITHAAE ES H 14
Ms. Yip Hiu Ying 39 Female Chinese 1 year
-1 LGam z H 14F
Independent Mr. Tang Chin Ting ~ Chairman of Audit 32 Male Chinese 1 year
non-executive Committee
Directors
B IFITES BRERE EREREGLIR e A 14
Mr. Lee Man Chun Chairman of Nomination 33  Male Chinese 1 year
Committee
PR E REZEGIRE ES H 14
Ms. Tong Yuk Ying Chairman of Remuneration 33  Female Chinese 1 year
Yannie Committee
RS FEEEEE z A Y 14
Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Board FBZARERAWEEIN  SEGKE &EtZF’EJTEEﬁEM‘“
members have financial, business, family or other material/ 27§  Kiksi £ E A HHEBZ

relevant relationship with each other.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Biographies of Directors and senior

management” on pages 91 to 93 of this annual report.
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Board Diversity Guideline

The Company has a board diversity guideline (the “Board
Diversity Guideline”) setting out the approach to
achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to
enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Guideline, the Company
seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration
of a number of factors, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service.

All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. The ultimate decision
will be made upon the merits and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity
Guideline from time to time to ensure its continued
effectiveness.

The Group also continues to adopt employee diversity
measures to promote the diversity at all levels of its
workforce. As of the date of this report, approximately
60% of Directors and 46% of total workforce of the
Company were male. The Company will continue to take
steps to promote diversity, including gender diversity, at
workforce levels.
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APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND
REMOVAL

The Board has established the Nomination Committee
on 30 March 2012 with details set out in the paragraph
headed “Nomination Committee” on page 30 of this
annual report.

According to the Article 83(3), the Board shall have the
power from time to time and at any time to appoint any
person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on
the Board or as an addition to the existing Board. Any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy
shall hold office until the first general meeting after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting
and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition
to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election.

According to the Article 84(1), at each annual general
meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being (or,
if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at annual general meeting at least
once every three years. The Company believes that such
practice meets the same objective and no less exacting
than those prescribed under code provision B.2.2 of the
CG Code.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election
and removal of Directors are laid down in the
memorandum and articles of association of the Company.
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BOARD MEETINGS

The Board regularly meets in person or through other
electronic means of communication at least four times
every year to determine overall strategic direction and
objectives and approve quarterly, interim and annual
results, and other significant matters. All Directors are
given an opportunity to attend and include matters in
the agenda for discussion. During the year under review,
at least 14 days’' notice were given to all Directors for a
regular board meeting in order to comply with the relevant
code provision of the CG Code. The Board and Board
committees members are supplied with comprehensive
meeting papers and relevant materials within a reasonable
period of time in advance of the intended meeting date
(in any event no less than 3 days before the date of the
meeting). All Directors and the Board committees members
are given opportunities to include matters in the agenda
for regular Board and Board committees meetings and/
or their meetings, if required. To facilitate the decision-
making process, the Directors and the Board committees
members are free to have access to the management
for enquiries and to obtain further information, when
required.

Apart from regular meetings, our senior management
from time to time provides Directors with information on
activities and development of the businesses of the Group.
The company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) takes detailed minutes of the meetings and
keeps records of matters discussed and decisions resolved
at the meetings. Individual attendance records of each
Director at the respective Board and committee meetings
are set out in the following section.
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LEEAWE

DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORD AT EENEEB2HERLE

MEETINGS
Details of the attendance of the Directors at the meetings EE R

of the Board and its respective committees during the year =8B ZEE

ended 31 March 2023 are as follows:

BE_Z-_=F=A=+—RHILFEREFSER

il

EEH MEREDT -

Annual
Board Audit Remuneration  Nomination General
Name of Director Meeting ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting
BEE
Expg EZgeE BNZEEE FMEEE REZEE FXE
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Huang Liang Etnpia 5/6 - - - 17
Ms. Lou Yi BRIt -T-=F 6/6 - - - Il
(resigned on 24 May 2023) AAZTMAET)
Ms. Yip Hiu Ying Epaut(R-5==F - - - - -
(appointed on 28 February 2023) “AZtN\BEZA)
Independent non-executive Directors BIFHTEE
Mr. Luk Chi Shing BEEREE MR _B-=F 5/6 6/6 171 17 1
(resigned on 24 February 2023) “R-tmBET)
Mr. Tang Chin Ting PRELEMW-E==F - - - - -
(appointed on 24 February 2023) “AZTNBEEZRT)
Mr. Lee Man Chun FXfERE 5/6 6/6 /1 /1 1l
Mr. Zheng Yugiang HEREEM-Z-=F 5/6 6/6 171 17 7
(resigned on 3 March 2023) =A=R§H)
Ms. Tong Yuk Ying Yannie mEEAT(R-B-=F - - - - -
(appointed on 3 March 2023) ZAZREZMD)

Apart from the said meetings, matters requiring Board B _Eiit
approval were arranged by means of circulation of written ~ E& X
resolutions of all Board members.

R FEEFSNECFTECEBEHEEE
BEBRRERZ AL

In addition to regular Board meetings, under Code MEHEZT@HIN  BIELEESATASFAEXSE
Provision C.2.7 of the CG Code, the chairman should at C.2.71§  FEES/VSFEHME S M E T EE I

least annually hold meetings with the independent non- #1175

FETEZ(EERBUFHTESER]) - F

executive Directors without the presence of other Directors N » 8177 — X EFMBYIFRITERSH °

(the “Chairman and Independent non-executive
Directors Meeting”). During the year, one Chairman and
Independent non-executive Directors Meeting was held.
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All business transacted at the Board meetings and by
written resolutions were well documented. Minutes of the
Board meetings and written resolutions are kept by the
Company and are available to all Directors.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

All Directors have participated in continuous professional
development for the year ended 31 March 2023 by
attending training courses on the topics related to
corporate governance and regulations to comply with
the relevant code provision. All Directors are continually
updated with legal and regulatory developments, and the
business and market changes to facilitate the discharge of
their responsibilities.

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on the first occasion of his
appointment, so as to ensure that he has appropriate
understanding of the Group structure, Board and Board
Committees meetings procedures, business, management
and operations of the Company, etc. and that he is fully
aware of his responsibilities and obligations under the
GEM Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements
in the Cayman Islands and Hong Kong. During the
year under review, all the Directors participated in the
induction program regarding directors’ responsibilities and
obligations under the GEM Listing Rules through online
trainings provided by the Stock Exchange, which covered,
among other topics, the CG Code, GEM Listing Rules and
directors’ continuing obligations.

All Directors have provided that Company with their

respective training records in compliance with code
provision C.1.4 of the CG Code.
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According to the records maintained by the Company, the
Directors received the following training regarding roles,
function and duties of a director of a listed company or
professional skills in compliance with the new requirement
of the CG Code on continuous professional development
during the year ended 31 March 2023 up to the date of
this annual report:

Name of Directors

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
RS

EER

REARRFEZRLE EFRNBE_T_=F=-A=
T—HALFEEEAFHRABEFSTIEBLTARE
EZAE BEMBERETEEE RTAARSEESR
XBRINMTEZBERREZEI

Attending training
courses/seminars/
reading materials

HEEIIRE,

E=ng HEE B EM R

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Huang Liang Eap e v

Ms. Lou Yi (resigned on 24 May 2023) ERTT(MN_E_=FHRA=+MNHBT) v

Ms. Yip Hiu Ying EELt+(W-_E-_=%F"A-+/\RH v
(appointed on 28 February 2023) BZEE)

Independent non-executive Directors BYFHTES

Mr. Luk Chi Shing EEXEER_E_=F_A=+MNAH v
(resigned on 24 February 2023) BHT)

Mr. Tang Chin Ting BEEAEWR-_Z_=F_A=+WMH v
(appointed on 24 February 2023) BE1T)

Mr. Lee Man Chun EXEEAE v

Mr. Zheng Yugiang BEREEMNZTE_=F= F=HHMT) v
(resigned on 3 March 2023)

Ms. Tong Yuk Ying Yannie BEETT(RZE_=F=A=HEZT) v

(appointed on 3 March 2023)
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Besides, the Company keeps circulating information and
materials to develop and refresh Directors’ knowledge
and skills from time to time. All the information and
materials are relevant to the Group’s business, the
economy, corporate governance, rules and regulations,
accounting, financial or professional skills and/or directors’
duties and responsibilities. There are also arrangements in
place for providing continuing briefing and professional
development to each Director. All Directors are
encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company'’s expense. The Company Secretary is responsible
to keep records of training taken by each Director.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Pursuant to code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer should
be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. Mr. Huang Liang is acting as the chairman and
chief executive officer. The Board believes that vesting the
roles of both chairman and chief executive officer in the
same person has the benefit of ensuring the consistent
leadership within the Group and enables more effective
and efficient overall strategic planning of the Group. The
Board considers that the balance of power and authority
for the present arrangement will not be impaired and this
structure will enable the Company to make and implement
decisions promptly and effectively. The Board considers
the deviation from code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code
to be appropriate in such circumstance.

The Board will continue to review and consider splitting
the roles of chairman of the Board and chief executive
officer of the Company at a time when it is appropriate
and suitable by taking into account the circumstances of
the Group as a whole.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 5.05 of the GEM listing Rules, the
Company must have three independent non-executive
Directors (the “INED(s)"); one of them must have
appropriate professional qualification or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Board has established mechanisms to ensure
independent views are available to the Board. The
summary of the mechanisms is set out below:

(i) Composition

The Board ensures the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors and at least
one-third of its members being Independent Non-
executive Directors (or such higher threshold as
may be required by the Listing Rules from time to
time), with at least one independent non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. Further, Independent non-
executive Directors will be appointed to Board
committees as required under the Listing Rules and
as far as practicable to ensure independent views are
available.

(ii) Independence Assessment

The Nomination Committee strictly adheres to the
nomination policy with regard to the nomination
and appointment of independent non-executive
Directors, and is mandated to assess annually
the independence of independent non-executive
Directors to ensure that they can continually exercise
independent judgement.

(iii) Compensation
No equity-based remuneration with performance-
related elements will be granted to independent
non-executive Directors as this may lead to bias
in their decision-making and compromise their
objectivity and independence.
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(iv) Board Decision Making

Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) are entitled to seek further information
from the management on the matters to be
discussed at Board meetings and, where necessary,
independent advice from external professional
advisers at the Company's expense.

A Director (including independent non-executive
Directors) who has a material interest in a contract,
transaction or arrangement shall not vote or be
counted in the quorum on any Board resolution
approving the same.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of independent non-executive
Directors as mentioned in item (i) above.

The Company has received annual written confirmations
from Mr. Tang Chin Ting, Mr. Lee Man Chun and
Ms. Tong Yuk Ying Yannie, all being the INEDs as
at the date of this annual report, in respect of their
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The Company considers all the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

As Mr. Tang Chin Ting has appropriate professional
gualification or accounting or related financial
management expertise, the Company has also complied
with the requirement under Rule 5.05(2) of the GEM
Listing Rules.

BOARD COMMITTEE

The Board has established three Board Committees,
namely, the audit committee (“Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (“Remuneration Committee”)
and the nomination committee (“"Nomination
Committee”), for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs. All Board Committees have been
established with defined written terms of reference,
which are posted on the Stock Exchange’s website
at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s website at
www.hephaestus.com.hk. All the Board Committees
should report to the Board on their decisions or
recommendations made.
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The practices, procedures and arrangements in conducting
meetings of Board Committees follow in line with, so far
as practicable, those of the Board meetings set out above.

All Board Committees are provided with sufficient
resources to perform their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstance, at the Company’s expense.

Remuneration Committee

The members of the Remuneration Committee comprises
three INEDs. The members of the Remuneration
Committee as at the date of this report are as follows:

Ms. Tong Yuk Ying Yannie

(appointed as the Chairman on 3 March 2023)
Mr. Zheng Yugiang

(resigned as the Chairman on 3 March 2023)
Mr. Luk Chi Shing (resigned on 24 February 2023)
Mr. Tang Chin Ting (appointed on 24 February 2023)
Mr. Lee Man Chun

The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee
are set out in the written terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee which include the determination
of the specific remuneration packages of all executive
Directors and senior management, including benefits
in kind, pension rights and compensation payments,
including any compensation payable for loss or termination
of their office or appointment, making recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration of the non-executive
Directors and to review and approve performance-
based remuneration. The terms of reference can be
obtained from the website of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. The Remuneration Committee has adopted the
operation model where it performs an advisory role to
the Board, with the Board retaining the final authority to
approve the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management.
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Pursuant to the code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration of the members of the Board by band for
the year ended 31 March 2023 is set out below:

RIS E AT RIST BIME S EHE 1504
EE - =FZA=Z+—HILFEZH
T

}
ps S
i
B
o %
o B

Number of
In the band of Individuals
EE AE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 & 221,000,000/ 7T 8

HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000
Over HK$4,000,000

Details of the remuneration of each Director and the five
individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2023 are set out in notes 12 and
13 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively,
contained in this annual report.

The Remuneration Committee meetings records during the
year ended 31 March 2023, and the individual attendance
records of each Remuneration Committee at the meeting
of the Remuneration Committee is set out on page 23 of
this annual report.

Nomination Committee

The members of the Nomination Committee comprises
three INEDs. The members of the Nomination Committee
as at the date of this report are as follows:

Mr. Lee Man Chun

Mr. Luk Chi Shing (resigned on 24 February 2023)

Mr. Tang Chin Ting (appointed on 24 February 2023)
Mr. Zheng Yugiang (resigned on 3 March 2023)

Ms. Tong Yuk Ying Yannie (appointed on 3 March 2023)
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The roles and function of the Nomination Committee are
set out in the written terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee which include the review of the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board, making recommendations
on any proposed changes and on the appointment and
reappointment of and succession planning for Directors
and to assess the independence of INEDs. The terms
of reference can be obtained from the website of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

In respect of the appointment and reappointment
of Directors, the Nomination Committee adopted a
nomination policy concerning the selection criteria and
procedures. The factors that would be used as reference
by the Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability
of a proposed candidate are reputation for integrity,
qualifications, skills and experience that are relevant to
the Group’s businesses having regard to the corporate
strategy and commitment in respect of available time and
relevant interest. In the case of nominating the candidate
for appointment/re-appointment as an INED, in addition to
the selection criteria to which the Nomination Committee
would give due regard, the independence of the candidate
would be assessed with reference to the independence
criteria set out in the GEM Listing Rules. If an INED serves
more than nine consecutive years, particular attention
would be given to reviewing the independence of such
INED for determining his eligibility for nomination by the
Board to stand for re-election at a general meeting.

The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Guideline
which sets out the approach to achieve and maintain an
appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the Board
that are relevant to the Company’s business growth.
Pursuant to the Board Diversity Guideline, selection of
Board candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge, and industry experience.
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.
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The Directors have a balanced mix of experiences and
industry background including property development and
investment, legal, corporate management, accounting
and financial industries. The Directors also have a diverse
education background including accountancy, business
management and economics. The INEDs include certified
accountant. The three INEDs who have different industry
backgrounds and professional qualifications, represent
more than one third of the Board members. The Board
includes two female Directors and three male Directors.
Taking into account the Company’s business model and
specific needs as well as the different backgrounds and
abilities of the Directors, the composition of the Board
satisfies the Board Diversity Guideline. Nevertheless,
the Company will continue to apply the principle of
appointments based on merits with reference to the Board
Diversity Guideline as a whole.

The Nomination Committee meetings records during the
year ended 31 March 2023, and the individual attendance
records of the each Nomination Committee at the meeting
of the Nomination Committee is set out on page 23 of this
annual report.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three INEDs. The
members of the Audit Committee as at the date of this
report are as follows:

Mr. Tang Chin Ting
(appointed as the Chairman on 24 February 2023)
Mr. Lee Man Chun
Ms. Tong Yuk Ying Yannie (appointed on 3 March 2023)
Mr. Luk Chi Shing
(resigned as the Chairman on 24 February 2023)
Mr. Zheng Yugiang (resigned on 3 March 2023)

Mr. Tang Chin Ting current serves as the chairman of the
Audit Committee, who holds the appropriate professional
qualification as required under Rules 5.05(2) and 5.28 of
the GEM Listing Rules.
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The role and functions of the Audit Committee are set out
in the written terms of reference of the Audit Committee
which includes overseeing the relationship with auditor,
reviewing and supervising the financial reporting system
and internal control procedures of the Group and
reviewing and approving the Company’s annual reports
and accounts, interim report and quarterly reports to the
Board. The terms of reference can be obtained from the
website of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee meetings records during the year
ended 31 March 2023 and the individual attendance
records of the each Audit Committee at the meeting of
the Audit Committee is set out on page 23 of this annual
report.

The Audit Committee performed the following work
during the year ended 31 March 2023:

a) reviewed the Group’s annual audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 and
reviewed the unaudited first quarterly financial
statements for the three months ended 30 June
2022, unaudited interim financial statements for
the six months ended 30 September 2022 and the
unaudited third quarterly financial statements for
the nine months ended 31 December 2022 including
the accounting principles and accounting standards
adopted with recommendations made to the Board
for approval;

b)  reviewed the changes in accounting standards and
assessed their potential impacts on the Group’s
financial statements;

)  reviewed the Group’s internal control system and
related matters;

d)  considered and made recommendations on the re-
appointment of the independent auditor of the
Group, and the terms of engagement; and

e) considered and made recommendations on the
change of the independent auditor of the Group,
and the terms of engagement.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated
financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March
2023 and provided advices and comments thereon.
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The minutes of meetings have been kept by the secretary
of meetings (who should normally be the Company
Secretary). The draft and final versions of minutes have
been sent to all committee members for their comment
and records within a reasonable time after each meeting.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of Directors and the senior management,
the Company'’s policies and practices compliance with the
legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
code of conduct for securities transactions by Directors
set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as
its own code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by Directors, and the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in this corporate governance report.

ATTENDANCE OF GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to code provision F.2.2 of the CG Code, the
chairman of the Board should attend the annual general
meeting of the Company and he should invite the
chairmen of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and any other
committees (as appropriate) to attend. Pursuant to code
provision C.1.6 of the CG Code, INEDs and other non-
executive Directors should attend the general meetings of
the Company. During the year ended 31 March 2023, the
annual general meeting of the Company was held on 30
September 2022 (the “2022 AGM") and the Company's
then executive Directors, Mr. Huang Liang and Ms. Lou
Yi, then independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Luk
Chi Shing, Mr. Lee Man Chun and Mr. Cheng Yugiang
attended the AGM, either in person or by means of
electronic facilities.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the remuneration in respect
of audit services and non-audit services provided by the
Company’s external auditor, LIF & Wong CPA Limited, is
set out below:

Services rendered
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Audit services BT IR 850
Non-audit services IEEET AR 10

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR'S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare
the Company’s financial statements for each financial
period and to ensure that the financial statements are in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The Board also ensures the timely
publication of the financial statements. The Directors,
having made appropriate enquiries, confirm that they are
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

As at 31 March 2023, the Board was not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that might cast significant doubt upon the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the Directors
continue to adopt the going concern approach in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.

The responsibilities of the Group’s external auditor, LIF
& Wong CPA Limited, on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements are set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 115 to 124 of this Annual
Report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board is overall responsible for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks that
it is willing to take in achieving the Group's strategic
objectives, and ensuring that the Group established and
maintained appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee reviews the risk management and
internal controls that are significant to the Group on an
on-going basis. The Audit Committee would consider
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
and training of staff and external advisor of the Group's
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting function.

The management of the Group is responsible for
designing, maintaining, implementing and monitoring
of the risk management and internal control system to
ensure adequate control in place to safeguard the Group’s
assets and stakeholders’ interest.

The Group has established risk management procedures
to address and handle significant risks associated with the
business of the Group. The Board would perform annual
review on significant change of the business environment
and establish procedures to response to the risks resulted
from significant changes of business environment. The risk
management and internal control systems are designed to
mitigate the potential losses of the business.
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The management would identify the risks associated with
the business of the Group by considering both internal
and external factors and events which include political,
economic, technological, environmental, social and staff.
Each of the risks has been assessed and prioritised based
on their relevant impacts and occurrence opportunities.
The relevant risk management strategy would be applied
to each type of risks according to the assessment results.
Type of risk management strategy has been listed as
follows:

- Risk retention and reduction: accept the impact of
risk or undertake actions by the Group to reduce the
impact of the risks;

- Risk avoidance: change business process or objective
so as to avoid the risk;

- Risk sharing and diversification: diversify the effect
of the risk or allocate to different location or product
or market; and

- Risk transfer: transfer ownership and liability to a
third party.

The internal control systems are designed and implemented
to reduce the risks associated with the business accepted
by the Group and minimise the adverse impact resulted
from the risks. The risk management and internal control
system are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.
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During the year under review, the Group has yet to
establish its internal audit function during the year ended
31 March 2023 as required under code provision D.2.5 of
the CG Code, the Board has appointed an independent
adviser to conduct a special review of the effectiveness of
the system of internal control of the Group. The review
has covered all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions and some recommendations were provided
in the internal control review report. The Group has
focused on improving internal control and has gradually
reorganised the existing daily operations.

There is currently no internal audit function within the
Group. The Directors have reviewed the need for an
internal audit function and are of the view that in light
of the size, nature and complexity of the business of
the Group, it would be more cost effective to appoint
external independent professionals to perform internal
audit function for the Group in order to meet its needs.
Nevertheless, the Directors will continue to review at least
annually the need for an internal audit function.

The Board considered that, for the year ended 31 March
2023, the risk management and internal control system
and procedures of the Group, covering all material
controls including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions were reasonably
effective and adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible for advising the
Board through the chairman of the Board on governance
matters and also facilitates induction and professional
development of the Directors. The Company Secretary
reports to the chairman of the Board. All Directors have
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary
to ensure that the Board procedures, all applicable law,
rules and regulations are followed.
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Ms. Chan Yuen Mui is engaged and appointed by the
Company from an external secretarial service provider as its
company secretary. The primary corporate contact person
of the Company is Mr. Huang Liang, the Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer and Executive Director. According to Rule
5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules, Ms. Chan has confirmed
that she has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training to update her skills and knowledge
during the year under review. She will continue to comply
with the GEM Listing Rules and take no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training in each financial year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an
opportunity for communication between the shareholders
and the Board. An annual general meeting of the
Company shall be held in each year and at the place
as may be determined by the Board. Annual report,
interim report and quarterly reports offer comprehensive
information to the shareholders of the Company on
operational and financial performance whereas annual
general meetings provide a forum for the shareholders of
the Company to exchange views directly with the Board.
All the Directors attended the 2022 AGM to answer
questions raised at the meeting. Each general meeting,
other than an annual general meeting, shall be called an
extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM").

Right to convene EGM

According to the Articles, any one or more shareholders
of the Company holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meeting of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary, to require a EGM to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition.
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The request will be verified with the Company’s share
registrar in Hong Kong and upon its confirmation that the
request is proper and in order, the Company Secretary
will ask the Board to convene a EGM by serving sufficient
notice in accordance with the statutory requirements to
all the registered members. On the contrary, if the request
has been verified is not in order, the shareholders will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, a EGM will not
be convened as requested. If within twenty-one (21) days
from the date of the deposit of the proper and orderly
requisition the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s), may convene a meeting in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed by the Company to the
requisitionist(s).

The notice period to be given to all the registered
members for consideration of the proposal raised by the
requisitionist(s) concerned at the EGM varies according to
the nature of the proposal, as follows:

- At least 14 clear days’ notice in writing (and not less
than 10 business days) if the proposal constitutes an
ordinary resolution of the Company in EGM,;

- At least 21 clear days’ notice in writing (and not less
than 10 business days) if the proposal constitutes a
special resolution of the Company in EGM.

Right to put forward enquiries to the Board
Shareholders of the Company may at any time send their
enquiries and concerns to the Board in writing to the
Company Secretary at the Company’s head office in Hong
Kong at Room 1602, 16/F, Park Commercial Centre, 180
Tung Lo Wan Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

Right to put forward proposals at general
meetings

Shareholders of the Company should follow the
procedures set out in the sub-section headed “Right to
convene EGM" above for putting forward proposals at
general meetings.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication
with shareholders of the Company is essential for
enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Company endeavours to maintain an ongoing
dialogue with the shareholders of the Company and
in particular, through annual general meetings and
other general meetings. The website of the Company is
http://www.hephaestus.com.hk.

The Company has adopted a shareholders’ communication
policy with the objective of ensuring that the Shareholders
will have equal and timely access to information about
the Company in order to enable the shareholders to
exercise their rights in an informed manner and allow
them to engage actively with the Company. Information
will be communicated to the shareholders through the
Company’s website, corporate email, financial reports,
AGMs and other extraordinary general meetings that
may be convened as well as all the published disclosures
submitted to the Stock Exchange.

The Company has reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of the shareholder communication policy
during the year and conclude that it is effective because
some minority shareholders have personally approached
the company and ask for relevant news.
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INSIDE INFORMATION

The Board has approved and adopted the Inside
Information Policy for the Company for monitoring
inside information to ensure compliance with the GEM
Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
The procedures and internal controls for handling and
dissemination of inside information as set out in the Inside
Information Policy are summarised below:

Handling of Inside Information

1.

Inside information shall be announced as soon as
reasonably practicable after it becomes known to
the Board and/or is the subject of a decision by the
Board in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules.
In cases where a decision by the Board is pending
or in cases of incomplete negotiations, the Group
shall implement the procedures set out in the Inside
Information Policy to maintain the confidentiality of
information. Until an announcement is made, the
Directors should ensure that such information is
kept strictly confidential. If the confidentiality cannot
be maintained, an announcement shall be made as
soon as practicable.

Each department shall keep inside information on
transactions confidential. If there is a leakage of
inside information, they shall inform the Directors
and the Company Secretary immediately, so that
remedial actions, including making an inside
information announcement, can be taken at the
earliest opportunity.

The Group's Finance Department shall keep track of
the Group’s threshold levels for disclosure pursuant
to the size tests under the GEM Listing Rules, so
that an announcement can be made as soon as
practicable should a notifiable transaction arises.
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Dissemination of Inside Information

Inside information is announced promptly through the
websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and
the Company (www.hephaestus.com.hk). The electronic
publication system of the GEM is the first channel of
dissemination of the Group’s information before any other
channel.

With respect to the procedures and internal controls
for the handling and dissemination of price sensitive
information, the Company is aware of its obligations
under Part XIVA of the SFO and the GEM Listing Rules
and has established the inside information/price sensitive
information disclosure policy with close regard to the
“Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by
the Securities and Future Commission.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review, the Company has not
made any changes to its constitutional documents. An
up-to-date version of the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company is available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has approved and adopted a dividend policy
on 23 June 2020 ("Dividend Policy”) which shall take
effect on 23 June 2020. The Board has the full discretion
to declare and distribute dividends to the shareholders of
the Company, subject to the memorandum and articles
of association of the Company, the GEM Listing Rules,
the applicable laws and regulations of Hong Kong and
the Cayman Islands, and any other laws and regulations
applicable to the Company. Any final dividend for a
financial year will be subject to shareholders’ approval.

The Board shall take into account the cash reserves, the
financial results, financial position, cashflow situation,
business conditions and strategies, current and future
operations and earnings, capital requirements and
expenditure plans, interests of shareholders, prevailing
economic environment, any restrictions on payment of
dividends of the Group and any other factors or conditions
that the Board may consider relevant when considering
the declaration and payment of dividends.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

The Company is pleased to present this Environmental,
Social and Governance Report (the “"ESG Report”)
to provide an overview of our Group’s management
of significant issues affecting the operation, including
environmental, social and governance issues. The ESG
Report is prepared by our Group with the professional
assistance of an external professional consultant.

Preparation basis and scope

This Report is prepared in accordance with Appendix 20
to the GEM Listing Rules — “Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide” and has complied with
“comply or explain” provision in the GEM Listing Rules.

The ESG Report summarises the performance of our Group
in respect of corporate social responsibility, covering its
operating activities which are considered as material by
our Group which is principally engaged in the provision
of interior design and execution services to premises
including private residences, corporate offices, service
apartments, hotels, residential clubhouses, show flats and
sales galleries in Hong Kong. With the aim to optimise and
improve the disclosure requirements in the ESG Report,
our Group has taken initiative to formulate policies, record
relevant data as well as implement and monitor measures.
The ESG Report shall be published both in Chinese and
English on the website of the Stock Exchange. Should
there be any discrepancy between the Chinese and the
English versions, the English version shall prevail.

Reporting period

This ESG Report demonstrates our sustainability initiatives
during the reporting period from 1 April 2022 to 31 March
2023.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

CONTACT INFORMATION

Our Group welcomes your comments and suggestions
on this ESG Report for our sustainability initiatives. Please
contact us by email to info@hephaestus.com.hk.

INTRODUCTION

The Group is principally engaged in provision of interior
design and execution services to premises including private
residences, corporate offices, service apartments, hotels,
residential clubhouses, show flats and sales galleries in
Hong Kong.

The Group aims to achieve sustainable growth and further
strengthen its overall competitiveness and business
growth in the interior design industry in Hong Kong. The
Directors of the Company are of the view that the Group’s
capability to understand customers’ requirements and
transform far-fetched concepts into visionary solutions
that embrace functionality and aesthetics has gained trust
and appreciation from customers and enabled the Group
to be one of the reputable players in the interior design
industry in Hong Kong.

The Group will continue to capitalise on opportunities
by leveraging the Group’s competitive strengths and
implementing the following strategies: (i) maintain and
strengthen market position in Hong Kong; (ii) enhance
brand recognition and strengthen marketing efforts;
and (i) continue to recruit talents and enhance internal
training to support future growth.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group understands the success of the Group’s
business depends on the support from its key stakeholders,
who (a) have invested or will invest in the Group; (b)
have the ability to influence the outcomes within the
Group; and (c) are interested in or affected by or have
the potential to be affected by the impact of the Group’s
activities, products, services and relationships. It allows
the Group to understand risks and opportunities. The
Group will continue to ensure effective communication
and maintain good relationship with each of its key
stakeholders.

Stakeholders are prioritised from time to time in view of
the Group’s roles and duties, strategic plan and business
initiatives. The Group engages with its stakeholders to
develop mutually beneficial relationships and to seek their
views on its business proposals and initiatives as well as
to promote sustainability in the marketplace, workplace,
community and environment.

The Group acknowledges the importance of intelligence
gained from the stakeholders’ insights, inquiries and
continuous interest in the Group’s business activities. The
Group has identified key stakeholders that are important
to our business and established various channels for
communication. The following table provides an overview
of the Group’s key stakeholders, and various platforms
and methods of communication are used to reach, listen
and respond.
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Stakeholders
BHE
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Issues of concern

HIEE

B e REARE

Engagement channels
SHRE

Government and regulatory
authorities

B REEHEA

Shareholders and Investors

BRERRREE

Employees

Comply with the applicable laws and
regulations

Proper tax payment

Promote regional economic
development and employment

BTERER AR
FOEMNTR
HEBRINEEERMAE

Return on the investment
Information disclosure and
transparency

Protection of interests and fair
treatment of shareholders

& [
BHERENERE
IREERR M5 Ko A P38

Safeguard the rights and interests of
employees

Working environment

Career development opportunities
Self-actualisation

Occupational health and safety
Staff remuneration, benefits and
well-being

RIS BN LR

THERE

S 30953

BRER

BEREELZS

BT EB - BA At

On-site inspections and checks
Research and discussion through
work conferences, work reports
preparation and submission for
approval

Annual reports and announcements
Website of the Company

Bivinip Rind
FRIESRFRMAELA S R
T EmERREREL]L
FRERNE

PN RS

Annual general meeting and other
shareholder meetings

Annual reports and announcements
Newsletter

Websites of the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

Company contact information

BERBFEARGREMBERAE
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¥ER
ARRPURBBMERZAAR
RAR A A

RRRBEERY

Meetings and conferences
Trainings, seminars, briefing sessions
Entertainment and cultural activities
Feedback box
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Stakeholders
BHE

Issues of concern

BXEHE

Engagement channels
SHRE

Customers

5F

Banks

Financial Institution
ISR
Peers/Industry Associations

B TXHE

Media
Hi

Public and Communities

ABATRUHE

Safe and high-quality products
Stable relationship
Information transparency
Business ethics
ZERBEER

BEBIE

BRIE

FRER

To repay loans on schedule, monitor
operating conditions and risks and
operate with honesty and credibility
REERER  BERLEMRRKLE
B LA R E

Compliance with the applicable laws
and regulations

BT R A R ROEM

Experience sharing and cooperation
Fair competition

KEyFHAE

AFHEF

Transparent information

ERE

Community involvement
Social responsibilities

it lma

HEesE
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Email
Visits and meetings

BH

B kEm

Work conferences

On-site visits, post-loan tracking and
various business communication
ITEg®

BEMGE  BEREMERSEHED
g

Financial Institution

MsHE

Industry conference and seminars
Site visit

TR NS

BiaE

Media
(e

Charity and social investment
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Through general communication with stakeholders, the
Group understands the expectations and concerns from
stakeholders. The feedbacks obtained allow the Group to
make more informed decisions, and to better assess and
manage the resulting impact.

The Group has adopted the principle of materiality in
the ESG reporting by understanding the key ESG issues
that are important to the business of the Group. All the
key ESG issues and key performance indicators (KPIs) are
reported in the ESG Report according to recommendations
of the ESG Reporting Guide (Appendix 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules) and the guidelines of Global Reporting
Initiative (“GRI").

The Group has evaluated the materiality and importance
in ESG aspects through the following steps:

Step 1: Identification — Industry Benchmarking

o Relevant ESG areas were identified through the
review of relevant ESG reports of the local and
international industry peers.

o The materiality of each ESG area was determined
based on the importance of each ESG area to
the Group through internal discussion of the
management and the recommendation of ESG
Reporting Guide (Appendix 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules).

Step 2: Prioritization — Stakeholder Engagement

o The Group discussed with key stakeholders on key
ESG areas identified above to ensure all the key
aspects to be covered.

Step 3: Validation — Determining Material Issues

o Based on the discussion with key stakeholders
and internal discussion among the management,
the Group’s management ensured all the key
and material ESG areas, which were important to
the business development, were reported and in
compliance with ESG Reporting Guide.

As a result of this process carried out in 2023, those
important ESG areas to the Group were discussed in this
ESG Report.
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ESG GOVERNANCE
Board’s oversight of ESG issues

Board’s overall vision and strategy in managing ESG
issues

The board of directors (“Board”) has a primary role in
overseeing the management of the Group’s sustainability
issues. During the year, the Board and the ESG Working
Group spent significant time in evaluating the impact
of ESG-related risks on our operation and formulating
relevant policy in dealing with the risks. The oversight of
the Board is to ensure the management to have all the
right tools and resources to oversee the ESG issues in the
context of strategy and long-term value creation.

ESG Working Group

To demonstrate our commitment to transparency and
accountability, our Group has established an ESG Working
Group, which has clear terms of reference that set out
the powers delegated to it by the Board. We highly value
the opinions of each stakeholder and treat them as the
cornerstone for the development of the Group.

The ESG Working Group is primarily responsible for
reviewing and supervising the ESG process, and risk
management of the Group. Different ESG issues are
reviewed by the ESG Working Group at the meetings,
which holds annually. During the reporting period, the
ESG Working Group and the management reviewed the
ESG governance and different ESG issues.

Board’s ESG management approach and
strategy for material ESG-related issues

In order to better understand the opinions and
expectations of different stakeholders on our ESG issues,
materiality assessment is conducted each year. We ensure
various platforms and channels of communication are
used to reach, listen and respond to our key stakeholders.
Through general communication with stakeholders, the
Group understands the expectations and concerns from
stakeholders. The feedbacks obtained allow the Group to
make more informed decisions, and to better assess and
manage the resulting impact.
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The Group has evaluated the materiality and importance
in ESG aspects through the steps: (1) material ESG area
identification by industry benchmarking; (2) key ESG
area prioritization with stakeholder engagement; and (3)
validation and determining material ESG issues based on
results of communication among stakeholders and the
management.

Hence, this can enhance understanding of their degree
and change of attention to each significant ESG issue,
and can enable us to more comprehensively plan our
sustainable development work in the future. Those
important and material ESG areas identified during our
material assessment were discussed in this Report.

Board review progress against ESG-related
goals and targets

The progress of target implementation and the
performance of the goals and targets should be closely
reviewed from time to time. Rectification may be needed
if the progress falls short of expectation. Effective
communication about the goals and target process with
key stakeholders such as employees is essential, as this
enables them to be engaged in the implementation
process, and to feel they are part of the change that the
company aspires to achieve.

Setting strategic goals for the coming three to five years
enables the Group to develop a realistic roadmap and
focus on results in achieving the visions.

Setting targets requires the ESG Working Group to
carefully examine the attainability of the targets which
should be weighed against the company’s ambitions
and goals. During the year, our Group set targets on an
absolute basis.
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

The Group is mainly involved in office operations
and its business activities do not have significant
impact on the environment or natural resources. We
recognise that we have an obligation to reduce the
impact of our operations on the environment and
be accountable for the resources and materials that
are used in our daily operations. We are committed
to continuously improving our environmental
sustainability by responsibly managing our operation,
reducing our carbon footprint and using resources
effectively.

Throughout the year, the Group fully complied
with all of the relevant environmental laws and
regulations in Hong Kong, such as the Air Pollution
Control Ordinance (Cap. 311), the Water Pollution
Control Ordinance (Cap. 358), the Sewage Services
Ordinance (Cap. 463) and the Waste Disposal
Ordinance (Cap. 354). Besides, no concluded cases
regarding environmental issues were brought
against us or our employees. We also regularly
update ourselves with the latest development of the
applicable laws and regulations on environmental
protection.

Apart from complying with the environmental
protection rules and standards, the Group
emphasises environmental protection and seeks ways
to enhance efficiency in the use of natural resources
and reduce the environmental impact of its business
operation. We take the initiative to formulate and
implement the “Corporate Environmental Policy” to
establish relevant emissions reduction and energy
saving initiatives internal policies and campaigns
to facilitate the effective use of natural resources
and eco-friendly operation. We also encourage
employees to build up environmentally friendly
habits through notice and promotion to save
resources and minimise pollution.
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Emissions
Air Pollutant Emissions

Air pollutant emissions control is essential
to mitigate the impact on the environment
and to protect the health of employees. As
the Group is mainly involved in general office
activities, the amount of air pollutant emissions
is insignificant. Our air pollutant emissions are
mainly generated from the mobile sources.
We take initiative to formulate plans in
transportation management for the reduction
of air pollutant emissions in our daily business
operation, for example encouraging employees
and clients to take video conference instead of
unnecessary transportation. Furthermore, the
Group targets to reduce air pollutant emissions
by 5% by 2025.

The details of air pollutant emissions of the
Group during the years ended 31 March 2023
and 2022 was as follows:
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Air Pollutant Emissions Unit 2023 2022
ZERISRYBER By —EB-= T F
Nitrogen oxides (NO)) kg 2.71 0.96
TEALHNO) AF
Sulphur dioxide (SO,) kg 0.06 0.02
— GLH(S0,) N
Particulate matter (PM) kg 0.20 0.07
BIZRLT(PM) NI
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Greenhouse Gas (the “"GHG") Emission

GHG is considered as one of the major
contributors to the climate change and
global warming. The Group recognises that
climate change is gradually concerned by the
community as it affects our daily life and poses
a risk to its business. Hence, we are committed
to mitigating the effects of climate change and
to protecting the health of employees.

The major sources of our GHG emission are
the fuel used by vehicles and indirect emission
through electricity consumption for our office
operation. The Group strives to improve energy
efficiency and reduce energy consumption
so as to minimise GHG emission by adopting
energy saving initiatives mentioned in the
section “Use of Resources” of this ESG Report.
Furthermore, the Group targets to reduce
GHG emissions by 5% by 2025. Compare to
2022, the GHG emission generated from fuel
used by vehicles increased significantly due to
the increase of local travelling of the business
activities. The total GHG emission was slightly
increased 4%. The Group will monitor the
resources usage and reduce the unnecessary
travelling of vehicles and adopt more public
transport.
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The details of GHG emission of the Group
during the years ended 31 March 2023 and
2022 was as follows:

REBEE-_ZE_=—FR_TE-__F=-—A=+—

BIEFE  ARBER=REHMFBEOT

GHG emission Unit 2023 2022
BERBIER By —E-= —T-—
Scope 1" tonnes of CO;-e 10.63 4.02
#E WS LIRE S
Scope 2? tonnes of CO,-e 47.43 52.02
&[22 WE—SEALIRE S
Total GHG emission tonnes of CO,-e 58.06 56.04
mERBEBENE WS LiRE &
GHG emission intensity tonnes of CO,-e/employee 1.16 1.02
REREBENEE WAk E e EE

Hazardous and Non-hazardous Wastes BEREBEEEY

Waste management is considered as one of the BEDNEBEGSAEEZRREE L — - K&

material topics in environmental protection.
The Group recognises the importance of waste
reduction. Waste management measures have
been introduced and implemented to minimise
the amount of waste generated and the
impact on the environment. With our business
nature, no hazardous waste is generated or
discharged during the office operation.

For non-hazardous waste, the waste is mainly
generated from daily office operation. The
Group takes initiative to reduce waste by
formulating effective measures. Generally, we
have engaged qualified recycling companies
to collect and handle the waste in accordance
to the Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap. 354)
in Hong Kong. The major source of our non-
hazardous waste is paper waste.

Direct emission from sources that are owned or
controlled by our Group.

Indirect emissions from the generation of purchased
electricity consumed by our Group.
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With the aim to reduce the amount of waste
generated, the Group endeavours to cultivate
environmental awareness among employees.
In order to reduce the paper consumption,
we encourage our employees to consider
environmental-friendly printing such as
double-sided printing and copying. We also
encourage employees to reuse single sided
non-confidential print out. The waste paper is
re-used as fillers for packing when practicable.

The Group actively promotes electronic
communication such as emails to reduce the
amount of paper used. In addition to paper
saving, we also encourage employees to reuse
stationery such as envelopes and use reusable
items such as reusable cutleries and cups. All
these measures are geared at reducing waste
such as paper waste which can help mitigate
the global greenhouse effect as well. Recycling
bags are available for paper collection.
All paper boxes, paper, newspaper and
magazines are collected for recycling purpose.
Furthermore, the Group targets to reduce non-
hazardous waste generated by 5% by 2025.

The details of non-hazardous waste generated
by the Group during the years ended 31 March
2023 and 2022 was as follows:

RBROMELRERYE  AEEHNEER
BZRREH - BRLAA  HPISEEE
ERERAERTERE SRR AR o
AT EEREEREERMIFRTITEH 2K
R WENEATERT  ERERIESE
KIRFTY) °

AEEBEBRHERCAEBEETFBATRN

OB R E - BRENE B - BAPI IR E
BREEREHSIXEMM  LEMAATEERE

BzEBARKNEAERYM - TEHLEHE
M EERDERSEEY  LRE PR
FHOREME - RMIZBERRIZWELKR -
HFRERERF - MR - REFFEZIER
WZH - 24 AEENEEZAN=-Z=-H
FRIB L EEBEEREZEYSY% °

REBEE-_ZTE_=FR-_T-__F=ZA=+—
BIEFE AEEMELEEZEEEYFIEN
—F :

Waste generated Unit 2023 2022
EXEEY B —E=-= —E -4
Non-hazardous waste generated tonnes 0.824 1.42
EXBEEREY I
Non-hazardous waste generated tonnes/employee

intensity
EEEREREENEE W, &8 0.02 0.03
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During the years ended 31 March 2023 and
2022, non-hazardous waste recycled by the
Group was as follows:
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REBEE-_ZE_=—FR_TE-__F=-—A=+—
AIEFE  AEEfEWRESEEYIE RN
™

Waste recycled Unit 2023 2022
R EEEY B —E-= —E-
Paper recycled tonnes 0.823 1.36
[B] 5 4 5 U

Paper recycled intensity tonnes/employee 0.02 0.02
Bl 4R SR 2 R WS

A2. Use of resources

The Group considers environmental protection
as an essential component of a sustainable
and responsible business. We have an in-
depth understanding of the importance of
safeguarding sustainable development of the
environment and this to attach importance to
efficient utilisation of resources by introducing
various measures in daily office operation.
We understand that staff participation is the
key to achieve such goals. We strive to build
up a working environment that emphasises
the “green office” policy such as a set of
guidelines to improve the efficient use of
resources for long-term sustainability. We
also motivate our employees to participate in
resources conservation activities to promote
resources saving.

Energy Consumption

The Group considers environmental protection
as an essential component of a sustainable and
responsible business. With the aims of resource
saving and implementation of energy saving
measures, we actively promote the concept of
energy saving and emission reduction into the
entire process of its business development and
operation and implements different energy
saving measures.

A2.
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Regarding energy consumption of the
Group, petrol and purchased electricity
mainly result from fuel used by vehicles and
premises operation respectively. The Group
endeavours to reduce the energy consumption
by advocating various energy conservation
strategies. For examples, we choose to use
power-saving facilities and reduce the number
of equipment used. Computers are switched
to energy-saving mode when they are not
in use for a long period of time. All power
supply in the area is switched off while idle.
Besides, the temperature of air-conditioners
is maintained at an energy-efficient level
to reduce the energy consumption. Energy
conservation reminders are placed to increase
employees’ awareness of energy saving. We
will consistently seek ways to improve energy
efficiency and reduce energy consumption in
our facilities in the future.

Furthermore, the Group targets to reduce
energy consumption by 5% by 2025.

The details of energy consumption of the
Group during the years ended 31 March 2023
and 2022 was as follows:

ARAKERREMATE  HRBAE
DHIETEREAEMARHEYELE - K
SEHNFEEE AR R D EIRA
Ao 820ms  BRMAREEREEREALR
PITARBEE  SREBARERZEKY
BmEMERN  BHERAMBHNEER - It
Sh - BAAIK = TR E G AL KF - A
BARERFEM - MIPIRBERELRTR - IES
BEZEEER - RABRBIHSRERE
TR AR R BE IR 2 MR A BE IR AR
==

o REEWNBREAR T -_AFFIRD
BEIRFEAS% °

REBEE_ZE_=FR_T-__F=A=+—
HIEFE  AEEEREAFBOT -

Energy Consumption Unit 2023 2022
REIRFE A B —E-= —F--
Purchased electricity MWh 112.8 140.60
BAEN JK L

Petrol MWh 36.36 13.21
;i JE R

Total energy consumption MWh 149.24 153.81
BERERR JKFLBF

Energy consumption intensity MWh/employee 2.98 2.80
BERFEAEE KRB &R
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Water Consumption

Water is another important resource used
for the daily operation. The business of
our Group is operated in office premises
where water supply is solely controlled and
centrally managed by its respective property
management of the buildings. In this case,
it is not feasible for the Group to provide all
relevant water consumption data as there is
no separate meter for the individual office
unit to record water usage. In spite of this,
we strive to prevent unnecessary water
consumption by promptly reporting to the
relevant department in case of leaking faucet.
We also actively raise employees’ awareness of
water saving through green office policy such
as reminding employees to turn faucet off
tightly and conducting regular inspection and
maintenance of water facilities.

The environment and natural
resources

The Group continues to enhance the
environmental awareness of employees,
customers, shareholders and business
partners and enlist their supports in improving
the environmental performance. With the
integration of policies and measures to reduce
air pollutants and GHG emissions, waste
generation and resources consumption, we
strive to enhance environmental sustainability
and minimise our impacts on the environment.
We will review our environmental policy from
time to time and will consider implementing
further eco-friendly measures and practices in
order to enhance environmental sustainability.

A3.
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A4. Climate change

Governance

Our group addresses climate-related risks
based on the nature of the risk to our
operations. The physical impacts of climate
change, including extreme weather events,
or damage to facilities have immediate
operational impacts and are treated as
operational risks. Long-term challenges, such
as emerging ESG issues and climate-related
risks and opportunities, may be discussed by
the Group’s ESG Working Group.

Supported by our ESG Working Group, our
Board oversees climate-related issues and risks
regularly during board meetings and ensures
that they are incorporated into our strategy.

To ensure our Board to keep up with the
latest trend of climate-related issues, climate
competence training will be provided to
ensure it has the necessary expertise and skills
to oversee the management of climate-related
issues. Our Board also seeks professional
advice from external experts when necessary
to better support the decision-making process.

Our ESG Working Group provides effective
governance for integrating and addressing
ESG issues, including climate change, within
our business. The ESG Working Group
is responsible for approving operational
emissions targets for the Group and
commissioning an ESG benchmarking, as
well as gap analysis exercise to identify gaps
in both disclosure and policy relative to the
best practice standards. Moreover, the ESG
Working Group works closely with the Group’s
different operation departments, with an
aim to develop consistent and enhanced
approaches on addressing ESG risk issues and
report to the management.
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Strategy

Climate change risk forms part of our overall
risk profile through its role in increasing the
frequency and intensity of certain diseases, and
the health and mortality impacts resulting from
natural disasters. We assess the overall level
of risk by taking into consideration a range of
diverse risk factors across the many categories
in our services range. This diversity of risk
is combined with our business strategy and
broad geographic footprint helps us mitigate
risk and provide protection against the impacts
of short-term climate change effects.

Our products and services continue to provide
protection for people in our communities
against weather and heat-related disease.
Besides, we continue to explore opportunities
to engage our business partners and
encourage them to develop climate resilience
and reduce their operational carbon footprint
by taking into consideration of different
climate-related scenarios, including a “2°C or
lower scenario” through the following steps:

Step 1: Set Future Images Assuming

Climate Change Effects
As climate change measures proceeds, there is
a possibility that the industry will be exposed
to substantial changes, such as stricter policies
including the introduction of and increases
in carbon pricing, as well as advances
in technology and changes in customer
awareness.

In light of these climate change effects, based
on the International Energy Agency (“IEA")
scenarios and others, we developed multiple
future images as the external environment
that will surround our Group. With regard to
the IEA scenarios, we put focus on the 2°C
scenario (2DS) and pictured future images in
case where climate change measures do not
progress and where such measures progress
further “Beyond 2°C scenario”.
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Step 2: Consider the Impacts

We considered the impacts on our Group for
each of the future images developed in Step
1. We believe that in such a society, it will be
possible to expand carbon dioxide reduction
effects.

With regard to effects on raw material
procurement and production, introduction of
and increases in carbon pricing is anticipated in
accordance with the global advance of climate
change measures, leading to the possibility
of higher raw material procurement and
production costs.

On the other hand, in the case where climate
change measures are not adequate throughout
society, production interruptions and supply
chain disruptions are likely to increase as a
result of higher frequency and intensification
of natural disasters such as flooding.

Step 3: Respond to the Strategies

Our Group will begin promoting the reduction
of non-renewable energy in our daily
operation. This strategy will allow for flexible
and strategic responses to each demand for
the regions where the emission factors of
purchased electricity consumptions are high.
By promoting real carbon emissions reductions
throughout the world through comprehensive
energy-saving policies and introduction of
renewable energy, we are working to achieve
zero carbon emission in our business.

We minimize carbon emissions through
comprehensive energy — saving and
introduction of renewable energy. With
respect to renewable energy in particular, we
have set a new target, achieve a reduction rate
for purchased electricity in coming few years.

With regard to the ongoing confirmation
of the suitability and progress of the
Group's strategies, we believe that we will
have opportunities for stable funding and
sustainable increases in corporate value
through appropriate information disclosure,
dialogue with institutional investors and other
stakeholders.
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Risk Management

Our Group identifies the climate change
related risks or to test the existing risk
management strategies under climate change
with the aid of risk assessment. Hence, the
areas where new strategies are needed could
be identified.

The risk assessment takes a standard risk-
based approach using national data, local
information and expert knowledge, which can
identify how climate change may compound
existing risks or create new ones. The risk
assessment is conducted through the following
steps:

Step 1: Establish the context
o Objective/goal

o Scale
o Time frame
o Climate change scenario for most climate

variables and sea level

Step 2: Identify existing risk (past and
current)

o Identify the record of occurrence of
climatic hazard in the past in the area

° Risk management strategies in place to
tackle future occurrence of the hazard

Step 3: Identify future risk and
opportunities

o Explore climate change projections for
the selected time frame(s) and emission

scenario(s)
o Identify potential hazards
o Investigate whether any existing risk

from Step 2 may get worse under future
projected changes

o Identify new risks that can emerge under
future projected changes

Step 4: Analyse and evaluate risk

o Identify a set of decision areas or systems
(i.e., geographical areas, business
operation, assets, ecosystems, etc.) that
has the potential to be at risk in future
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As outlined within the Governance section
above, the Group has robust risk management
and business planning processes that are
overseen by the ESG Working Group in order
to identify, assess and manage climate-related
risks. The Group engages with government
and other appropriate organizations in order
to keep abreast of expected and potential
regulatory and/or fiscal changes.

We continue to raise awareness of climate
change in regard to monitoring of carbon
and energy footprint in our daily operation.
However, there remains gaps in understanding
how such climate risks and opportunities may
impact our operations, assets and profits. Our
Group assesses how the business addresses
climate change risks and opportunities and
takes the initiative to monitor and reduce their
environmental footprint.
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Significant Climate-related Issues

During the reporting period, the significant
climate-related physical risks and transition
risks, which have impacted and/or may impact
our Group’s business and strategy in (i)
operations, products and services, (i) supply
chain and value chain, (iii) adaptation and
mitigation activities, (iv) investment in research
and development, and (v) financial planning,
as well as the steps taken to manage these
risks, are as follows:

Climate-related risks

Financial impact

B e REARE
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Steps taken to manage

description the risks
1% 16 28 [ B Y e ot g 32 REBEZZEARMRIAIEE
Physical Risk

Acute physical risks

* Increased severity and e Operating cost increases e Planned to adopted scenario

frequency of extreme weather e  Capital cost increases due to
the damage of facilities

events such as cyclones
and floods may cause staff
injury. In addition, under the
extreme weather events, the
transportation and living cost
increase, which may lead to
financial loss.
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analysis to disclose an
organization’s planning under
future scenarios, most notably
one with in a “2°C scenario”.

e Established a natural disasters
emergency plan.
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Climate-related risks Financial impact

Steps taken to manage

description the risks
1% 1) 28 [, B 9 e ot g 32 AEEZSEARMRIRAIEE
Chronic physical risks
e Prolonged hot weather e Revenue reduces from e  Planned improvements,
may increase the energy decreased operation capacity retrofits, relocations, or other
consumption. and the negative impacts of changes to facilities that may
e Climate change brings workforce. reduce their vulnerability to

uncertainties to the
environments of operation
and sales. Although direct
losses will not be incurred by
the company, this may still
affect and limit the product
sales and services significantly.
e Prolonged climate change may
detriment the human’s health.
Continuation of temperature
rise can increase the fatality
rates and incidence rates of
some diseases, especially the
one related to cardiac and
respiratory system; the spread
of some climate-sensitive
diseases such as malaria and
dengue fever may increase.
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climate impacts and increase
the climate resilience in long
term.

e Engagement with local or
national governments and
local stakeholders on local
resilience.
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Financial impact
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Steps taken to manage

description the risks

1% 6 28 [, B Y e ot BB E AEEZSEARMRIRAIEE
Transitional Risk

Policy risk

e Asaresult of energy efficiency e  Operating cost increases e Planned to be involved in

requirements, carbon-pricing
mechanisms increase the price
of fossil fuels, or policies to
encourage sustainable land
use, hindering the area of
expansion, which increase the
operation cost.

Mandates on and regulation
of existing services as of the
tightened environmental and
safety laws and standards of
oil. We have to spend much
compliance cost to update or
maintain the equipment to
fulfil the new regulations.
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due to increased insurance
premiums for the Group.
Operational and compliance
cost increases.

AEEAINORBRERIE o
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carbon trading and adoption
of clean energy in the
operations to reduce the
carbon emissions.

Monitor the updates of the
relevant climate-related
environmental policies, to
avoid the unnecessary increase
in cost and expenditure due
to the violation of the climate-
related environmental policies.
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Climate-related risks

Financial impact

Steps taken to manage

description the risks
AR A BA R B 9 g7 REEZEERMERE B
Legal risk

e  Exposure to litigation. We
have to adapt the tightened
law and regulations issued
by the government due to
climate change, and they have
the risk of litigation once they
failed to obligate the new
rules.

e Enhanced emissions- reporting
obligations. We may have to
spend much time on fulfilling
the report standards to comply
the new obligations.
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Technology risk

e Developing the low carbon o
energy-saving energy saving
technologies, the capital
investment and R&D expense
increase consequently.

e More green building strategies
with low-carbon, energy-
saving technologies are
adopted by industry peers.
Lagging behind may weaken
our competitive edges.
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Operating cost increases for
high compliance costs and
increased insurance premiums
for the Group.
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Capital investment in
technology development
increases.

BINXMAZENERRE -

Monitored the updates of
environmental laws and
regulations and implemented
GHG emissions calculations in
advance.

BRI AN RO A & F
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Planned to invest in the
innovations of energy- saving
technologies or facilities.
Examined the feasibility and
benefits of applying the latest
low-carbon and energy-
saving technologies into our
operation.
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Financial impact
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Steps taken to manage

description the risks

1% 6 28 [, B Y e ot BB E AEEZSEARMRIRAIEE

Market risk

e More customers are e Revenue decreases for the e Tightened the control of the
considering climate-related change in revenue mix and environmental hazardous
risks and opportunities, sources. materials in our products and

which may lead to changes o
in customers’ demand for
products.

e Uncertainty in market signals.
“How environmentally friendly
the product is” becomes one
of the factors to affect the
product selling price.

e Increased cost of
raw materials. More
environmentally-friendly
raw materials may be much
expensive, which may increase
the cost.
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studied the application of
recycled materials.

Operating cost increases as
abrupt and unexpected shifts
in energy costs.

Production cost increases due
to changing input prices and
output requirements.
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Climate-related risks

Financial impact

Steps taken to manage

description the risks

SR AE BA L B 9 i B REEZZRABMRRNER
Reputational risk

e Unable to fulfil the e Revenue decreases from e Supported the green

EERR

During the reporting period, the primary
climate-related opportunities and the

expectations of the customers,
damage the Group'’s

reputation and image.
Stigmatization of our o
business sector, such as

more stakeholder concern or
negative stakeholder feedback
on the product designed in a

less environmentally-friendly
way.
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decreased demand for goods
and the decrease in operation e
capacity.

Operating costs increases from
negative impacts on workforce
management and planning.
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corresponding financial impacts were as
follows:

Detailed description of climate-related
opportunities

Financial Impact

procurement.

Fulfilled the social
responsibility by organizing
more activities or executing
actions to demonstrate how
we place importance on
climate change.
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Resource efficiency

BIRW

o Reduce more packaging material usage o Operating cost reduces through efficiency
o Reduce water usage and consumption gains and cost reductions
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Detailed description of climate-related
opportunities
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Financial Impact

e

Energy source

BETR
L[]

Use of lower-emission fuel sources
Use of new technologies

1 A BIEBE R BEIR
158 AR 3

Business services

78 3R AR5

Development of services which have consider
climate change adaptation

Ability to diversify business activities

FAT B 38 1) Al 755 fBE K2 e Ml 4 (b B e
BRNETHREBLY

Markets

M5

Access to new markets

EAFTS

Resilience

HEH

Participation in renewable energy programs
and adoption of energy-efficiency measures
Resource substitution or diversification

S A B AR B IR BE R M 7
HABEBEREZTIENER

Operating cost reduces through use of lowest
cost abatement

Returns on investment in low-emission
technology increases
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Research and development cost increases
through new solutions to adaptations needs
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Revenue increases through access to new and
emerging markets
TS R g =

Market valuation increases through resilience
planning, such as infrastructure, land and
buildings

Reliability of supply chain and ability to operate
under various condition increases

Revenue increases through new products and
services related to ensuring resiliency
BBRENREAETHEEEM
2R T REFE

HEEN A ERE RN TRIGH T EEr 8
PARIll

AR R 7 78 2 60 N 2 o S R A s
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Metrics and Targets

Our Group adopts the key metrics to assess
and manage climate-related risks and
opportunities. The energy consumption and
greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions indicators
are the key metrics used to assess and
manage relevant climate-related risks where
we consider such information is material
and crucial for evaluating the impact of our
operation on global climate change during the
year. Our Group regularly tracks our energy
consumption and GHG emissions indicators to
assess the effectiveness of emission reduction
initiatives, as well as set targets to contribute
our effort to have minimal impact on global
warming.

The details of time frames over which the
target applies and base year from which
progress is measured are described in the
section A1: “Emissions” and section A2:
“Use of Resources” of this Report. Our Group
adopts absolute target to manage climate-
related risks, opportunities and performance.
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B. SOCIAL ASPECTS

B1.

Employment

The Group believes people are our most
important asset to the continuing development
and success of our Group. As such, we aim to
attract and motivate talents, maintain a safe
and equal working environment and promote
health and well-being of our employees. We
pay special attention to our employees’ rights
and strictly complies with the Employment
Ordinance (Cap. 57), the Minimum Wage
Ordinance (Cap. 608), Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap. 485) and
other relevant regulations in Hong Kong. The
staff handbook covers our Group's standard
in respect of compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination and other benefits and welfare.

The Group strives to construct a diverse and
inclusive workplace where all our employees
are treated with dignity and respect.
We strongly oppose to all discriminatory
behaviours against any individual on their
gender, age, nationality, race, colour,
disability, creed, religion, sexual orientation,
marital status or family status. The principle
of equal opportunities is applied in all
employment practices, including but not
limited to recruitment, promotion and transfer,
work allocation, benefits and training and
development.

B. #t

B1.

B e REARE

FH

(3

AEBFRE BIAAKRERERRNER
KW ZREREE - Bt - RMLHESI R
BREAT  UEERERFENTIERREN
FUERB S OERE - RMLEIEESE
A - WEARE T CRIBIRDD (F57F) - (&
ETEGR) (F608%) - (RFIEATEEE
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FHENAREBRTHEERE  RERS
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The Group has formulated competitive
remuneration packages to retain and motivate
employees in achieving key goals of our Group.
We provide remuneration for its employees
according to their qualifications, experience,
performance, job duties and service years as
well as to the market benchmark. We perform
salary review on an annual basis to ensure
its remuneration practices are competitive
and aligned with market rate. In addition to
salary, we provide mandatory provident fund,
allowances, required social security benefits,
medical benefits and variable incentive-based
remuneration such as discretionary bonus to
our employees. Employees are also entitled to
various types of leave including annual leave,
sick leave, maternity leave and paternity leave.

The Group acknowledges the importance of
work-life balance and strives to maintain a
supportive and relaxing working environment
for our employees. We organise activities such
as annual dinner for employees to relax and
to strengthen their sense of belongings. In
addition to those specified in the Employment
Ordinance (Cap. 57), we provide paid or
partially paid leaves and support services or
activities for our employees to handle urgent
personal and family matters. We also provide
family care and supports to our employees
and/or their family members to bring a positive
impact on their family life. We are committed
to building a pleasant working environment to
enhance the happiness of our employees.
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During the current year, our Group was
not aware of any non-compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations that had
significant impact on our Group relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and
other benefits and welfare. Any changes of
employment terms will be notified to staff and
agreed in writing to protect the lawful rights
and interests of all employees.

As at 31 March 2023, the employee
compositions by gender, age group and
geographical region, employment category
and employment mode were as follows:

RIE - @ RkeEnRmE

RAFE  NEBY THEERARETHEH
HEN L mE - BERETT  TESE R
H - PERE - 20t REBAREMR
BRENZHBARMAEME AN EEEE
ERFEZEN - BEGROAE THNEE
BERME THAETEBE - NREFER
B2 IRTERR M b e

M-B-=F=A=+—08 " K45  F#&
BRI E - EEERMERERE S ZE
BHEMKBERANAT -

Employee compositions 2023 2022
EEMERK —B-=F —F--
By gender RER &S

e Male o Bt 46% 45%
e Female o It 54% 55%
By age group REERAE B

e Age 30 or below o 30mEIAT 2% 16%
e Age31-50 e 31E505% 85% 73%
e Age 51 or above e SIpRskAE 13% 11%
By geographical region i EE 5

e Hong Kong o HE 100% 100%
By employment category RERERE S

e Senior management s EREERE 9% 9%
e Middle management o HREIEE 1% 7%
e General o EiEEER 80% 84%
By employment mode RERER

o Full-time o EH 98% 96%
e Part-time o GRER 2% 4%

ERERBRAG 202223 F F W
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B2.

The employee turnover rates by gender, age
group as at 31 March 2023 and 2022 were as
follows:

N-E—=GR-_FT-—F=/B=+—H "
iR R FRERIED 2 EERAEMT

Employment Turnover Rate (%) 2023 2022
BERKE (%) —E-= —E-=
By gender ®RER &S

e Male o FHIE 49% 8%
e Female o Il 25% 19%
By age group RERE S

e 30 or below o 30mEEIAT 100% 44%
e 31-50 e 31&505% 33% 12%
e 57 or above e S1pRskIAE = -
Overall &% 36% 14%

Health and safety B2. BERLZZR

The Group takes into consideration every
precaution to establish a healthy and safe
working environment for its employees. We
place the highest priority on securing the
health and safety of all employees. In order to
ensuring occupational health and safety of our
employees, we strictly comply with the rules
and guidelines stipulated in the Occupational
Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap. 509) by
the Labour Department in Hong Kong and any
other applicable laws and regulations.
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Besides, with the aim to provide and maintain
a safe and healthy working environment for
employees, the Group provides safety training
for project team before site visit during their
work. We support a culture that enhances the
health and safety awareness of our employees
in order to minimise the risk of work-related
injury. Green card information is reviewed on
quarterly basis to ensure employees comply
the construction safety rules. We also provide
medical benefits for our employees and
establish work arrangement for typhoon and
rainstorm warning. Besides, we place great
emphasis on the employees’ mental wellness.
We provide information and services regarding
stress management and mental wellness
counselling for our employees to relieve stress
and to promote mental wellness.

During the reporting period, our Group
was not aware of any non-compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations that had
significant impact on our Group in providing a
safe and healthy working environment.

During the year, there was no work injury case
(2022: nil, 2021: nil) and lost day due to work
injury (2022: nil, 2021: nil) in our business
operation. There was no work-related fatality
case (2022: nil, 2021: nil) during the year.

B e REARE

o EEEEGERAEMSER - ARE
SRHEZ2EI - BRABERERERL
2REZTERE - RMERESREERR
HE2ERHz2E  ZEREIEAR - R
MeesFEHRREN BREBETER
Z2MA - AT AEEREEEREN - X
HERENBRRES T2 TIEZHE - 1IN
HPEREREELERE - RMFREER
HEMBHERROBREEAZRZEMIR
15 DAETRREE N AR D IR AR -

RI|BEHA  NREBEALAANBEMNRETH
BREZ2MERTEREZEBERIE
RMUAREELEATEZENR -

FR - HMANEBLERBEISARCE
—FE CE-—F:8\) B¥IERT
BERATERB(CT__F & —_F=—
F ) TR HEAIIEREMETAE
R(CZB_—F @\ - —F:/8)-

= =

ERERBRAG 202223 F F W

77



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BRI e lkeEnamE

B3.

Development and training

The Group believes that knowledges and skills
of our employees are vital to our continued
business growth and success. We have
established a “Staff Training and Development
Policy” to support our employees in the
performance of their designated roles and help
them to fulfill their potential during the course
of their employment. We provide diversified
on-the-job trainings for our employees and
continue to improve the training system in
order to enhance their requisite knowledges
and skills in discharging their duties. During
the reporting period, the detailed breakdown
of the percentage of employees trained and
the average training hours completed per
employee by gender and employee category
was as follows:

During the reporting period, the detailed
breakdown of the percentage of employees
trained and the average training hours
completed per employee by gender and
employee category was as follows:

B3.

Average training hours

BRREI

HERBRAKIHNZBREE - ZMEHIEIET
BIRERBER] XFHEERXENEE
THEBREY BB REFEFED - HAIRIE
BRHEZTAEREI - SR EREE IS
B - BRIREEBITRA FTH A M -
RE|EHA - RIER R ERERE D8 Z
BEBD L EERE TR Z OIS
AR

KR
3IE
rst

SRR RN RIERERE D 0 S
EES L RESIED TR T IESY
BHMWT :

Percentage of employee

Training (hours/employee) trained (%)
#3 FENRR (NG ER) ZIHEEED (%)
2023 2022 2023 2022

—EC-=F - — —EC-=F —E-CF

By gender BRI B

e Male o Fif 0.4 0.8 4% 16%

e Female o Il 0.9 1.2 19% 25%

By employment category RERERES

¢ Senior management o SREEE = 07 = 20%

¢ Middle management o HRERE - - - -

o General Staff o LiEEE 0.8 1.2 10% 23%

Overall Rt 0.6 1.0 12% 21%
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In addition, the composition of employees ol - AR BRI IR MR K R 4E R
received training by gender and employment ErmMZIESHEKAT ¢
category during the reporting period was as
follows:
Composition of Employees Received Training 2023 2022
ZIESAR —EB-=F —T_—
By gender RER &S
e Male o Bt 25% 33%
e Female o It 75% 67%
By employment category ZEEERNES
e Senior management s EREERE = 8%
e Middle management o HREERE - -
e General staff o EiEEER 100% 92%
Labour standards B4. BT %H|
The Group respects the human rights of AEEEZEREE AR - WA ER
employees, and is strongly against the BETRARHEIBT - BMIREELERE
employment of child labour and forced labour. IRE#ssT - HPIEREETECERK
We strictly emphasise on the prohibition of By (B57%) RAERRERM) - BEE
engaging child labour and forced labour. EBRAMISEHRZ AL - 7|‘ETJ€U\77§/J?'
Adhering to the Employment Ordinance ERIES]] » KBEENIBEBRIEFR D
(Cap. 57) and the Employment of Children TAER D FANXMHAHZE SR

Regulations in Hong Kong, we strictly prohibit
recruitment of individuals under the age of
15. According to our “Human Resources
Policy Guidelines”, job applicants are required
to present their identity documents for age
verification during recruitment process.

The Group is committed to respecting the REBERNEEREZBHR @ L IF—
freedom of employees and prohibiting all IRz RGSET - FIEIIEARE
forms of forced labour. All work should FEBNTT - T TIERAAIZ BB TF MR
be performed on a voluntary basis and the B e

working hours are regulated in the staff

handbook.

During the reporting period, our Group was RIS BIA - RSB B A R
not aware of any non-compliance with relevant THEBERAEZEIL®HS I 2AEER
laws and regulations related to recruitment of KOER 2 ER

child labour or forced labour practices.

EERERARAD 202235 4% ]9
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B5.

Supply chain management

As an interior design services provider, we work
with suppliers that supply office equipment,
printing and stationery. During the primary
engagement process, we select more than one
supplier for comparison purpose and to ensure
fair selection. With the implementation of our
“Environmental Procurement Policy”, we strive
to minimise our impacts on the environment
by supporting and giving priority to purchase
recycled and environmental-friendly products.

In the selection of suppliers, we performed the
assessment for the supplier’s environmental,
health and safety record. During procurement,
we also endeavour to select environmentally
friendly products and services. For instance, we
prefer eco-friendly products which are energy-
efficient, with less packaging, or made of
recyclable materials such as refillable pens and
recycled paper. A higher priority will be given
to products with energy efficiency labels or
indications in our procurement. We encourage
the employee to pay attention to the expiry
date of products and use products purchased
earlier to avoid unnecessary wastage. The
management of each business unit will
communicate the Group’s “Environmental
Procurement Policy” to the employees in order
to enhance their awareness of the importance
of environmental products and services as well
as the relevant social aspects of the suppliers.

During the reporting period, the Group had
6 suppliers (2022: 6 suppliers) in Hong Kong
and 1 supplier (2022: 1 supplier) in Taiwan
respectively.
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Product responsibility

The Group regards service quality as a key
competitive advantage of its business. We
continue to provide high-quality services
in order to enhance customer satisfaction.
We strictly comply with relevant laws and
regulations, including but not limited to the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486),
the Trade Description Ordinance (Cap. 362)
and the Copyright Ordinance (Cap. 528) in
Hong Kong. During the current year, our
Group was not aware of any non-compliance
regarding product responsibility.

Quality Management

The Group has implemented a “Quality
Management Policy” to ensure the continual
delivery of high-quality services to our
customers.

The Group believes the opinions from
customers can drive our continuous
improvement and are essential to our pursuit
for excellence. We welcome the opinions
from customers by establishing various
communication channels with customers, such
as meeting with customers and email.

B6.
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B7.

Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to upholding the
high standards of business ethics and integrity
in the conduct of our Group’s business
and operation. We strictly comply with all
applicable laws and regulations, including the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201)
in Hong Kong. Our standards towards anti-
corruption and business ethics, incorporated
into the staff handbook, are communicated
and reinforced to our employees. Employees
shall not solicit or accept any forms of
bribing benefits, including banquets, cash,
gifts, rebates and commissions. If any case
of suspected corruption or other criminal
offence is discovered, it will be reported to the
Independent Commission Against Corruption
or other relevant authorities.

The Group aims to avoid being directly
or indirectly involved in corrupt practices.
Employee who has a legitimate malpractice
concern can raise the matter directly with the
Chairman of the Audit Committee (CACQ).
The Chairman of the Audit Committee will
review the complaint and decide how the
investigation should proceed. Depending
on the circumstances, the Chairman of the
Audit Committee may consider nominating
an appropriate investigating officer or set up
a special Committee to investigate the matter
independently. This policy has been approved
and adopted by the Board of the Company.
The Audit Committee has overall responsibility
for implementation, monitoring and periodic
review of this policy.

During the reporting period, the Group
was not aware of any non-compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations that had
significant impact on the Group relating
to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering. There was no legal case regarding
corruption practices brought against our
Group during the current year. The Group has
arranged in-house and external training on
the anti-corruption to the directors during the
reporting period.
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Community investment

As a socially responsible corporate citizen, the
Group strives to contribute back to the society
and bring a positive impact on the community.
Our Group has been awarded the excellence
for the project IFC Market Sea and MINH &
KOK Restaurant by HKDA in 2018.

In addition, the Group encourages its
employees to dedicate their time and skills
to participate in different voluntary activities
and be aware of community needs. We
also encourage our employees, customers
and business partners to make donations in
supporting the sustainable development of the
community.

The focus areas of the Group’s community
investment are social welfare and
environmental concern. The Group believes
that it can act effectively to help alleviate
social problems and responds positively with
volunteering services. The Group is committed
to improve the work-life balance of the
employees and their family needs so that the
employees may have more spare time with
their families and participate in volunteering
services to give back to the society.

BS.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORTING INDEX

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and Key Section Pages

Performance Indicators (KPIs)

THER  BEH  —REERBEEYNIEZRKPYS) =8 =P/

A. Environmental

A RIR

A1: Emissions

A1 HER

General Disclosure “Environmental Aspects” 52

— R E [ERFHHE]

KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective “Emissions — Air Pollutant Emissions” 53
emissions data

BRENERAL BERUC AR Rl S AR R HE L BR [BEm ) — ERIT R MEER

KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and,  “Emissions — Greenhouse Gas Emission” 54
where appropriate, intensity

BRENERAL2 LAERBEHMERHER) BE [BER — R = R AB BER

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and, Not applicable to our Group’s business. N/A
where appropriate, intensity

BREMERAI3 ELANATEEVESLRWER)RE TEARKEEZ X - A jiE A

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced “Emissions — Hazardous and Non- 55
and, where appropriate, intensity hazardous Wastes”

BRENERAIL4 ELENEIEEVESRNER)RE [BY-BEEREZEEY]

KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate “Emissions — Greenhouse Gas Emission” 54
emissions and results achieved

BREMERALS BT RE R FE e K PR AR PR [BER — R =R 2B

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-  “Emissions — Hazardous and Non- 55

FREENISEALG

hazardous wastes are handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved
EEREEEEMRIER L  ROREE
K2 B A R A B
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and Key Section Pages
Performance Indicators (KPIs)
THER  EBE  —REERBEERIEZRKPS) =8 BR
A2: Use of Resources
A2 : EiRER
General Disclosure “Use of Resources” 57
—RIRE [EIREEMA]
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy “Use of Resources — Energy 57
consumption by type in total and Consumption”
intensity
BERENIERA2.1 BENESMEER SHEEGEERE [ERER - LREA]
FERAE
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity Not feasible for our Group to obtain N/A
water consumption data.
BRENIERA2.2 FKEE KR E REBEE AKEUEIL AT A
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency “Use of Resources — Energy 57
initiatives and results achieved Consumption”
BRERIERA23 IR B K P R FR [BIREER - sER#E A
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue “Use of Resources — Water 59
in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, ~Consumption”
water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved
HREMERA24  KEERKREEBEMAEE - fixkE [ERER - BKI
it % PAT I PR B
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for Not applicable to our Group’s business. N/A
finished products and, if applicable, with
reference to per unit produced
BRENERA2S AFEAGNeRMAEERHER) TEARAEEZ X - 3 A

BEEBMLE
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and Key Section Pages

Performance Indicators (KPIs)

THER  EBE  —REERBEERIEZRKPIS) =8 BR

A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

A3 BIERRRER

General Disclosure “The Environment and Natural 59

Resources”

— R E [BRE M RAER]

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts No significant impact of activities on the N/A
of activities on the environment and environment and natural resources was
natural resources and the actions taken  noted.
to manage them

BRENIERA3 FHARHHRBLRAERNEATE VEERIHHRELRABERNER TER
VAR BT ERER B B 3R 1T B i B T -

A4: Climate Change

A4 : RIRB1L

General Disclosure “Climate Change” 60

— R E BN Lid

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate- “Climate Change” 61
related issues which have impacted, and
those which may impact, the issuer, and
the actions taken to manage them

BRENIERAL HMBEERATRGHETAEETZEN [RIRE(]
EARGHEBEE - RMEHTH

B. Social

B.ALE

Employment and Labour Practices

BRERETIESR

B1: Employment

B1: &%

General Disclosure “Employment” 73

— R E [MEfE]

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment “Employment” 75
type, age group and geographical region

BRENEREB RUER - BEER - FERER KRN [ERE]
BEONEERH

KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age  “Employment” 76
group and geographical region

BRENIEEB.2 IR - FiRERNRMIBANEE DEE [ERF]
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and Key Section Pages

Performance Indicators (KPIs)

THER  EBE  —REERBEERIEZRKPS) =8 BHR

B2: Health and safety

B2: REREZ:

General Disclosure “Health and Safety” 76

—RIRE NI T

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related - -
fatalities

BRENEREB2.1 ETERRRMIE T AR L=

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury “Health and Safety” 77

BEENIEEB22 AT BERIEAR (EERZ 2]

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and ~ “Health and Safety” 77
safety measures adopted, how they are
implemented and monitored

BRENEERB2.3 RENBXERERZ2ER Bk REREZZ]
27 A A

B3: Development

and Training

B3 : /R K&IEF

General Disclosure "Development and Training” 78

—RWE [ R R iEal

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employee trained by ~ “Development and Training” 78,79
gender and employee category

ERENIEEB3.1 RINETIADLLREERER [ R Kl

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed “Development and Training” 79
per employee by gender and employee
category

BRENERB.2 RUEFINEEEMNESNERE T EK [EREEII
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and Key Section Pages
Performance Indicators (KPIs)
THER  EBE  —REERBEERIEZRKPIS) =8 BR
B4: Labour Standards
B4 : % T XA
General Disclosure “Labour Standards” 79
— R E [45 T2 ]
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review “Labour Standards” 79
employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour
HRENIEEBL BEEBERABEE T NAGISTH [5ITHEL]
EYlE
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate - -
such practices when discovered
B ENIEEBL.2 FEEIE RGN HR A B IS T ERER
B 2 B FR
Operating Practices
&EER
B5: Supply Chain Management
B5 : ffESEER
General Disclosure “Supply Chain Management” 80
—RWE [t EE]
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical “Supply Chain Management” 80
region
B g E M IEEB5.1 IR E B SR HERER [ftrese sz ]
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating - -
to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented
and monitored
B g E M IEEB5.2 ZEHEEBNER  BREGHEEROM
FEREE - Bt kBRI
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify ~ “Supply Chain Management” 80
environmental and social risks along
the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored
g ENIEEBS.3 B EBRIHERGERMNRRER [HEEEE]
tEREEEG - A RBERITRER
A e
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote “Supply Chain Management” 80
environmentally preferable products
and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and
monitored
BRENIEEBS.4 M EREHEARRESARRER [HREEEE]

KBRFGEER - ARERENIT MEERTT
A e
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and Key Section Pages
Performance Indicators (KPIs)
THER  EBE  —REERBEERIEZRKPS) =8 BHR

B6: Product Responsibility
B6 : EMEIE

General Disclosure “Product Responsibility” 81
— R E [EmEE]
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or - -

shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons

BRANIEEB6.1 EHERLEEMBETRALERIER

JRABRBWEE S
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related — -
complaints received and how they are
dealt with
BRENMERB6.2  EEARMERMRENRGF RN EE
WE:Y
KPI B6.3 Description and practices relating to - -

observing and protecting intellectual
property rights
B R ENIEEB6.3 BT RARENBERBBFHALER

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process  “Product Responsibility—Quality 81
and recall procedures Management”

BEENIERSB4 EEREBREREWIETHA [EmBI-EE2EE]

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection — -

and privacy policies, how they are
implemented and monitored

BB M IE1EB6.5 HEEERRENRLERE  BkE
=77
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and Key Section Pages
Performance Indicators (KPIs)
THER  EBE  —REERBEERIEZRKPIS) =8 BHR

B7: Anti-corruption

B7 : RES

General Disclosure “ Anti-corruption” 82
— R E [R&F]

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases No concluded legal case regarding N/A

regarding corrupt practices brought corrupt practices was noted.
against the issuer or its employees during
the reporting period and the outcomes
of the case

B A NIEEBT A REERARMETAXEEERIRLTE WEEREEBSTROERRN - i
BERNBESRMHE RRGER

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and " Anti-corruption” 82
whistle-blowing procedures, how they
are implemented and monitored

B ENIEREBT.2 TEY R BEET BkEEAN [REE]
i EA

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training “ Anti-corruption” 82
provided to directors and staff

MREXESB73 HAREERETRENRERE - [RES]

&
A

Community

#HE

B8: Community Investment

B8 : HEIRE

General Disclosure “Community Investment” 83
—RWE MHERE]

KPI BS.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. - -

education, environmental concerns,
labour needs, health, culture, sport)
AR ENIEEBS.1 EFEREEWHE BEEH - 4
I&Ek - ek ik - 885)
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or - -
time) to the focus area
R ENIEEBS.2 HETHBAEMNER (LRI
f)
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Liang (“Mr. Huang”), aged 44, was
appointed as an executive Director of the Company on 4
March 2022. He is also a chairman of the Board and chief
executive officer of the Company. Mr. Huang has over
16 years of experience in real estate development and
properties investment areas in the People’s Republic of
China. He is the executive director and general manager
of Shenzhen Jinrong Enterprise Limited* (R BELE
#7482 a)) and Shenzhen Longhua Henghe Real Estate
Development Limited* (YT 58 2= 18 0 5= ih /= 5 8%
BRRAF]). Mr. Huang is also the vice president of the
Chamber of Commerce of Shenzhen Longhua* (&I &E
#ZP @), He was an independent non- executive director
of Aidigong Maternal & Child Health Limited (stock code:
286) from February 2013 to December 2015.

Ms. Yip Hiu Ying (“Ms. Yip”), aged 39, is appointed
as an executive Director of the Company on 28 February
2023. Ms. Yip currently is the executive vice president
of P.B. Nikyo Wealth Management Limited, a licensed
insurance intermediary under the Insurance Ordinance
(Cap. 41 of the Laws of Hong Kong), responsible for
managing all aspects of client relationship, develop, and
maintain long-term relationships through strong personal
networks and contacts and line up insurance providers to
enrich the company product platform and set up system
for consultant division to streamline the business flow.
Ms. Yip has over 13 years of experience in insurance,
financial and wealth management fields. Ms. Yip holds a
Bachelor of Business Administration from City University of
Hong Kong and holds professional qualifications including
Certified of Private Banker and Certified of Trust Planner.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENBREEERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tang Chin Ting (“Mr. Tang”), aged 32, is appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 24 February
2023. Mr. Tang has over 9 years of experience in the
field of auditing and has been providing professional
accounting and financial reporting services to various
Hong Kong listed companies as well as multinational
and private companies. Mr. Tang has worked for various
reputable international accounting firms in Hong Kong
and is currently the manager of a firm of Certified
Public Accountants in Hong Kong. Mr. Tang obtained a
Science degree in Professional Accounting and Corporate
Governance from City University of Hong Kong in 2021.
He was admitted as a member of CPA Australia in
November 2018. Mr. Tang was also certified as a certified
public accountant by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in October 2018, and was admitted
as an associate of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute in November 2021.

Mr. Lee Man Chun (“Mr. Lee"), aged 33, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 4 March
2022. He is mainly responsible for overseeing the
management independently and providing independent
judgment on the issues of strategy, performance,
resources and standard of conduct of the Company.

Mr. Lee graduated from Laureate International Universities
(William Blue College of Hospitality Management) in
2012, with professional degree in business hospitality
management. He was the general manager of Little
Sandpiper, an Australian company engaging in children
entertainment business, from 2018 to 2021. He was a
director of Smart Dollar, an Australian company engaging
in retail chain business from 2014 to 2018.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Tong Yuk Ying Yannie (“Ms. Tong"), aged 33,
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on 3 March 2023. Ms. Tong is a Hong Kong Solicitor and
Australian lawyer, obtained the degree of Bachelor of
Laws from Monash University in 2012. She completed the
Graduate Diploma in Legal Practice and Practical Training
from Leo Cussen Center For Laws in Australia in 2013
and was subsequently admitted as Australian Lawyer. Ms.
Tong completed the Postgraduate Certificate in Laws in
2017 and was admitted as Solicitor in Hong Kong in 2020.
Ms. Tong has over 9 years of working experience in the
legal field. Ms. Tong handles civil and criminal disputes
and litigation and matters involving different fields of
law. Her expertise includes commercial law, contract law,
employment law, matrimonial law, property law and trust
law. Ms. Tong also possessed vast experience on providing
professional advisory services to clients regarding family
wealth and other corporate and commercial transactions,
including but not limited to, initial public offering and
providing professional advice to listed companies on
compliance and secretarial matters.

Ms. Chan Yuen Mui (“Ms. Chan”), aged 41, was
appointed as a Company Secretary of the Company on 15
November 2022. Ms. Chan has over 16 years of experience
in commercial administration and corporate secretarial
fields. Ms. Chan is currently the assistant manager of a
corporate advisory firm in Hong Kong. She is an associate
member of both The Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute and The Chartered Governance Institute in the
United Kingdom. Ms. Chan obtained an Honours Bachelor
of Business Administration degree from Hong Kong Baptist
University and a Master of Corporate Governance degree
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Ms. Chan
served as the company secretary of Gemilang International
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 6163) from May 2019 to December
2020.
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The Directors are pleased to present this annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the financial year ended 31 March 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 35
to the consolidated financial statements.

A fair review of business of the Group during the year
under review, discussion on the key financial performance
indicators of the Group, particulars of important events
affecting the Group that have occurred since the end
of the period under review is provided in the paragraph
headed “Events after the reporting period” on page
113 of this annual report and future development of the
Group are provided in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” from page 6 to page 14 of this
annual report.

Description of the environmental policies and performance,
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations which
have a significant impact on the Group, relationships with
stakeholders and principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group can be found in the paragraphs below.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to creating a successful business
that is not achieved at the expense of the environment.
The Group is dedicated to creating an environmentally
friendly and sustainable operation. The Directors are
not expecting that the business of the Group will have a
significant impact on the environment due to the nature of
its principal businesses. Details on Group’s environmental
policies are set out in the section headed "Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” from page 44 to page 90
of this annual report.
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Compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on
the Group

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of
interior design services to premises including private
residences, corporate offices, service apartments, hotels,
residential clubhouses, show flats and sales galleries in
Hong Kong. The Directors confirm that, during the year
under review and up to the date of this annual report, the
Group has obtained all the registrations and certificates
required for its business operations and had complied in
material respects with all applicable laws and regulations
which have a significant impact on the Group.

Relationships with stakeholders

The Group is committed to operating in a sustainable
manner while balancing the interests of its various
stakeholders including its employees, customers, suppliers,
business partners and the community.

The Group considers the relationship with its employees
is key to sustainable business growth. The Group
is committed to providing all employees a safe and
harassment-free working environment with equal
opportunities in relation to employment, reward
management, training and career development.

As a customer-focused service provider, the Group
considers its customers as one of the most important
stakeholders. The Group is committed to serving its
customers to the best of its ability and continually
elevating the level of service excellence.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The risk management process is integrated into the day-
to-day activities of and is an ongoing process that flows
through the Group.

When performing risk identification, the Group takes into
account internal and external factors including economic,
political, social, technological, environmental and new or
updated strategy of the Group and new regulations, as
well as our stakeholders’ expectation in these aspects. Each
risk identified is analysed on the basis of likelihood and
impact consistent with risk parameters set by the Board.
Action plans are in place to manage risks. Fundamental to
the achievement of our business goal is how the Group
can effectively manage existing and emerging risks in
economic, social and political environment. A description
of the Group's risk factors is shown as below.

REVENUE

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year ended
31 March 2023 is set out in note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND PROFIT DISTRIBUTION

Details of the Group's results for the financial year ended
31 March 2023 are set out in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page
125 of this annual report.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023 (31 March
2022: Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the past five financial years
ended 31 March 2019, 31 March 2020, 31 March 2021,
31 March 2022 and 31 March 2023 are set out on page
244 of this annual report. This summary does not form
part of the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Group.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year under review are
set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements
in this annual report.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at
31 March 2023 are set out in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the
Company during the year under review are set out in note
26 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and
the Company during the year under review are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page
128 and notes 27 and 34 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively, in this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

As at 31 March 2023, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
and the Company’s articles of association, amounted to
approximately HK$94.4 million (31 March 2022: HK$96.7
million).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Group did not make any charitable donations during
the year ended 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022: Nil).
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year under review
and up to the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Liang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lou Yi (resigned on 24 May 2023)
Ms. Yip Hiu Ying (appointed on 28 February 2023)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Tang Chin Ting (appointed on 24 February 2023)
Ms. Tong Yuk Ying Yannie (appointed on 3 March 2023)
Mr. Lee Man Chun

Mr. Luk Chi Shing (resigned on 24 February 2023)

Mr. Zheng Yugiang (resigned on 3 March 2023)

Pursuant to Article 83(3) of the articles of association of
the Company (the “Article(s)”), any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the
first general meeting after his appointment and be subject
to re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed
by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall
hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election. Accordingly, Ms. Yip Hiu Ying, Mr. Tang Chin
Ting and Ms. Tong Yuk Ying Yannie shall retire from office
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the
“2023 AGM"), and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the 2023 AGM.

Pursuant to Article 84 of the articles of association of
the Company (the “Article(s)”), at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or,
if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least
once every three years. Accordingly, Mr. Huang Liang shall
retire from office by rotation at the 2023 AGM, and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the 2023 AGM.
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THE BIOGRAPHY OF THE DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the Directors of the Company
are set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors
and senior management” on pages 91 to 93 of this annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS OR
LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election
at the 2023 AGM has a services contract or a letter of
appointment with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which he shall or may incur
or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of his duty, or supposed
duty, in their respective offices or trusts.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance
cover for Director’s liabilities in respect of legal action
against its Directors arising out of corporate activities.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual written confirmations
from each of Mr. Tang Chin Ting, Mr. Lee Man Chun and
Ms. Tong Yuk Ying Yannie, being all the independent
non-executive Directors as at 31 March 2023, in respect
of their independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Company considers all the independent
non-executive Directors are independent in accordance
with the guidelines set out in the GEM Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2023, so far as is known to any Directors
or chief executive of the Company, the interests or short
positions of the Directors and chief executives of the
Company in any shares (the “Share(s)”), underlying
shares and debenture of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO™)) which would have to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

EERBETHABNRA TR EAHYEEE
ZRE - HEROREEEPOEERER

RIZEZ=F=ZA=+t—H  ARFREZEMRESTHA
BRARAHEMBEER(ERREBEPESTIEE
FRHE G ((TRERBERM ] EXVED) 2B (K&

7)) - HERDREEES  BEAREESKBEK
BIFEXVERSE 7 M 8D BR A G AN A B K B 32 At 2 #E %6 K
R (BERIEFRS RHEKRIA R G XHEEERIR A
BENERNER)  RALHENARARBEELSLPE
EBIE3S2EBAFENELMANESRER @ HiRE
GEM EH#RAIE548F £ 5.67KBMERND 7 KB P
MR MER BT

Interest in Total
Interest in underlying interest in Approximate
shares of shares of shares of  percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest the Company  the Company  the Company  shareholding
RARAR  RADEEE REDH RAEREL
g BHEEE ROFPHNESE  ROPHESE ROPHEES B
(Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 1 and 3)
(PiFEE1) (i EE1) (PHEET) (P 3E1R%3)
Mr. Huang Liang Interest of spouse (Note 2) 159,068,639(L) - 159,068,639(L) 73.87%(L)
BRLE s (fisr2)
Notes: FEE
(1) “L” represents long position in shares or underlying shares (1)  [LIFERARBIRMGH ARG FHEE @ MISHERAR

of the Company and “S" represents short position in
shares or underlying shares of the Company.

(2)  Jun Tai Ting Investment is wholly and beneficially owned
by Ms. Ye Huacong. Under the SFO, Ms. Ye Huacong is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Jun Tai
Ting Investment. Mr. Huang Liang is the spouse of Ms. Ye
Huacong. Mr. Huang Liang is deemed to be interested in
all the Shares in which Ms. Ye Huacong is interested in for
the purpose of the SFO.

(3)  The percentage is calculated on the basis of 215,346,526
Shares in issue as at 31 March 2023.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OF THE COMPANY

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during
the year under review was the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries or associated corporations, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors (including their
respective spouses and children under the age of 18) to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of the shares
or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any of its associated corporations, and none of the
Directors or their respective spouses or children under
the age of 18 had any right to subscribe for shares of the
Company or any of its associated corporations or had
exercised any such right during the year under review.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

On 1 January 2022, an agreement (the “2022 Tenancy
Agreement”) was entered into between BTR (HK)
LIMITED ("BTR HK"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company as tenant, and the Waldorf Holdings
Limited (the “Landlord”) as landlord in respect of the
lease of office premises for a term of twelve months from
1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022 (both days inclusive)
at a monthly rental of HK$293,000 (inclusive of all
government rents and rates and management fee) payable
in advance in cash without any deduction on the first day
of each and every calendar month.

On 1 January 2023, an agreement (the “2023 Tenancy
Agreement”) was entered into between BTR (HK) as
tenant, and the Landlord in respect of the lease of office
premises for a term of twelve months from 1 January
2023 to 31 December 2023 (both days inclusive) at a
monthly rental of HK$293,000 (inclusive of all government
rents and rates and management fee) payable in advance
in cash without any deduction on the first day of each and
every calendar month. During the year ended 31 March
2023, the office rental paid by the Group to the Landlord
amounted to approximately HK$3,516,000 (for the year
ended 31 March 2022: HK$4,011,000).
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AEMERETUMF(ZSE-=FHEHRE) - %48
EWza T -_—F—A—HEE-_Z-_=F+_-A=
+—H(BEEaREMmB) 5B+ A - A1 /%&293,000%8
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Mr. Chan Norman Enrique, a former executive director of
the Company (resigned on 4 March 2022), is interested in
this transaction to the extent that the Landlord is wholly
and beneficially owned by him. For details, please refer
to the announcement of the Company dated 2 January
2023 and the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” of this report.

Save as disclosed above and elsewhere in this annual
report, no Director nor any connected entity of a Director
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company or its
subsidiaries or its holding company was a party at any time
during the year under review.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Board on the basis of their job responsibilities,
work performance, professional experience and prevailing
industry practices.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Board with reference to the recommendations from the
Remuneration Committee, with regard to the Company’s
operation results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme (as
defined below) as an incentive to Directors and eligible
participants. Please refer to the paragraph headed “Share
Option Scheme” on page 106 of this annual report for
details.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five
highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in notes
12 and 13 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively, in this annual report.
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COMPETING INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

As at 31 March 2023, none of the Directors, the
substantial shareholders of the Company nor any of their
respective close associates (as defined under the GEM
Listing Rules) had any interest in a business which has or
may have significant competition with the business of the
Group.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2023, so far as is known to the Directors
and the chief executives of the Company, the interests and
shorts positions of the persons or corporations (other than
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company)
in the shares and underlying shares as recorded in the
register to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO were as follows:

Interests and short positions in the ordinary
shares or underlying ordinary shares of the
Company
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Interest in Total
Interest in underlying interest in Approximate
shares of shares of shares of the  percentage of
Name of shareholder Nature of interest the Company  the Company Company shareholding
N RERTR RAEAH R 1
BRREE L8 ERME RONE:s HEERONER RONEER BARDH
(Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 1) (Notes 1 and 3)
(PiIzE1) (F35E1) (BiFsx1) (HEE1%3)
Hong Kong Jun Tai Ting Beneficial owner 159,068,639(L) - 159,068,639(L) 73.87%(L)
Investment Company Limited (Note 2)
(“Jun Tai Ting Investment”)
BEERERABRARN EREB A2
[ERERE])
Ms. Ye Huacong Interest of controlled 159,068,639(L) - 159,068,639(L) 73.87%(L)
corporation (Note 2)
I8 2+ REGEE R TE2)
Mr. Huang Liang Interest of spouse 159,068,639(L) - 159,068,639(L) 73.87%(L)

ARLE

(Note 2)
EE R
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Notes:

1. “L" represents long position in shares or underlying shares
of the Company and “S" represents short position in
shares or underlying shares of the Company.

2. Jun Tai Ting Investment is wholly and beneficially owned
by Ms. Ye Huacong. Under the SFO, Ms. Ye Huacong is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Jun Tai
Ting Investment. Mr. Huang Liang is the spouse of Ms. Ye
Huacong. Mr. Huang Liang is deemed to be interested in
all the Shares in which Ms. Ye Huacong is interested in for
the purpose of the SFO.

3. The percentage is calculated on the basis of 215,346,526
Shares in issue as at 31 March 2023.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, so far as
is known to the Directors and the chief executive of the
Company, and based on the public records filed on the
website of the Stock Exchange and records kept by the
Company, no other persons or corporations (other than
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company)
had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 30 July
2012 (the “Share Option Scheme"”) for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to the eligible
participants who contributed to the growth of the Group
which expired on 29 July 2022.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, no share options
were granted, exercised, cancelled, lapsed or forfeited.

As at 31 March 2023, there were no outstanding share
options.

1. Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
provide the Company with a flexible and effective
means of incentivising, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to the
Participants (as defined below).

2. Participants of the Share Option Scheme
and the basis of determining the eligibility
of the participants

The Board may, subject to and in accordance with
the provisions of the Share Option Scheme and
the GEM Listing Rules, in its absolute discretion,
invite (i) all full-time employees, directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) and part-time
employees with weekly working hours of 10 hours
and above, of the Group; (i) substantial shareholders
of each member of the Group; (iii) associates of
the directors and substantial shareholders of any
member of the Group; (iv) trustee of any trust
pre-approved by the Board; and (v) any advisor
(professional or otherwise), consultant, distributor,
supplier, agent, customer, joint venture partner,
service provider to the Group, whom the Board
considers, in its sole discretion, has contributed or
contributes to the Group (the “Participant(s)”)
to take up options to subscribe for Shares at the
Exercise Price (as defined below).
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Maximum number of Shares

As approved by the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 7 August 2020, the maximum
number of shares of the Company in respect of
which options may be granted under the refreshed
Scheme Mandate Limit is 122,105,263 shares
of HK$0.0001 each. Following an extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 31
August 2021, the share consolidation became
effective on 2 September 2021 and the number of
options available for future grants is 24,421,052 of
HK$0.0005 each, which represents approximately
11.34% of the Company’s shares in issue as at 31
March 2023 and the date of this annual report. The
Share Option Scheme expired on 29 July 2022.

Subject to the GEM Listing Rules, the overall limit on
the number of Shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company
must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the relevant
class of Shares in issue from time to time. No options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme or
any other share option schemes of the Company if
this will result in this limit being exceeded.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Unless approved by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting and according to the
manner prescribed by the provisions of the Share
Option Scheme and the GEM Listing Rules, the total
number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each Participant
or grantee (including exercised and outstanding
options) in any twelve (12)-month period up to the
date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in
issue.
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Further, any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive
Director of the Company, or any of their respective
associates, would result in the securities issued and
to be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person
in the 12-month period up to and including the date
of such grant:

(@) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the
relevant class of securities in issue; and

(b)  (where the securities are listed on the Stock
Exchange), having an aggregate value, based
on the closing price of the securities at the
date of each grant, in excess of HK$5 million,

such further grant of options must be approved by
shareholders of the Company. The Company must
send a circular to the shareholders. The grantee,
his associates and all core connected persons of the
Company must abstain from voting in favour at such
general meeting.

Offer period and amount payable for
options

An offer of the grant of an option shall be made
to Participants in writing (and unless so made shall
be invalid) in such form as the Board may from
time to time determine and shall remain open for
acceptance by the Participant concerned for a period
of 3 business days from the date upon which it is
made provided that no such offer shall be open for
acceptance after the earlier of the 10th anniversary
of the Adoption Date or the termination of the
Share Option Scheme or the Participant to whom
such offer is made has ceased to be a Participant.

A non-refundable nominal consideration of HK$1.00
is payable by the grantee upon acceptance of an
option. An option shall be deemed to have been
accepted when the duplicate letter comprising
acceptance of the option duly signed by the
Participant together with the said consideration of
HK$1.00 is received by the Company.
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Minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised

Unless prescribed in the offer, there is no specific
requirement that an option must be held for any
minimum period before it can be exercised and there
is no specific performance target which must be
achieved before options can be exercised stipulated
under the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

The terms of the Share Option Scheme provide that
in granting options under the Share Option Scheme,
the Board may offer to grant any options subject
to such terms and conditions in relation to the
minimum period of the options to be held and/or
the performance criteria to be satisfied before such
options can be exercised and/or any other terms as
the Board may determine in its absolute discretion.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price (the "Exercise Price”) shall be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion
and notified to each grantee and will be no less
than the higher of:- (i) the closing price of the
Shares on the Stock Exchange as stated in the daily
guotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date
on which an offer is made to an Participant (the
“Offer Date"”), (ii) the average closing price of the
Shares on the Stock Exchange as stated in the daily
quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the Offer Date,
and (iii) the nominal value of the Shares at the time
of exercise of the option.

Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall continue in force
for the period commencing from the Adoption
Date and expiring at the close of business on the
10th anniversary thereof, after which period no
further options will be issued but the provisions of
the Share Option Scheme shall remain in force to
the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise
of any options granted or exercised prior thereto or
otherwise as may be required in accordance with the
provisions of the Share Option Scheme.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, no share
options were granted, exercised, cancelled, lapsed
or forfeited. As at 31 March 2023, there is no
outstanding share option.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in this report, other than the share
options granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme (as
defined below), no equity-linked agreements were entered
into by the Company during the year or subsisted at the
end of the year ended 31 March 2023.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the aggregate
revenue attributable to the Group’s largest customer
accounted for approximately 20.8% (31 March 2022:
25.1%) of the Group’s total revenue for the year and
the five largest customers taken together accounted for
approximately 49.2% (31 March 2022: 61.8%) of the
Group's total revenue.

Due to the nature of the business, the Group does not
have any suppliers of materials. During the year ended
31 March 2023, the cost of services of the Group mainly
consisted of staff costs directly attributable to projects.
The Group produced most of the design drawings by
its own in-house professional designers. Subcontracting
costs accounted for approximately 23.7% (31 March
2022: 22.9%) of cost of services of the Group. Drafting
subcontractors may be engaged by the Group for its
project depending on the specific project progress and the
manpower available to the Group.

Save as disclosed in this annual report and to the best
knowledge of Directors, none of the Directors, their
associates, or any shareholders of the Company (which to
the best knowledge of the Directors own more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital) has any interest
in any of the Group’s five largest subcontractors or
customers during the year ended 31 March 2023.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Landlord is a company incorporated in Hong Kong
and is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Chan Norman
Enrique, a former executive Director (resigned on 4 March
2022) and former director of a significant subsidiary of the
Company (resigned on 19 April 2022) and the Landlord is
principally engaged in the holding and leasing of Flats B, C,
D, E, Fand G on 15th Floor and private parking space Nos.
P10 and P11 on 3rd Floor of Montery Plaza at 15 Chong
Yip Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong (the “Premises”) for the
period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022 (2022
Tenancy Agreement”).

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company
dated 2 January 2022 in relation to the 2022 Tenancy
Agreement in relation to the lease of the Premises for
the term from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022.
As the lease of the Premises expired on 31 December
2022, after arm’s length negotiation, on 1 January 2023,
BTR HK as the tenant and the Landlord entered into
the 2023 Tenancy Agreement in relation to the lease of
Premises for a term of twelve months from 1 January
2023 to 31 December 2023 (both days inclusive) at a
rent of HK$293,000 per calendar month (inclusive of
all government rents and rates and management fee).
Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
2 January 2023 for the details of the 2023 Tenancy
Agreement.

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the maximum annual
aggregate amounts payable (the “Annual Caps”) by BTR
HK to the Landlord, which are determined with reference
to the rent payable by BTR HK to the Landlord under
the 2022 Tenancy Agreement and the 2023 Tenancy
Agreement, are as follows:

EFTEREBAMKILZ AR AAIRMTESER 2=
ZHE=ANBBE)REARF —HERBEARIBES
(RZZEZZFHATNAFERE SE2EEn
B MEZTEFEXEFAREERBNEREEISRE
FHMEIZISEBNITAZEB - C D E- FRGE3IBMHILA
FEMEPIORPIF(ZENEN) (BT -__F—A—
Az - —F+_-A=+—HHHE) ((ZB==FHE1%
EA)E

BIRMAARBHA-_S-_—F—A—HZA A% AR
BN E_—_F— A HE-ZE-_—_F+=-A=+—
AEfEEZEYEy "S- FHEWME - BRRE
WMEZROR T - —F+-_A=+—HEH  &1QF
EEE R-ZE-_=—F—A—H BTRHKU{EAMHF,)H
¥FFIU_T_—FHERSE  NABBEHEEZEYD
¥ B E-_=F—A-B&ZZ-_=F+-A=+—
R(eEeRMmAB)AH+=EA r H& /EE H293,000
Br(REREMALEMUANERE) A T =
FHERRIFHE  B2HARAAPAE-ZS_=F—
)5] EZ/‘\:I: °

BE-_Z-_=—4F=A=+—HIL%E > BTIR HKEff 7%
FreaFEEsBE(EELR]  £2%BTR HKIRE =
T FRERELN S —FHERERENTEETY
HemED)WOT :

Year ended

31 March 2023
BE-B-=F
ZSA=+—BHLEHFE
HK$

BT

2022 Tenancy Agreement
2023 Tenancy Agreement
Annual Caps

FEER
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The Landlord is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr.
Chan Norman Enrique, who is a former executive Director
(resigned on 4 March 2022) and former director of
a significant subsidiary of the Company (resigned on
19 April 2022). The Landlord is therefore a connected
person of the Company. Accordingly, the 2023 Tenancy
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder
constitutes a continuing connected transaction on the part
of the Company under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

Given that more than one of the applicable percentage
ratios (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) in respect of
the Annual Caps under the 2023 Tenancy Agreement
(as aggregated with the Previous Tenancy Agreement
and the Option Notice) are less than 5%, the 2023
Tenancy Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder is subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules but is exempt from the circular, independent
financial advice and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above and elsewhere in this annual
report, during the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group
did not enter into any connected transactions which
required reporting, annual review, announcements and/or
independent shareholders’ approval under the GEM Listing
Rules.

Payments of emoluments to the Directors pursuant to
their respective service contracts or letters of appointment
with the Company were exempt connected transactions
under Rule 20.93 of the GEM Listing Rules while payments
of emoluments/consultancy fee to senior management do
not constitute connected transactions under Chapter 20
of the GEM Listing Rules.
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ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

All the independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the above disclosed continuing connected transaction for
the year ended 31 March 2023 and confirmed that the
continuing connected transaction has been entered into:

o in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

. on normal commercial terms; and

o according to the relevant agreement(s) governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s independent auditor was engaged
to report on the continuing connected transaction in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
independent auditor has issued an unqualified letter
containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transaction in accordance with Rule
20.54 of the GEM Listing Rules. A copy of the independent
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

The Directors confirmed that the Company has complied
with the requirements of Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules in respect of all of its continuing connected
transactions.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2023 are disclosed
in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
Details of any related party transactions which constitute
continuing connected transactions not exempted under
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules are disclosed in the
section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions”
above.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2023
and up to the date of this report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year under review, other than the service
agreements or the letters of appointment of the Directors,
no management and administrative contracts regarding
the entire or any major businesses of the Company have
been entered into or have existed.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles and there is no restriction against such rights
under the law of Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available and to the
best knowledge, information and belief of the Directors,
the Company has maintained a sufficient public float as
required under the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year
ended 31 March 2023.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There have been no material events occurring after the
reporting period and up to the date of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principal corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out on pages 15 to 43 of
this annual report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rules
5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules and with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review
the Company’s financial information and oversee the
Company'’s financial reporting system, risk management
and internal control procedures. The full terms of reference
setting out details of duties of the Audit Committee are
in compliance with the CG Code and are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee comprises of three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Tang Chin Ting,
Mr. Lee Man Chun and Ms. Tong Yuk Ying Yannie.
The chairman is Mr. Tang Chin Ting, who holds the
appropriate professional qualifications as required under
Rules 5.05(2) and 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The annual results of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2023 have been audited. The Audit Committee has
reviewed the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023 and is
of the opinion that the preparation of such statements
complied with the applicable accounting standards,
the requirements under the GEM Listing Rules and
other applicable legal requirements, and that adequate
disclosures had been made.

AUDITOR

RSM Hong Kong has resigned as the auditor of the
Company with effect from 31 March 2023. The
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2023 were audited by the Company’s independent
auditor, LIF & Wong CPA Limited (“LIF & WONG"). LIF &
WONG will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of LIF
& WONG as auditor of the Company will be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board
Hephaestus Holdings Limited

Huang Liang
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 23 June 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

18 M B BED |

LIF & WONG CPA LIMITED

EEEEAMEHEMERLDA

To the shareholders of
Hephaestus Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Hephaestus Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 125 to 243, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2023, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the "HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.
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14/F, Harbour Commercial Building, 122-124 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong
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& +85228518788 & +85228512626

= info@lif.com.hk

ERERBRAG 202223 F F W

115



116

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B AR

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the "Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. The key audit matters we identified are
recognition of revenue from interior design and execution
services and estimate provision of expected credit losses
("ECL") for trade receivables and contract assets:
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Key audit matter

HREELER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANBERNUEEERERER

Recognition of revenue from interior design and
execution services

ERKE EARTREITIRE KA

Refer to Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements
FRBIF AT BREN 6 -

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of
interior design and execution services. During the year
ended 31 March 2023, apart from certain contracts in
which the Group bills a fixed amount for each period of
services provided (revenue recognised in the amount to
which the Group has a right to invoice), revenue from
interior design and execution services amounting to
approximately HK$35,445,000 was recognised over time
using an input method. If the Group cannot reasonably
measure the outcome of a contract (for example, in the
early stages) but expects to recover the costs incurred
in satisfying the performance obligation, revenue is
recognised to the extent of costs incurred.
EEBETIENFREZTARALATRSG -BE-Z
T=F=A=t+—HLEFE K BEEERREHRE
HRWRETENE TAaOWMAR EEEFEL A
BEMNSEER)I - KB ENR LATTIRIEHIIA
#)35,445,0008 L2 & BIRAERER R - i &
SEAREAEFEANNER(INEHRZER) - HEH
AIREIsEKR BT ERMELNKRAE  AIGUEES
RS PR TER UL A o

Our procedures in relation to this matter included:

BB FEENEF R

o Understanding management’s process in relation
to the estimation on total budgeted costs and
assessing the inherent risk of material misstatement
by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty
and other inherent risk factors;
THREEEBBMAFHERERRNNE - WiEB
ZRMAATEEREREMERRBRERE - AT
fhEREREA A E AR

o Evaluating management’s estimation of revenue
from interior design and execution services, on a
sample basis, by:

AR AT AZ B 2 B B 2R B E N RRET RIT IR UR
ABEE > TR

- Examining interior design contracts for agreed
contract sum and any variations;
BREREMEANSERERNEHNEARNR
AL

- Agreeing total budgeted costs to approved
budget;
ZRERTEER AR HETEE

- Obtaining an understanding from the Group's
key project team members about the contract
terms and the project status of selected
contracts to evaluate the reasonableness of
the basis of the estimation of total budgeted
costs and the actual costs incurred to date;
°t BEEEFZEBEBKE THEAERK
MEBRTESQMIEBARRE - ST hEHETE

ERAEENSBMRESEEENERK

i
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Key audit matter

BREELER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANBERNIEEERERER

The recognition of revenue from interior design and
execution services involves significant management
judgement in estimating total budgeted costs and in
determining at which point the outcome of a contract
can be measured reliably such that it is appropriate to
recognise profit.

ERK B ERNR LATRENHBAR G EFEE X
AREEEAFETEGHNERUB LR E HERE T
BV EL - P R ERE IR E A -

- Comparing the historical actual profit margin
to those budget to assess the quality of
management's forecasting process;
HEBEERMBXREZERE - AT EHE
BEFEARENEE

- Performing substantive testing on costs
incurred to date;
MIESEEENKIETERILAH

- Testing the accuracy of the calculation of the
progress of performance, revenue and profit
recognition for selected projects;

AR ETHEBNFEBRAEE - WA
MHER B LERE ML

- Discussing the project status with
management for explanations of fluctuations
in margins and changes in budgeted costs;
HEE IR E S SR TE B AR AR R N R B 2
FAEXAEH

- Corroborating management’s explanations
through the examination of agreements and
correspondence with customers;
FRREHERETFBAERS FER
[ZHARRE

- Taking into account of any significant changes
in circumstances and other relevant conditions
in relation to management’s estimation of
revenue from interior design and execution
services between the reporting date and the
date of the auditor’s report; and
ERMEAMEZEAMMmE D REERE R
IR B ERRE RATRBHKRA GBS
TR E A AR ) (E R E R & ¢ [

- Reviewing the appropriateness of the
disclosure in the consolidated financial
statements.

EEHRAMBHRRABERENGENM -
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Key audit matter

HREELER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANBERNUEEERERER

Estimate provision of ECL for trade receivables and
contract assets

EZRUFMBERENEENAREEERREFGT

Refer to Notes 19 and 20 to the consolidated financial
statements

EREEGR A RN 19K20 -

At 31 March 2023, the carrying amounts of trade
receivables and contract assets are approximately
HK$11,392,000 (net of loss allowance for expected credit
losses of approximately HK$830,000) and approximately
HK$18,136,000 (net of loss allowance for expected
credit losses of approximately HK$102,000), respectively.
MRZBEZ=F=A=+—RH EHRWREREGHNE
ERREED RIA/A11,392,0008 T (HKREBEEE
1B B3 1R 1 £5830,000/8 7T) K 4918,136,0007% 7T (1B
TR BB RN EEREL102,000/87T) -

Our procedures in relation to this matter included:

BABREEENEF R

o Obtaining an understanding of key process on
how the management estimates the ECL of trade
receivables and contract assets including the
individual assessment on significant balances and
the credit-impaired trade receivables and contract
assets;
THREBEMIEIRERERANEETALHE
EFEBENEZRET  BRUEREHRRCBLER
ERERE 5 EUEIA K& £ & ZE R E RIS

o Testing the integrity of information used by

management, including trade receivables ageing
analysis as at 31 March 2023, on a sample basis,
by comparing individual items in the analysis with
the relevant invoices and/or other supporting
documents;
BB MFOMERNEE BEBERRHHEM
XEXHETHE MRS EREEMAERD
RN BREFERFER-_T_=F=A=
T—BERE DT

o Challenging management’s basis and judgment
in determining credit loss allowance on trade
receivables and contract assets as at 31 March
2023, including their identification of credit-
impaired trade receivables and contract assets, the
reasonableness of management’s grouping of the
remaining trade debtors into different categories,
and the basis of estimated loss rates applied in each
category (with reference to historical default rates
and forward-looking information);
EREEEEETEIRURBERANEER
Z_=FZA=Z+T-HANGEEFRRBRIOELE
Ry BREEEHCEAFEERENESRE
WHRIEREHNEENHZD - EBESHTEREER
FOKTRERNNEEY  UAREARZERS
A EEENELE(EL2EBEEDERAELE
£
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Key audit matter

BREELER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANBERNIEEERERER

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the management of the Group estimates the
amount of lifetime ECL of trade receivables and contract
assets individually for certain debtors with credit-
impaired and/or collectively through grouping of various
debtors that have similar loss patterns, after considering
on ageing, repayment history and/or past due status of
respective trade receivables and assigning credit rating
with reference to external credit rating assessment.
Estimated loss rates are with reference to external
valuer’s information and are adjusted for forward-
looking information that is reasonable and supportable
available without undue costs or effort. In addition, trade
receivables and contract assets that are credit-impaired
are assessed for ECL individually. The loss allowance
amount of the credit-impaired trade receivables and
contract assets is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows.

MR MR TAKE - BEEEEEELE
BARRIE 2 W FEM BRI - @A E R SR

B W2EIREEFLFEME TEEFRE &
shE THREERENRRE LR R EEinGEB
K EARLEBREXNTRER D E)HE SR IE
RANEBEMNZHAMEEBERSRETMHE - @A
EBREXTDESEINBEEMOERSFE - LAGER
SMBANBBZRALE HATA EFH AT EER
ETHE - WHN ESEUHDBLEEERENES
RURERANEE@EN G EEREERE 2%
EEERENEZREFERANEENEREES
BMOREAEREEEMGH ARREREREZHENE
BETE -

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the external valuation specialist
appointed by management of the Group;
HEHEEEEEBZENIIBEEZEZRAK
TR KRB

o Involving valuation specialist to evaluate the
appropriateness of the valuation methodology
adopted, the reasonableness of assumptions and
key parameter, including loss rates and forward-
looking information applied by the management of
the Group; and
EHEZR2EAGAAGERENES T - &
REEEUERBAR2E  BEASEEREERER
REEERATEEER &

o Evaluating the disclosures regarding the impairment
assessment of trade receivables and contract
assets in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

AR AN BERENTREBRE I ERRARERE
WEEREERIHEE -
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OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2022 were audited by another
auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those
statements on 28 June 2022.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
IR BEN RS

SEBE_ZT-__F-A=1+-BLEFENGEEMHK
BRI »— B IRBEDEX E%?%(Emﬁ_v__i/\
AT N\BHZEV BRI D ABRREER

BERAEFAHHEMENAS - BN BREFHRAN
AR BETBRGEMHRE MR MNZREMERS -

BAESEEMBRRNERL PREEMER - IR
TEZEEMERBEREMTEANZE G

REMEEEMBERENEZM S - BMINEEEHE
HMER  EBER  ZEEEMERETHESTE
BERABMEEZBEPFATHNERNFES KEBEK
EXRALFESERERERANER - EREMEHITH
TE - MREMBREMERFEE REREM - B
FEREZSE - HEIE BRMSEFEMAHRSE -

EERAEERGEMBRRARKEZEM

BERAEZARBEEEQAMASRMZBEMBRE
HAIRBABRBGIZBEBERERHEEENRF256
REUBRE  REEERRREGAMBRERAMLE
ZEBIER] - AESR S MRS R N FE R ERF S AR
MBHz EAHRRA -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B AR

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of are responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

Hephaestus Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022/23
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BB RS

ERBEBETENETEZNERET  RAERTEH
EHE - R TEXIEREE - R

Al N RF S R ERRF SRR T B 2R A M M R 17
EBAHEREUAH AR - BREL SRR R RAT
BZERF  BERELEENBEREERBMANE
RIEHER - HRAFFAIRSRFBR - BE  BER
EIR - ERRE - SORBERAEESIZ £ BikR
BE 3E 3R R R FF M B B A0 B2 K S8 AR PRt e [l B R
BEMAERMEBNERERBANRAR RS

TREEZABNAREES - UREHEENEZE
o BEMAEIEE SREARTHEFNEREERER
BR -

SHEE FRAR BRI IR @it
BB BB & Rl -

HEZRAFBELLSTERNREEIELER -
RIBFIEDMNEZRE  BTLLFERFEHENE
MEBHEATHEENE - EMAegsy %M
BB ERNELERRE - WRBMIRBR/ETE
BEATHEERE - AIARZHBERE T IRF LB
EVBHRRPOEERE BEAHENKETE
AMERTHMMER - RIS REERN ZBEN RS
B IEPTES OV ERRE A - RRFESERA

B BERETREFELE -

HEREMBRERNBEIHIN BB LRAR
(BREEE)  UWREEHMBHREARE A A RN
FIRIBERH K EIE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B BN

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Wong Wah.

LIF & Wong CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
23 June 2023

Practising Certificate number: P06516
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GREEEREMEZEKRER

Year ended 31 March 2023
BT —F=-HA=+—HIFZ

Notes 2023 2022
B —E-=HF —T——
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Revenue PN 6 35,490 51,725
Production costs HEEKA (21,255) (24,088)
Gross profit EF| 14,235 27,637
Other income Embug A 7 1,363 48
Other gains and losses, net Hob e k&8 8 (1,471) 368
Administrative expenses TR (16,895) (21,125)
(Loss)/Profit from operations K (BB BR (2,768) 6,928
Share of profit of an associate FE(E — &S R alm A 17 18 -
Finance costs BA TSR AR 9 (22) (1,197)
(Loss)/Profit before tax BB AT (B518), s A 10 (2,772) 5,731
Income tax FriS7 11 (280) (1,580)
(Loss)/Profit and total FER(EE), R
comprehensive (expense)/ 2EEAX) WEEE
income for the year (3,052) 4,151
(Loss)/Earnings per share SR(ER), B HK cents HK cents
B Rl

Basic ESYIN 14 (1.42) 1.85
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR R R

As 31 March 2023
RZFE—_=F=H=+—H

Notes 2023 2022
BT —E=-= —E-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
THxT FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BE REE 15 2,136 361
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 16 549 929
Investment in an associate R—EBE T NEE 17 11,218 -
Deferred tax assets RIEFHIBE E 25 16 48
13,919 1,338
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Financial assets at fair value through B BERIZAFEFE 2
profit or loss (“FVTPL") cHEE(EBRBHZIR
ATEFEZEREE] 18 2,319 8,209
Contract assets BHEE 19 18,136 19,962
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E b IE 20 14,784 6,184
Current tax assets BNEAR A& B 2,182 723
Bank and cash balances IRTTMIR S ek 21 5,076 22,643
42,497 57,721
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Contract liabilities AHEE 19 6,293 4,827
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk E A FIE 22 4,309 4,440
Amount due to a director R —RESFHA 23 260 -
Current tax liabilities BEAR IR B & = 980
Lease liabilities HEARE 24 397 386
11,259 10,633
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 31,238 47,088
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBEE
LIABILITIES 45,157 48,426
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBAE
Lease liabilities HEAE 24 180 578
Deferred tax liabilities RIER A B E 25 181 -
361 578
NET ASSETS EEFE 44,796 47,848
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Ra AR R
As 31 March 2023
R-EFE-—_=F=H=+—H
Notes 2023 2022
B 5 —E=-= —EF-=
HK$"000 HK$'000
FET FHET
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARR#E
Share capital N 26 108 108
Reserves S 27 44,688 47,740
TOTAL EQUITY B 44,796 47,848

Approved by the Board of Directors on 23 June 2023 and
are signed on its behalf by:

HUANG Liang
)
Director

EE

CERGN _T_=FNAT=ZBEHERBERERE

YIP Hiu Ying
-3
Director

EFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEZ2EXR

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE_ T _—F=-A=1—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RATERNER
Capital

Share Share Treasury  redemption Other  Accumulated Total
capital premium shares reserve reserves losses equity
e Rt i EERS REREGHE Rt ZitE# EniE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL ThL i T Fir Fhn TEL

(Note26) ~ (Note 27((i)) ~ (Note 26(a)  (Note 27(bfii)) ~ (Note 27(hfii))

(k2e)  (Rarnol)  (Mfskoel@)  (Bsk27bGi)  (REE27(0i)
At 1 April 2021 R-E--£MB-A 122 156,179 - - (68,482) (33,182) 54,637

Total comprehensive income ERNZENREE
for the year - - - - - 4,151 4,151
Repurchase of shares RirEE - - (10,886) - - - (10,836)
Share repurchase expenses FhEERA - - (45) - - - (45)
Cancelation of shares it (14) (10,940) 10,931 14 - - )
Changes in equity for the year ~ EREREH (14) (10,940) - 14 - 4,151 (6,789)
At 31 March 2022 R=8==§ZAzt-8 08 145239 - 4 B8 ) 48k
At 1 April 2022 R-B-ZEMB-A 108 145,239 - 14 (68,482) (29,031) 47,848
Total comprehensive expense EREEELEE

for the year - - - - - (3,052) (3,052)
At 31 March 2023 RZB-=%=B=1-A 108 145,239 - 14 (68,482) (32,083) 44,79
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
REBHERER

Year ended 31 March 2023
BT —F=-HA=+—HIFZ

2023 2022
—E=-= —ZE=-=
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING RETHELENRERE
ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/Profit before tax BRB AT (&518), i A (2,772) 5,731
Adjustments for: AT SBEELRAE
Interest income FBUA (38) (2)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and LEMZE - BE KR EWEE
equipment (6) -
Reversal of other payables E i fE < FRIERE [ - (746)
Interest expenses FEFEZ 22 1,197
Fair value loss on financial assets at BRBRIEATFEFEZ
fair value through profit or loss TREEZATEEE 489 37
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEYE - BER&EEE
equipment - 52
Depreciation of property, plant and Wz - BEREHEITE
equipment 540 354
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 380 3,477
Impairment loss on trade receivables and B HRYHIEREHNEERE
contract assets izl 702 230
Share of profit of an associate FE(E— M E R ala A (18) -
Operating (loss)/profit before working capital &i8& & &8I & (E518),/
changes izl (701) 10,330
Decrease in contract cost assets B HNANE ER D - 122
Decrease/(Increase) in contract assets BHEERD, (G 1,724 (5,086)
(Increase)/Decrease in trade and other Z 5 REAMEWFIAE L),
receivables DR (9,200) 3,819
Increase in financial assets at FVTPL BEREREATETE
T RE AN (2,793) -
Increase/(Decrease) in contract liabilities BHEEENCRD) 1,466 (291)
(Decrease)/Increase in trade and other B 5 RhEmESZIE (R,
payables #n (131) 906
Cash (used in)/generated from operations KEFETR)EENE (9,635) 9,800
Income tax (paid)/refund (BANEEBIFTEH (2,506) 1,310
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM &= EE (FTH),E4EW
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REFE (12,141) 11,110

zEERARAT 2022235 5% |29
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mEBRERER
Year ended 31 March 2023
A E A=+ —HIFE

2023 2022
—E-= —=E-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZTEHEENEERE
Proceed from disposal of financial assets HEBBBERIEZATETE
at FVTPL ERMEEMGRIE 8,194 -
Interest received EHE 38 2
Proceed from disposal of property, HEWE - BERKEMERIA
plant and equipment 7 -
Acquisition of investment in an associate W —REEE QA RMNIEE (11,200) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment ~ BEE®% - E k&E (2,316) (178)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REZHMANR S FH
ACTIVITIES (5,277) (176)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING RMETHELENRESRE
ACTIVITIES
Advance from a director RE—BEFHERK 260 -
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEAE (387) (3,487)
Interest element of lease payments MEN 2z F BE 1D (22) (53)
Interest paid for bank loans RITER 2 ETFE - (1,132)
Repayment of bank loans BERITER - (36,919)
Payment for repurchase of shares B 1 B Bl 2 A~ 5% - (10,886)
Share repurchase expenses paid BT R B (B A 2 - (45)
Share cancellation expenses paid BT T SR 2 - 9)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING RMETEHMANR S FHE
ACTIVITIES (149) (52,531)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERBEEEYRDFE
EQUIVALENTS (17,567) (41,597)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATTHE REWNZRERBEEEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 22,643 64,240
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT ATTHE RERZRERBLEEY
END OF YEAR 5,076 22,643
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH HeRRESEENIN
EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances RIT IR G 56k 5,076 22,643
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Hephaestus Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its shares are
listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The registered
office of the Company is at Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1=1111, Cayman Islands and the principal place
of business of the Company is at Room 1602, 16/F,
Park Commercial Centre, 180 Tung Lo Wan Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

The Company together with its subsidiaries (as set
out in Note 35), hereinafter collectively referred to as
the “Group”, is principally engaged in the provision
of interior design and execution services.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, as at
31 March 2023, Hong Kong Jun Tai Ting Investment
Company Limited (“Jun Tai Ting Investment”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,
is the immediate and ultimate holding company and
Ms. Ye Huacong is the ultimate controlling party of
the Company.

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2023 are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$") and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand (“HK$'000") except when
otherwise indicated.

B B SRR Y R

Year ended 31 March 2023
BT —F=-HA=+—HIFZ

—RER
EBRERERAR(RRADAFAEEFS MK
Vo HBROREEBBERSMBER LA (TR
FRDGEMETT o« AR 2T M P =B Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands * i A 2A &) 2
FTELEM B REB I EZ IR EE 1805 B4R
ZEHL161E1602% o

AR BEREMNE R B (ERHESS - TXHRER
[(A&EM])EERFREZART RATRS

RRBEFERR RZT_=F=A=+—H &
BERERERRAB(ERERE]D (—HRE
BRZESEMKLZ AR RAAR BRI
BRERAT - M #RLERARAZREER
H o

BE_T_=-F-"A=t+—HUEFEZHEAMHK
HBERUET(RBTDES - RIERBHA - A
SRONBESEOZTH(FER]) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4= A

ARA TSR MR

Year

Bx

2.

Heph

ended 31 March 2023
CEC=F=HA=1—HIFFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the
following amendments to HKFRSs issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “"HKICPA") for the first time,
which are mandatorily effective for the annual
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2022 for the
preparation of the financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3

BB B wEENEIRASETAR)
Amendment to HKFRS 16

AR BWEERE 165 (1BETA)
Amendments to HKAS 16
EREFERE 165 (EFTA)
Amendments to HKAS 37
BEREGFEREI7THRUEETA)
Amendments to HKFRSs

AU B mEER(EFTAR)
Accounting Guideline 5 (Revised)
ERHBEIFE 55 (25T

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in
the current year has had no material effect on the
Group's financial performance and positions for the
current and prior periods and/or on the disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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2.

FEREEIERMBRELER(FBYE
WE A

RAEFERBERNEETERUBREE
Al

RAFE - REBERRMBHERFED ERERA
THEEGTMAS(FERBEHAAE)RMALN
—T-_FMA-BRZRFAENFERER L
MEEIER] BB HHREER

Reference to the Conceptual Framework
HELSIER IR

Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021
“E-—FRNA=TRZENCovid-19t8E S TR
Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use
M BE K&iE - BUE BRI SRR

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
BRIEEH - BITEHHEAR

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020
“E-N\FE_Z_TFEFEUBREENFELCE
Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations
HREAEH NS H SRR

RAFEERRET BBV BREENHAEER
AEAE RBE SRR P BRI KA K&, E P %
EHRAMBHRRNBEBELEEATE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)
New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 (including the October 2020 and
February 2022 amendments to HKFRS 17)

BRMBHREENE 7R (BEEEVBRE
HAFNTRHN T _TF+ABIIAK

— = — —

BT F = AERIA)
Amendments to HKFRS 16
BB BWEERZFE 169 (5] )

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

BB HHREERF 10N R BB ER
EVETACHIE)

Amendments to HKAS 1

ARG ERZE1RUBETA)

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised)

BEBREEST(ESE])

Amendments to HKAS 1

BB ERZEIRUEFTA)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

ARG ERE 1R RE BN BRE
B EF 29U ETA)

Amendments to HKAS 8

BB ERZESTHE (EFTA)

Amendments to HKAS 12

8

BB GRTERIFE 125 (BFTA)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2023.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined.

Except for the amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of all other new and amendments
to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

RE I ERER MR
Year ended 31 March 2023

BE-F-=F=A=+—AULFE
2. ERAKEBAIEEMEBEREEN(EEME
wEER ] @)

C M B 1 R AE KA HTR] RAEEFT BB M
HRE%ER

AREBE W AR A T 52 B8 # R AEREFR]
RAEIERT BB G HRELER :

[ A

Insurance Contracts '

RERA A

Lease liability in a Sale and Leaseback 2

EiRADGHHEERE?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture 3

REEHREBENFANEELEZHANEELERTE?

[H==JVAN =

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 2

BESERRENIFRE?

Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause ?

ERAHBZREREEGRNTERERN DA

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants 2

MERERIEREB AE?

Disclosure of Accounting Policies'
EHHENRE

Definition of Accounting Estimates !

FrtAETER

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising for a
Single Transaction '

BE-QXHELNEENMNBEHEBNRIERE

1

RIEB-_=F—-A-BRZEMENFERRE

R o

2 RZEZWNF-—A—A 2 EFARNFEEHBE
f'yo

3 RETBEHIZ2EHENFEEHMER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4= A

ARA TSR MR

Year

Bx

2.

Heph

ended 31 March 2023
CEC=F=HA=1—HIFFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements and HKAS 28 Investments in Associates
and Joint Venture deal with situations where there is
a sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. Specifically, the
amendments state that gains or losses resulting
from the loss of control of a subsidiary that does not
contain a business in a transaction with an associate
or a joint venture that is accounted for using the
equity method, are recognised in the parent’s profit
or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’
interests in that associate or joint venture. Similarly,
gains and losses resulting from the remeasurement
of investments retained in any former subsidiary (that
has become an associate or a joint venture that is
accounted for using the equity method) to fair value
are recognised in the former parent’s profit or loss
to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in
the new associate or joint venture.

The application of the amendments is not expected
to have significant impact on the financial position
and performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of
Accounting Policies

HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the
term “significant accounting policies” with “material
accounting policy information”. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s
financial statements, it can reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the
basis of those financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of
Accounting Policies (continued)

The amendments also clarify that accounting
policy information may be material because of the
nature of the related transactions, other events or
conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial.
However, not all accounting policy information
relating to material transactions, other events or
conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses to
disclose immaterial accounting policy information,
such information must not obscure material
accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements (the “Practice Statement”) is also
amended to illustrate how an entity applies the
“four-step materiality process” to accounting policy
disclosures and to judge whether information about
an accounting policy is material to its financial
statements. Guidance and examples are added to
the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments is not expected
to have significant impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group but may affect the
disclosures of the Group's significant accounting
policies. The impacts of application, if any, will be
disclosed in the Group’s future consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4= A

ARA TSR MR

Year ended 31 March 2023

Bx

2.

CEC=F=HA=1—HIFFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of
Accounting Estimates

The amendments define accounting estimates as
“monetary amounts in financial statements that
are subject to measurement uncertainty”. An
accounting policy may require items in financial
statements to be measured in a way that involves
measurement uncertainty — that is, the accounting
policy may require such items to be measured at
monetary amounts that cannot be observed directly
and must instead be estimated. In such a case, an
entity develops an accounting estimate to achieve
the objective set out by the accounting policy.
Developing accounting estimates involves the use
of judgements or assumptions based on the latest
available, reliable information.

In addition, the concept of changes in accounting
estimates in HKAS 8 is retained with additional
clarifications.

The application of the amendments is not
expected to have significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R
Year ended 31 March 2023
HE—FE-—=—F=HA=+—HIFE
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. BEBBRREHEERTESTHE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated 3.1

REMBBREREE

financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA. The consolidated
financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”) and by the Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) of Hong Kong. For the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered material
if such information is reasonably expected to
influence decisions made by primary users.

The directors of the Company have, at the
time of approving the consolidated financial
statements, a reasonable expectation that the
Group has adequate resources to continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable
future. Thus they continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on the historical cost
basis except for financial instruments that
are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange
for goods and services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4= A

ARA TSR MR

Year

E3

ended 31 March 2023
CEC=F=HA=1—HIFFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset
or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16,
and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value
in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

For financial instruments which are transacted
at fair value and a valuation technique
that unobservable inputs are to be used to
measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that at
initial recognition the results of the valuation
technique equals the transaction price.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

Year ended 31 March 2023

HE—FE-—=—F=HA=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. BAMBRAGREERTTEHEE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (4

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated 3.1 REMBHBRREREESE

financial statements (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, o BB E®RME - A FEFEERATF

fair value measurements are categorised into Bt S ABER B EIRE A R A SR

Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which HEBATEHFAENEEESARE—R -5

the inputs to the fair value measurements are THRFIE=H - M

observable and the significance of the inputs

to the fair value measurement in its entirety,

which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices s E—RWMABBAERIUNGIEHEHM
(unadjusted) in active markets for HREEXAERESHERMIZRE
identical assets or liabilities that the (REEFEE)
entity can access at the measurement
date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than s ZE_RNBMABEBAMEEXBEEEL
quoted prices included within Level MEIBENEASEGE - REED
1, that are observable for the asset or WERIN R
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs e ZE-RWAHBREENBENTAE
for the asset or liability. g A B o

3.2 Significant accounting policies 32 FESHEE

Basis of consolidation REEE

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;
° is exposed, or has rights, to variable

returns from its involvement with the
investee; and

REVBHRREBEARR - ARRIEHNE
EREMBRARMNMEREK - MBS
S RIS BIER{SH2 4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fra IR M

Year ended 31 March 2023

e —F—=F=HA=+—HIFEF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HENKEBRRGEREERTESHEE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL &)
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies 32 FESHBE®)
(continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued) REEEGE)
e has the ability to use its power to affect o  FBRNMTEERFNZEHEBR -
its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it HMEFERBEAER FM=EZEGHEAEZRE
controls an investee if facts and circumstances —IHSA FHREE - REBGEMTHY
indicate that there are changes to one or more KEH RS

of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the REBMRESHE R HEREHEQ R
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and A AR - WK KB A BT B R AL 1
ceases when the Group loses control of the RAEAER - AEBME REABALDEH
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses BRARMBKARRAY - B ANEEESIE
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during BERARBREAEBEXEWNBARIZEHEE A
the year are included in the consolidated IF - FAGEEREAMEEREE °

statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other BakEM2EAKSEEEREN ARG
comprehensive income are attributed to the BAREZEREZ - EARZ2EKEETE
owners of the Company and to the non- EENARREA ARIFERER BNEE L
controlling interests. Total comprehensive BB I AR i A A AL AR o

income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

Year ended 31 March 2023

HE—FE-—=—F=HA=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. BAMBRAGREERTTEHEE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (4

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies 32 FESHEX®E)

(continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to
the financial statements of subsidiaries to
bring their accounting policies in line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, investment in subsidiaries are carried
at cost less any impairment loss. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received
and receivable at the reporting date.

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE IR R MR
Year ended 31 March 2023
A E A=+ —HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(continued)

Investment in an associate (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of
associates are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associates used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’'s share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate. Changes in net assets of the
associate other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for
unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate
exceeds the Group's interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group's
net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(continued)

Investment in an associate (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an
objective evidence that the interest in an
associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill)
is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised is not allocated to
any asset, including goodwill, that forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE IR R MR
Year ended 31 March 2023
A E A=+ —HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(continued)

Investment in an associate (continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in the
investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate and
the retained interest is a financial asset within
the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and
the fair value is regarded as its fair value on
initial recognition. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate and the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds
from disposing the relevant interest in the
associate is included in the determination of
the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In
addition, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate on the
same basis as would be required if that
associate had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate would be reclassified
to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the
gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as
a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/
partial disposal of the relevant associate.

Hephaestus Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022/23

REVBBREHREERTESTHHE

3.2 FEEHEE®HE)

R—BBEQXRNREE)

HARBTBHBERRREERTES
EREARIEHEREH SN2 AR -
FEEZNPaRREENEEHER - MAKE
RENRABEARNESMREARZBERE
BBRELENFIFHEANSHEE - A
AEBENZARAFEERGES - M
Z A FERRRER Y S HERE KA FE -
BEHEBERRNKENERE - 5t A
B & X ) 0 O T 1L LA R BR M o ) B
ERREREEENEMNRERENRAFE
ZEHERE - I AEEER LA ERM
2ER SR E R RERNETEARK
AEEBENRERNENBEEREAEMN
FEERR o Fitt - W2 QR EATN E A
rHpaERNKEXEREN L EREE
EXBEREHIEERES  AIXAEESRH
HE B L E RS QRS E
EREasF o BEBa(FREMN SRS

) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies

(continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying
the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good
or service (or a bundle of goods or services)
that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or
services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue
is recognised over time by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligation if one of the
following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or
enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance
completed to date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= A\
=

R P

Year ended 31 March 2023
2T —=—F=A=+—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies

(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the
distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right
to consideration in exchange for goods or
services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments ("HKFRS 9”). In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment
of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration
is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating
to the same contract are accounted for and
presented on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies

(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction
of a performance obligation is measured
based on input method, which is to recognise
revenue on the basis of the Group’s efforts
or inputs to the satisfaction of a performance
obligation relative to the total expected
inputs to the satisfaction of that performance
obligation, that best depict the Group’s
performance in transferring control of goods
or services.

Contract costs

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are
those costs that the Group incurs to obtain
a contract with a customer that it would not
have incurred if the contract had not been
obtained.

The Group recognises such costs as an asset if
it expects to recover these costs. The asset so
recognised is subsequently amortised to profit
or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent
with the transfer to the customer of the goods
or services to which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of
expensing all incremental costs to obtain a
contract if these costs would otherwise have
been fully amortised to profit or loss within
one year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR M SRR M

Year ended 31 March 2023
2T —=—F=A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HENKEBRRGEREERTESHEE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL &)
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies 32 FESHBE®)
(continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers BFEHWRAGE)
(continued)
Contract costs (continued) BRI (E)
Cost to fulfill a contract [BITE HIHIPL A
The Group incurs costs to fulfill a contract in REBRERBEOAPELERBITA LK
its services contracts. The Group first assess Ko REBELTEZEREIRETEHAM
whether these costs qualify for recognition as HEEEANEERRER M- EW - 8
an asset in term of other relevant standards, REBEEREUTHBERENBEATTE®
failing which it recognises an asset for these HZEUREREE -
costs only if they meet all of the following
criteria:
(@) the costs relate directly to a contract or (@) ZERABAREEEEHRFNS LS

to an anticipated contract the Group can TEH G E R

specifically identify;

(b)  the costs generate or enhance resources (b) HEERARELENRESAEBRREKX
of the Group that will be used in (BFEER)ARBHNEETNER &

satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligation in the future;

and
(c) the costs are expected to be recovered. () TEHABWEZERA -
The asset so recognised is subsequently M ERNEERERIREMNBERFEYEZEE
amortised to profit or loss on a systematic ERAERIRBE BN RFEEREBEREF
basis that is consistent with the transfer to the BiH o RS EEAEITRERG -

customer of the goods or services to which the
assets relate. The asset is subject to impairment
review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(continued)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or
after the date of initial application or arising
from business combinations, the Group
assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16
at inception, modification date or acquisition
date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of
the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of
a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-
lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

The Group applies practical expedient not to
separate non-lease components from lease
components, and accounts for the lease
component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M
Year ended 31 March 2023

A E - F=A=+—HIFFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HREAVKBRREGFREERTESHEE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (&)
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies 32 FESHBE®)
(continued)
Leases (continued) FENAC=D)
The Group as a lessee (continued) FEBYE AN ()
Short-term leases REEE

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. Lease payments on short-
term leases are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement
of the lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the
Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by
the Group in dismantling and removing
the underlying assets, restoring the
site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of
the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise,
right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as
a separate line item on the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
for under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at
fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-
use assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M

Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—FE-_—F=A=1—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies

(continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the
Group recognises and measures the lease
liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group
uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend
on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option
if the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising an option to terminate the
lease.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.

(continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities
are adjusted by interest accretion and lease
payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and
makes a corresponding adjustment to the
related right-of-use assets) whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is
a change in the assessment of exercise
of a purchase option, in which case the
related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the date
of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to
changes in market rental rates following
a market rent review, in which cases the
related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments
using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a
separate line item on the consolidated
statement of financial position.

RE I ERER MR
Year ended 31 March 2023

B2 F_—F-H=+—=HIFE

REVBBREHREERTESFTHHE

(%)

3.2 FESHBRE)

HE#E)

FEFERETIN (B)

HEAEG#E)

REBBEHE HEBGERESFERHEE
RRIEL FEE -

FRENTER  AREEENTERER
B HREEREEEFLRERE)

o HEMBEFBITEBEREERNNMG
BE  ERBERT  HEHEHEREES
AR EH G BB EERI TR R
BEETHENRENTE -

s HEMRXRMmEHEHeESRAMSES
ExgEmAREs - BT - A
AHEAEERERMATREFRE
(ERTHENREHNTE -

AEEBHEHEREIFSERRENKS
e CE LT

U>

B 15

ERERBRAG 202223 F F W

153



154

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= A\
=

R P

Year ended 31 March 2023
2T —=—F=A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies

(continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of
each individual group entity, transactions
in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred as
the Group does not have any qualified asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until
there is reasonable assurance that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or
loss on a systematic basis over the periods in
which the Group recognises as expenses the
related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate.

Government grants related to income that
are receivable as compensation for expenses
or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to
the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable. Such grants are
presented under “other income”.

Employee benefits
Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity or paternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE IR R MR
Year ended 31 March 2023
HEr—_ T —F=A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Retirement benefit costs and termination
benefits

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised
at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee
benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual
leave and sick leave) after deducting any
amount already paid.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs
from profit before tax because of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

Year ended 31 March 2023

HE—FE-—=—F=HA=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. BAMBRAGREERTTEHEE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ()

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies 32 FESHEX®E)

(continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can
be recognised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and an associate,
except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to recognise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE IR R MR
Year ended 31 March 2023
HEr—_ T —F=A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies

(continued)
Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or the
asset is recognised, based on tax rate (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax
for leasing transactions in which the Group
recognises the right-of-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use assets or the
lease liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

Year ended 31 March 2023

HE—FE-—=—F=HA=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. BAMBRAGREERTTEHEE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ()

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies 32 FESHEX®E)

(continued)
Taxation (continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease
liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
requirements to the leasing transaction as a
whole. Temporary difference relating to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities are assessed
on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on right-
of-use assets over the lease payment for the
principal portion of lease liabilities results in
net deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same
taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in
profit or loss, except when they relate to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible
assets that are held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes. Property, plant and
equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if
any.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= A\
=

R P

Year ended 31 March 2023
2T —=—F=A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies

(continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off
the cost of assets other than freehold land
less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
recognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the
Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets, to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss (if any).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
(continued)

The recoverable amount of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets
are estimated individually. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for
impairment, corporate assets are allocated
to the relevant cash-generating unit when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be established, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash
generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established.
The recoverable amount is determined for
the cash-generating unit or group of cash-
generating units to which the corporate asset
belongs, and is compared with the carrying
amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or
group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE IR R MR
Year ended 31 March 2023
HEr—_ T —F=A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies

(continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
(continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or
a cash-generating unit) is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
which cannot be allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit,
the Group compares the carrying amount of
a group of cash-generating units, including
the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to
that group of cash-generating units, with the
recoverable amount of the group of cash-
generating units. In allocating the impairment
loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
(if applicable) and then to the other assets on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit or the group of cash-
generating units. The carrying amount of an
asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The
amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit or the group of cash-generating units. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

Year ended 31 March 2023

HE—FE-—=—F=HA=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. BAMBRAGREERTTEHEE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (4

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies 32 FESHEX®E)

(continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
(continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or
a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating
unit or a group of cash-generating units) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the
consolidated statement of financial position
include cash, which comprises of cash on hand
and demand deposits, excluding bank balances
that are subject to regulatory restrictions that
result in such balances no longer meeting the
definition of cash.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined
above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE IR R MR
Year ended 31 March 2023
A E A=+ —HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value except for
trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured
in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE I ERER MR
Year ended 31 March 2023

B2 F_—F-H=+—=HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. BAMBRAGREERTTEHEE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ()

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies 32 FESHEX®E)
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) SRITAE)
The effective interest method is a method of ERMNEENGEsREES SR B ENHE
calculating the amortised cost of a financial SHAC AR Ry BRAB R HARE I E A R H A9 77
asset or financial liability and of allocating o BRENESRUITBERRZEHEESL
interest income and interest expense over the TRBEMNTEGTF AR (MER) REERE -
relevant period. The effective interest rate ETR A RRRERFRAR(BIERE
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated BREBENEARSRMRE DB EHHEWE
future cash receipts and payments (including RAEMNEEZ RS R E M ELITE)
all fees and points paid or received that form ZEREFERFZE o

an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets THEE

Classification and subsequent measurement of CMEENSEREEAN=

financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following HFEUTBRENESREEHL BT HEK AT

conditions are subsequently measured at
amortised cost:

fe

e the financial asset is held within a RUAWEEOEEREAE N ZEBE
business model whose objective is to ATHELREE &k
collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on e EAHBKFNETHRHELANRSREM
specified dates to cash flows that are BRYNAERREEREHFE o

solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 March 2023
2T —=—F=A=+—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL, except that at initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

o it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument

In addition, the Group may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that are required
to be measured at the amortised cost as
measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income
Interest income is recognised using
the effective interest method for
financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial
assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired. For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period.
If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of
the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer
credit-impaired.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised
cost include trade and other receivables
and bank balances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR M SRR M

Year ended 31 March 2023
2T —=—F=A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HENKEBRRGEREERTESHEE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL &)
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies 32 FESHBE®)

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued) SWMIA#E)

Financial assets (continued) THEE(E)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL (i FRBmBEAFEFEZEREE
Financial assets that do not meet the Tﬁ BRZEHERIFAENEREE

criteria for being measured at amortised REBERIEATEFETE °

cost are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured BEREREATEFEZEREENS

at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned
on the financial asset and is included in
the “other gains and losses, net” line
item.

Impairment of financial asset subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment
under expected credit loss (“ECL") model on
financial assets (including key management
insurance policy, trade and other receivables,
contract assets and bank balances) which
are subject to impairment assessment under
HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will
result from all possible default events over
the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting
date. Assessments are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of
future conditions.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial asset subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade receivables and contract assets without
significant financing component.

For all other instruments, the Group measures
the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless
there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, in which case the
recognised lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood
or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.

0) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk
of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date
with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date
of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR M SRR M

Year ended 31 March 2023

BE—

3.

—E A=+ —HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial asset subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)
0) Significant increase in credit risk
(continued)
In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available)
or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g.
a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap
prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse
changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor;

J an actual or expected significant
adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial asset subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

(continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that
the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group
assumes that the credit risk on a financial
instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low
credit risk at the reporting date. A
financial instrument is determined to
have low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk
of default, (i) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term and
(iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term
may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. All
financial assets, except for trade and
other receivables, are determined to
have low credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR M SRR M

Year ended 31 March 2023
2T —=—F=A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HENKEBRRGEREERTESHEE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL &)
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies 32 FESHBE®)

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued) SWMIA#E)

Financial assets (continued) 2HEEE)

Impairment of financial asset subject to ARBEBH B EENE IR ETRER G

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 HEeREERNREGE

(continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk () EERREELAGE)
(continued)
The Group regularly monitors the AEBETHEZAUBAIEERRER
effectiveness of the criteria used to BECANZRENERE - WHEHE
identify whether there has been a EITIER] - ARIRE BE L ERIES
significant increase in credit risk and HalEnHEERBEEE LA -

revises them as appropriate to ensure
that the criteria are capable of identifying
significant increase in credit risk before
the amount becomes past due.

(i) Definition of default (i) BHYNTEE
For internal credit risk management, RATEERREENS  AEER
the Group considers an event of default 7 A NHEESEEINRIREE
occurs when information developed BERIBAEBASKAgEREEREA(E
internally or obtained from external BALE)BEER (T RAEEFE
sources indicates that the debtor is FERIERG) - BB =M -

unlikely to pay its creditors, including
the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the

Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group BE LN - AEERE - WERE
considers that default has occurred E@HBB0R - AIREAELY - BRIE
when a financial asset is more than 90 ZJSE@EAE—Isaﬁﬂﬁ ARERNE
days past due unless the Group has WZERE B

reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial asset subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

(iii)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired
when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following
events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a
default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active
market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR M SRR M

Year ended 31 March 2023
2T —=—F=A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HENKEBRRGEREERTESHEE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL &)
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies 32 FESHBE®)

174

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial asset subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

(continued)

(iv)  Write-off policy
The Group writes off a financial asset
when there is information indicating that
the counterparty is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial
assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the
Group's recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function
of the probability of default, loss given
default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at
default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based
on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as
the weights.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial asset subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

(continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference
between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition.

Certain trade receivables are individually
assessed based on historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors’ general economic
conditions.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables
are considered on a collective basis
taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit
information such as forward looking
macroeconomic information.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M

Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—FE-_—F=A=1—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial asset subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

(continued)

For collective assessment, the Company
takes into consideration the following
characteristics when formulating the

grouping:
. Past-due status;

. Nature, size and industry of
debtors; and

o External credit rating where
available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents
of each group continue to share similar
credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based
on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial asset subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

(continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL
(continued)
The Group recognises an impairment
loss or gain on reversal of impairment in
profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount,
with the exception of trade receivables
where the corresponding adjustment
is recognised through a loss allowance
account.

The Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss for all
financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with exception of trade
receivables and contract assets where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured
at amortised cost, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE IR R MR
Year ended 31 March 2023
A E A=+ —HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted
directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

The Group's financial liabilities including trade
and other payables, amount due to a director
and lease liabilities are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE I ERER MR
Year ended 31 March 2023

B2 F_—F-H=+—=HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. BAMBRAGREERTTEHEE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ()

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies 32 FESHEX®E)

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liabilities derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is
related to the Group.

(@) A person or a close member of that
person’s family is related to the Group if
that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over
the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(i) is a member of the key
management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M

Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—FE-_—F=A=1—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent company,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.
If the Group is itself such a plan,
the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(continued)
Related parties (continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of
a group of which it is a part,
provides key management
personnel services to the Group or
to a parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated
financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to
Group's executive directors of the Company
for the purpose of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business.

Individual material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4= A

ARA TSR MR

Year

Bx

4,

Heph

ended 31 March 2023
CEC=F=HA=1—HIFFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements, the directors of the Company
are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the
directors of the Company have made in the process
of applying the Group's accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies (continued)

(i) Methods for measuring progress towards
complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation

Revenue from interior design and execution
services is recognised over time based on
the contract costs incurred to date as a
percentage of total budgeted costs to depict
the transfer of control of services to customers.
In determining the appropriate method
for measuring progress towards complete
satisfaction of a performance obligation,
the Group considered the nature of interior
design and execution services that the Group
promised to transfer to its customers and
selected the method of measuring progress
that best depicts the transfer of products or
services to its customers. In the absence of
surveys of performance completed to date or
appraisals of results achieved, output methods
would not faithfully depict the Group’s
performance in satisfying a performance
obligation when the Group has performed
work in progress or finished goods controlled
by customers that are not included in the
measurement of the output.

(ii) Existence of significant influence

Regarding the acquisition of Joy Chance,
the Group has taken into consideration the
ownership interest and voting right to direct
the relevant activities of the entity. After
assessment, the directors of the Company
concluded that the Group has significant
influence over the entity.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that
may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4= A

2N =] /ﬁj‘%

Year ended 31 March 2023

E3
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AR EE

ZEZA=F+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNC

ERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

0}

Recognition of revenue from interior
design and execution services

The Group recognised revenue on the
provision of interior design and execution
services by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation using input method,
measured based on the proportion of contract
costs incurred for work performed to date
relative to the estimated total contract costs.
The management regularly discusses with
the project team in order to review and
revise the estimates of the total contract
costs based on estimated manhours and
stage of completion of the work performed
to date with reference to the performance
and status of corresponding service contract
work. Accordingly, revenue recognition on
service contracts involves a significant degree
of management estimates and judgment,
with estimates being made to assess the total
contract costs and contract costs incurred for
work performed to date.

The management reviews and revises the
estimates of total contract costs for the design
services and contract costs incurred for work
performed to date as the contract progresses,
the actual outcome of the contract in terms of
its total costs may be higher or lower than the
estimates and this will affect the revenue and
profit recognised.

During the year, approximately HK$35,445,000
(2022: HK$51,441,000) of revenue from interior
design contracts was recognised over time based
on the abovementioned input method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

(i)

Impairment loss for trade receivables and
contract assets

Management of the Group estimates the
amount of loss allowance for expected
credit losses on items subject to expected
credit losses (such as trade receivables and
contract assets) based on the credit risk of the
respective items. The loss allowance amount
is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows after taking into
consideration of expected future credit loss
of the item and assigning credit rating with
reference to external credit rating assessment.
The assessment of the credit risk of the items
subject to expected credit losses involves high
degree of estimation and uncertainty. When
the actual future cash flows are different from
expected, an impairment loss or a reversal of
impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the carrying
amounts of trade receivables are approximately
HK$11,392,000 and HK$5,035,000 (net
of impairment loss on trade receivables of
approximately HK$830,000 and HK$230,000)
respectively.

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the carrying
amounts of contract assets are approximately
HK$18,136,000 and HK$19,962,000
(net of impairment loss on contact assets
of approximately HK$102,000 and nil)
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4= A

ARA TSR MR

Year

E3

Heph

ended 31 March 2023
CEC=F=HA=1—HIFFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's operating activities are attributable to a
single operating segment focusing on interior design
and execution services. This operating segment
has been identified on the basis of internal reports,
prepared in accordance with accounting policies
which conform with HKFRSs, that are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker
(the “CODM"), the directors of the Company. The
CODM is responsible for making decision about
resources allocation. The information provided to
the CODM is the same as those disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, only
entity-wide disclosures, geographical information
and major customers are presented.

Geographical information:

Information about the Group’s revenue from
external customers is presented based on the
location of the projects:

7 EBE R
AEENKLEDRBEBNETEART LRITR
BB L0 - £EDBARIRE (BB
BEAMBRELEANNEABRBEERDHE
BoHEIELERRE(TEEEBREE]) (A
NEAEFR)THEN TELEARERERTER
B - AERLERRE RN ER RS I
HERABETEERR - At - E25EREmRE
WHREHEERERS -

WIBE R
AEBREIIMNSBEEFWANERDEREEVES
bl

2023 2022

—F=-= —E -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Hong Kong B 34,963 49,340
Japan =N = 36
Macau BT 15 1,451
Mainland China EHEpN 175 148 898
Thailand = 364 -
35,490 51,725

All the Group’s non-current assets are located in
Hong Kong.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE I ERER MR
Year ended 31 March 2023
BT —F=-HA=+—HIFZ

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. oHER@E
Information about major customers: FEEFEHR:
Revenue from transactions with external customers EAREBEWA10% A L2 INBE PR 5 2 AR
amounting to 10% or more of the Group's revenue ™
are as follows:
2023 2022
—E-= —E_—
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Customer a EFa 7,371 13,004
Customer b EFb = 10,984
Revenue was derived from services provided to WARBR il & AR PRENRT - BERER
the above respective customers including services BT L ZE2EPE—ZEHN—HES -
provided to a group of entities which are known to
be under common control with the above respective
customers.
REVENUE 6. WA
An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year is as REBEBRFRBABHIFTAT -
follows:
2023 2022
2= —ZF--
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Interior design and execution services EWNRET RBITIRTS 35,445 51,441
Colour-rendering services 2B AR 45 175
Handling services B 3% AR 75 = 109
35,490 51,725

The amount of revenue from interior design and
execution services recognised during the year, from
performance obligations satisfied in previous periods
due to changes in transaction price is approximately
HK$144,000 (2022: HK$1,215,000).

FRRERBEPRREXNNBENETLTRAR ZER
FEMERRKREEANARTRATREHWAL B
144,000/ 7T (ZF = =4 : 1,215,000) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE IR R MR
Year ended 31 March 2023

A E A=+ —HIFE
6. REVENUE (continued)

Heph

The Group provides interior design and execution
services to customers. Such services are recognised
as a performance obligation satisfied over time as
the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date. Revenue is recognised over time
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation
using input method.

The Group's service contracts include payment
schedules which require stage payments over the
design period once certain specified milestones are
reached. The Group requires certain customers to
provide upfront deposits range from 5% to 15%
of total contract sum, when the Group receives
a deposit before design service commences, this
will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of a
contract, until the revenue recognised on the specific
contract exceeds the amount of the deposit.

A contract asset, net of contract liability related
to the same contract, is recognised over the
period in which the design services are performed,
representing the Group’s right to consideration
for the services performed because the rights are
conditioned on the Group’s future performance in
achieving specified milestones. The contract assets
are transferred to trade receivables when the rights
become unconditional upon meeting the billing
milestones.

Colour-rendering services represents income from
provision of design work to customers which is
recognised at a point in time.

Handling services income represents income from
the procurement of furniture or art pieces and other
decorative items for customers which is recognised
at a point in time.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R
Year ended 31 March 2023
HE—FE-—=—F=HA=+—HIFE

REVENUE (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers

In the following tables, revenue is disaggregated

by geographical regions and timing of revenue
recognition.

WA &

EFEHWABA

FETFRA - WA TR IR [ 15 2 A B R A RE A 5T

Hlm it o

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE-Z-_=F=ZA=+—-HLEE

Interior
design and
execution
services Other Total
ERRFTR
TR Hith st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FERT FHExT
Geographical regions IR B
Hong Kong B 34,918 45 34,963
Macau JEFS 15 = 15
Mainland China AR B K 148 = 148
Thailand ZR 364 = 364
35,445 45 35,490
Timing of revenue recognition U A FE 52 Ay B
Over time ¥ A [ 35,445 - 35,445
At a point in time RE—F R = 45 45
35,445 45 35,490
FERERERRD A 2022/23 F F i

189



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE IR R MR
Year ended 31 March 2023
A E A=+ —HIFE
6. REVENUE (continued) 6. WA

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE-ZT-_—_F=A=1+—HILFE

Interior
design and
execution
services Other Total
EARFT K
MITIRTS HAth HET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Geographical regions IR B
Hong Kong a5 49,056 284 49,340
Japan =N 36 - 36
Macau JEFY 1,451 - 1,451
Mainland China B K fE 898 - 898
51,441 284 51,725
Timing of revenue recognition U A HE 52 Ay B
Over time Bi& 5 [ 51,441 - 51,441
At a point in time RE—F R - 284 284
51,441 284 51,725

TEREFRTENEEINRZER

Transaction price allocated to the
remaining performance obligations
TREINR T =F=A=+—HHREM (K
BAORERNBLOEEEEERHEN A RER
B ZE NRRET RITIRB A ¢

The following table includes revenue from interior
design and execution services expected to be
recognised in the future relating to performance
obligations that are unsatisfied (or partially
unsatisfied) as at 31 March 2023:

2023 2022

—E=H —E - F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHxT TFET

Within one year —FR 39,747 40,075
More than one year HBidm—F 28,139 44,681
67,886 84,756

190

Hephaestus Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022/23



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE (continued)

Transaction price allocated to the
remaining performance obligations
(continued)

The Group applies the practical expedient in
paragraph 121(a) of the HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (“HKFRS 15”) and
does not disclose the information about remaining
performance obligations that have original expected
durations of one year or less.

The Group applies the practical expedient in
paragraph 63 of the HKFRS 15 and does not adjust
the promised amount of consideration for the
effects of a significant financing component if the
Group expects, at contract inception, that the period
between when the Group transfers a promised
service to a customer and when the customer pays
for that service will be one year or less.

RE I ERER MR
Year ended 31 March 2023
BT —F=-HA=+—HIFZ

WA &
THRERTENEENIZERE

AEBERAEBMBEHREENFISHEFLAOBA
([BBPBHREEREISHE)F121@RNERE
B BYERBERENRBEY—FHEL 254
TEHEENER -

AEBERABEMBERELERNFISRFEIRNE
BREEME  WAKERAORGERESR  A%E
A—REPEREAGEREEZEE P RZBERSEN
ROBAER S —FHED - WER -BRERHM KA
KB ERARALERELE -

OTHER INCOME H g A
2023 2022
—E—-= —=E-—

HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Government grants (Note) BT e B (B 5E) 1,264 -
Interest income on bank deposits RITIF KA S U A 8 2

Interest income from financial assets at ~ FERERIE AT EFTEZ
FVTPL SREEMNT YA 30 -
Sundry income HMIEULA 61 46
1,363 48

Note: During the year, the Group successfully applied
for funding support of HK$1,264,000 from
the Employment Support Scheme under the
Anti-epidemic Fund, set up by the Government
of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.
The purpose of the funding is to provide the
financial support to enterprises to retain their
employees who would otherwise be made
redundant. Under the terms of the grant, the
Group is required not to make redundancies
during the subsidy period and to spend all the
funding on paying wages to the employees.

Mt FW - REERIFMEBRHITRERBARZ
MEESNRLEF B HEFE1,264,0008TE
B - A EEREERAMBE  RE
RAGKHENEER - BREMBIGER  AEE
REMATNSEHE  ABMEEBARN
REIHE -

ERERBRAG 202223 F F W
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE IR R MR
Year ended 31 March 2023
2T —=—F=A=+—HIFE

8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET

8. HttWzsREIEFHE

2023 2022
—E-=H —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHET
Exchange losses, net 0 5 B8 558 (255) (59)
Fair value loss on financial assets at BREEEATEFE 2R
FVTPL, net BE A HEBERFE (489) (37)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant &Y - BFE k& E W=
and equipment, net (B518) 735 6 (52)
Impairment losses in respect of LATNIE B HREE 1R
— Contract assets -AHEE (102) -
— Trade receivables - B rINRIA (600) (230)
Reversal of other payable HoAth fE 7 SRIE#E E] - 746
Others Efb (31) -
(1,471) 368
9. FINANCE COSTS X
9. HEEA
2023 2022
—E-= g
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHEIT
Interest on lease liabilities Tﬂﬁﬁiﬁﬂ B 22 53
Interest on bank loans IRITERFB - 1,144
22 1,197
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

Year ended 31 March 2023

HBE—F-=—F=H=1—HIFEF

10. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX 10. BRB{AT (B ), E A
The Group’s (loss)/profit before tax is stated after RNEEBNBRTBA(EER), SN & NG A TIER %
charging the following: HIER
2023 2022
—E-= —F-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHT
Auditor’s remuneration ZE BN &
= Audit services - B 850 1,600
- Non-audit services - EERIRS 10 469
Contract costs assets recognised as BREAZHNEHREEE
expenses (Note) (B &) = 122
Subcontracting charges HBEH 5,030 5,520
Depreciation of property, plant and Wz - BEREEITE
equipment 540 354
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE 380 3,477
Rental expenses relating to short-term SEEREN-gikaba
leases 3,516 932
Note: As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, no fulfillment costs Mzt RZZZ=FR-_T-__F=A=+—H #HE
are capitalised as contract cost assets. BHRAERNCBEHRAREE -
11. INCOME TAX 1. FiBH
Income tax has been recognised in profit or loss as FrgHieRNEsERaeT
follows:
2023 2022
—E-= =
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BaE FET FHET
Current tax BN EA T T8
Hong Kong Profits Tax BABMFH 67 1,562
PRC Corporate Income Tax R B TS
(caIT”) ([EmRBHD = 25
67 1,587
Deferred tax EERIE 25 213 (7)
280 1,580
The Group's entities established in the British Virgin AEBTRBREZHENINELE DB ERNSE
Islands are exempted from income tax. o

zEERARAD 2022235 4% 1933



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M
Year ended 31 March 2023

A E - F=A=+—HIFFE

11. INCOME TAX (continued) 1. FiBH&E

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime in Hong
Kong, the profits tax rate for the first HK$2 million
of assessable profits of qualifying corporations is
lowered to 8.25%, and profits above that amount
is still subject to the tax rate of 16.5%. Assessable
profits of the Group entities not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime are continued to
be taxed at the rate of 16.5%.

PRC CIT has been provided at a rate of 25%.
The reconciliation between the income tax and the

(loss)/profit before tax multiplied by Hong Kong
Profits Tax rate is as follows:

REBEZEMAFESHREGE - @ EBEEERHT
BAHE2AEEB TSR EXFEES.25%
iR B Z & A E AR 16.5% R - T&
BEREFE LAMBNEHREHENAREEERN
JE RT3 | A 4B 42 16.5% B T R B ©

BTSN EIR25% BT R EH B o

PSR ERRRBLAT (B51R),a AR A T B RIS B &
ZEEEERIT -

2023 2022
—EZ= —=E-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
(Loss)/Profit before tax B A (B518) 3% A (2,772) 5,731
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of BB G =X
16.5% (2022: 16.5%) 16.5% =t H A B IE
ZEZF:16.5%) (457) 946
Tax effect of share of results of associate D {LHE&E RN A EENTREFE 3) -
Tax effect of income that is not taxable ~ BZERHRW AN IE T E (224) (99)
Tax effect of expenses that are not AT H0R 3 2 Y
deductible Mg E 1,042 915
Tax effect of temporary difference not AERER =5
recognised M8 - 2
Effect of income tax at concessionary rate PT{SFE B KT E (72) (165)
Effect of using average tax rate for BUIEER A A
deferred tax FHBERNTE - 1
Tax concession MiEEE (6) (20)
Income tax PS5 280 1,580
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

RE I ERER MR
Year ended 31 March 2023

BT —F=-HA=+—HIFZ

12. BERBAMAX

2023 2022
—E—-= —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHET

Employee benefit expenses: EERAMAXL :
Salaries and allowances Fre MoERh 22,256 25,045
Other benefits (represent rent paid) HEmEFEEEES) 348 348
Retirement benefit scheme contributions  #R4KE 5+ 24t % 800 918
23,404 26,311

Hong Kong

The Group operates the MPF Scheme under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for its Hong Kong employees. The MPF
Scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan
administered by independent trustees. Under
the MPF Scheme, each of the subsidiaries (the
“Employer”) in Hong Kong and its employees
makes monthly mandatory contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employee’s earnings as defined
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Legislation. The
mandatory contributions from each of the Employer
and employees are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per
month.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, a total
contribution of approximately HK$800,000 (2022:
HK$918,000) was made by the Group in respect of
this scheme.

Retirement benefit scheme contributions totalling
approximately HK$130,000 (2022: HK$149,000)
were payable to the fund as at 31 March 2023.

&8
REERBEEECGRBMAESFTEEAD) AEE
BREEBRUBESHE - BESFERABLXT
ABEENRTEHRFRAEE - BIFRESFE - &
BEWBAR(EEXDMAEEEST A AZRHIER
E e AN FT R E R B UL A KI5 %M 5% 5T 8] 7F H o5& &
MHR - EEXTREESEMNRGITEHA LR AT A
1,500 7T °

HE-_Z-_=F=A=+—HItFE A&EE5
ZatEE R F0A H49800,0008 T (T - =
918,000/ 7T) °

RZEBE-_=F=A=+—8 " ERNFELHENK
BAFTEIMRZAEA £ 451300008 T (-
£ 149,000587T) °

ERERBRAG 202223 F F W
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M

Year ended 31 March 2023

A E - F=A=+—HIFFE

12. BERANFEx @
HERBHMAL
AEEBRFANTAGESHFMA L RE—BAE
E(CE--F MENER)  HREZEALAR

12. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (continued)
Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group
during the year included one former director (2022:

two former directors) whose emoluments during
their appointment as a director of the Company
are reflected in the analysis presented in Note 13.

RAEFHENNe RN 13NN DHT
FA - AEELEERFMA TS FIBEHTI
-

Details of the emoluments of the five highest paid
individuals during the year are set out below:

2023 2022
—E-= —_E-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
THxT FHET
Salaries, allowances and benefits e EBLREF 4,269 4,938
Retirement benefit scheme contributions  3R4KE 5T 2 5% 90 90
4,359* 5,028*

LS HEBEZENESZHE - DERERNEIE
AizEZME RN ERBTIRIERERZME -

* The above amount includes the emoluments of *
the former directors, both as to their director’s
emoluments before their resignation and their
emoluments as employees after such resignation.

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals FEESHHMATHOMESMRUTERE :

fell within the following bands:

Number of individuals

AE
2023 2022
—E_-= —F-—
Emolument bands (in HK$) (A ARG P
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000 7T 4 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7.2 1,500,00078 7T 1 2
5 5

FR - MESNHENENERESHMALIOA
ARG ) SR B SRR A 1 o

No incentive payment for joining the Group or
compensation for loss of office was paid or payable
to any of the five highest paid individuals during the
year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

Year ended 31 March 2023

e —F-_=ZF=A=+—HIFE

13. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 13. EEFANRFZ
DIRECTORS
(a) Directors’ emoluments () EEM<
The emoluments paid to or received by each ERNTEESE(THRBAATSIEWB AR ZE
of the directors whether of the Company or its BIRBEERW ST -
subsidiaries undertaking are as follows:
Employer's
Contributions
Estimated toa
money value retirement
Directors'  Salaries and of other benefit
fees  allowances benefits scheme Total
Exm
BRI BAENY
EzNe HOREY MHEMEE FRE 5t a3t

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
TR TATL TATL TATL TATL

(Note (i))
(FREEG)
Year ended 31 March 2023 BE-3-=f=A=t1-H
LEE

Executive directors HES
- Mr. Huang Liang -ERAE 100 = = = 100
=Ms. Lou Yi -BERRT(R-2-=F

(Resigned on 24 May 2023) RAZTRAET) 100 = = = 100
= Ms. Yip Hiu Ying -EBRLaT(W-52=F

(Appointed on 28 February 2023) “AZ+)\BEZH) 9 = = = 9
Independent Non- executive directors B 3Fi1TE%
= Mr. Luk Chi Shing -BEERAER-SIF

(Resigned on 24 February 2023) ZAZTREET) 90 = = = 90
= Mr. Lee Man Chun -EukEE 60 = = = 60
= Ms. Tong Yuk Ying Yannie -BILRT(R-F==F

(Appointed on 3 March 2023) “A=REZA) 5 = = = 5
= Mr. Tang Chin Ting -BRERER-Z-=%F

(Appointed on 24 February 2023) ZAZTHREZHA) 10 = = = 10
= Mr. Zheng Yugjang -DEREEM-So=F

(Resigned on 3 March 2023) ZAZHED) 55 = = = 55

429 - - - 429

ERERBRAG 202223 F F W
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE s
Year ended

2P-F -

AR EE

31 March 2023

ZEZA=F+—HILFE

13. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

(a) E=M=®

13. EEEANRME®)

Employer's
Contributions
Estimated toa
moneyvalue  retirement
Directors'  Salaries and of other benefit
fees allowances benefits scheme Total
EEm
A RKEHHE
ESfe  HeREM fhiEMER FrfEE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TARL TARL TARL TARL TARL
(Note (i))
(B )
Year ended 31 March 2022 BE-E-CF
ZRZt-BLEE
Executive directors 78S
= Mr. Chan Norman Enrique -RERE(REE)
("Mr. Norman Chan") MZF-zF
(Resigned on 4 March 2022) = AAET) - 1302 - 18 1,320
= Mr. Lee Alex Kam-Fai -FREFER-ZZF
(Resigned on 4 March 2022) = ANAET) - 888 348 18 1,254
= Mr. Huang Liang -ERREMIEIZE
(Appointed on 4 March 2022) ZARBEZRA) 8 - - - 8
= Ms. Lou Yi -ERar(R-E -
(Appointed on 4 March 2022) “FNBEZA) 8 - - - 8
Independent Non-executive directors B 3172 %
= Mr. Kwong U Hoi Andrew -BERAERIEIZE
(Resigned on 4 March 2022) = AmAREF) 55 - - - 55
= Mr. Wong Jonathan -EERRERITCF
(Resigned on 4 March 2022) =RmBEA) 55 - - - 55
= Mr. Chi Chi Hung Kenneth -EEERERITICF
(Resigned on 4 March 2022) =REmBEA) 91 - - - 91
= Mr. Luk Chi Shing -BEEREER-SIF
(Appointed on 4 March 2022) ZARBEZRA) 8 - - - 8
= Mr. Lee Man Chun -EVREERZTZF
(Appointed on 4 March 2022) “FNBEZA) 4 - - - 4
= Mr. Zheng Yugjang -HEREER-ToCF
(Appointed on 4 March 2022) “AMBEZT) 4 - - - 4
233 2,190 348 36 2,807
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

Year ended 31 March 2023

HE—FE-—=—F=HA=+—HIFE

13. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 13. EER/ARFZH &

DIRECTORS (continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a)

E=ME @

With effect from 24 May 2023, Ms. Lou Yi
has resigned as the executive director of the
Company.

With effect from 3 March 2023, Mr. Zheng
Yugiang has resigned as the independent non-
executive director of the Company and Ms.
Tong Yuk Ying Yannie has been appointed as
the independent non-executive director of the
Company.

With effect from 28 February 2023, Ms. Yip
Hiu Ying has been appointed as the executive
director of the Company.

With effect from 24 February 2023, Mr. Luk
Chi Shing has resigned as the independent
non-executive director of the Company and
Mr. Tang Chin Ting has been appointed as
the independent non-executive director of the
Company.

With effect from 4 March 2022, Mr. Norman
Chan has resigned as the chairman, chief
executive officer and executive director of
the Company and Mr. Huang Liang has been
appointed as the chairman, chief executive
officer and executive director of the Company.

Mr. Kwong U Hoi Andrew, Mr. Wong
Jonathan and Mr. Chi Chi Hung Kenneth have
resigned as the independent non-executive
directors of the Company and waived their
emoluments of approximately HK$1,000 each
during the period from 1 March 2022 to 4
March 2022, respectively. Mr. Luk Chi Shing,
Mr. Lee Man Chun and Mr. Zheng Yugiang
have been appointed as the independent
non-executive directors of the Company on 4
March 2022.

Except the above, there was no other
arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments during the
years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.

BE-_ZE-_=FFRA-+/MHHE -
ERREHITESE -

BmtE

BE-Z-_=F=A=ZH BERELERT
ARBVEBIUFATEE  MEEELLEE
ERANRRBIULIFHITES -

B-Z_=F_"A-+/\B# EEgit
BZERERRBNTES -

E-E-=—F-A-+WAR  ELKEE
BEARBBYIENTES  MBEERELE
EREARNARBIIFRITES -

BT _F=-AWAE  RELBFEARQ
AEFE  TRAHEERTES maskt
BZERARAER TRAHNBITE
%D

BFREE FABLERTEELERS
- F=-A—HEZZE-__F=AMHEH
MEEARR BB L IEMITE S I D Bl HEEB
©#11,00087C » BEEREE  EXEEER
BEREAN T = ANAERTA
NAFVENIERITES ©

B rtEN BEBE-_=FK_FT_-_—
ZA=Z+—BIFE  #EdEERHRER
BB WEE (S H A HE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE IR R MR
Year ended 31 March 2023

Hr—Z—

ZEZA=F+—HILFE

13. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

No emoluments were paid by the Group to
any directors as inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office as a director in connection with the
management of the affairs of any member of
the Group for the years ended 31 March 2023
and 2022.

Note:

(i) Estimated money value of other benefits
represents market price for rent.

Director’'s material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements or
contracts in relation to the Group'’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company and the director’s
connected party had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.
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(b)

13. EEEANRME®)

BEEMEE)
BHE_ZT_Fr_ZF-_"_F=ZA=+—H
WEFE - AREE W& (A E == S E R B
SEANMATEERSMALRERZAE
B MERRERREEEMKE ARFH
MAEESBAM@EE -

MEE -

iy HEMENOETESEERESOME -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

Year ended 31 March 2023

e —F-_=ZF=A=+—HIFE

14. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. BR(EER) EF
The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per share FA - AAREEABRGEESREXRER), BT
attributable to owners of the Company for the year LT E -

is based on the following data:

2023 2022
—E-=F —EF_—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET
(Loss)/Earnings (E18), B F
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to HESREKRER),BF
owners of the Company for the purpose  FTA 2 KA a#EHE AREL
of calculating basis (loss)/earnings per (B18),/ &5 F
share (3,052) 4,151
2023 2022
—E=F —F-—
‘000 ‘000
TR T
Number of shares: v gE|
Weighted average number of ordinary SEEREAR(ER) BT
shares for the purpose of calculating PR 2 &R ANt 19 8
basic (loss)/earnings per share 215,347 223,844
There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares BE T -_=—FR-IZB-__F=-A=+—HILFE
during the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, BEBTEeTAR - A ekiEs (58, &F
and therefore diluted (loss)/earnings per share is the BERER(ER), BFRER -

same as basic (loss)/earnings per share.

zeerAaRAE 202223558 201



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M

Year ended 31 March 2023

BE—FE-_—F=A=1—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% BERRE

Leasehold  Furniture and Office Motor
improvement fixtures equipment vehicles Total
RENEEE BRREE NS RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TATL TAL THTL TATL
CosT A
At 1 April 2021 R-E-—FMA-H 24 2,319 2,501 277 5338
Additions AE - - 178 - 178
Disposals e - (261) 7 - (268)
At 31 March 2022 and R-B-—F=A=+-BR
1 April 2022 —E--FNR-H Pzy| 2,058 2,672 271 5,248
Additions hE - = 64 2,252 2,316
Eliminated on disposals REERHS - - (85) - (85)
At 31 March 2023 RZE-=F=A=+-H 241 2,058 2,651 2,529 1,479
ACCUMULATED 2itE
DEPRECIATION
At 1 April 2021 R-Z-—-FWA-H 24 1,888 2,343 277 4,749
Charged for the year FRAX - 196 158 - 354
Eliminated on disposals RN - (210) (6) - (216)
At 31 March 2022 and RZE--F=ZA=+-BER
1 April 2022 —Z-CENA-A Pz)| 1,874 2,495 271 4,887
Charged for the year FRRY - 84 103 353 540
Eliminated on disposal REERHH - - (84) - (84)
At 31 March 2023 RZEZZF=ZA=1-H 21 1,958 2,514 630 5,343
NET CARRYING AMOUNTS REFE
At 31 March 2023 RZE-ZZF=ZA=1-H = 100 137 1,899 2,136
At 31 March 2022 R-F--%#=A=+-H - 184 177 - 361
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment
are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the
following rates per annum:

15.

RE I ERER MR
Year ended 31 March 2023
BT —F=-HA=+—HIFZ

Y3 - BB KR )

FitE - BERRBER R TIER RN ESE
SHRE -

Leasehold improvement  Over the unexpired period of lease term HEMEERE REERBeRERARA
Furniture and fixtures 20% BRhEEEEE 20%
Office equipment 20% 10 33% N 20%E33%
Motor vehicles 30% i1 30%
16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16. EAEEE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use REEFRRBEENREDERFAZEHOT
assets and the movements during the year are as
follows:
Office Office
premises  equipment Total
WAEYHE b NS At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FHET
At 1 April 2021 i
MA—H 3,097 1,309 4,406
Charge for the year FRYTE (3,097) (380) (3,477)
At 31 March 2022 and RZEZZF=A=+—HBK
1 April 2022 —E-_FMA—H - 929 929
Charge for the year FRTE - (380) (380)
Carrying amounts at R=ZBZ=F
31 March 2023 ZA=+—HWREE - 549 549

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in
Note 24.

The Group leases office and office equipment for
its operations. The lease contracts are entered into
for fixed term of one to five years. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a
wide range of different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length
of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period
for which the contract is enforceable.

MER SR AR 2 FBENE24 -

AEBERLEMEERLERPARME - WATLE
EFEH(—FERAF)NEEALN - HEGFIRES
BRMEE B2 BEEZHTRIGREGS - &
EEHEMMFHE TR RER - AKE
SRAANNTEREZETA LA BRBIITHHRE -

ERERBRAG 202223 F F W

203



204

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

Restrictions or covenants on leases

In addition, lease liabilities of approximately
HK$577,000 are recognised with related right-
of-use assets of approximately HK$549,000 at 31
March 2023 (2022: lease liabilities of approximately
HK$964,000 and related right-of-use assets of
approximately HK$929,000). The lease agreements
do not impose any covenants other than the security
interests in the leased assets that are held by the
lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purpose.

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR M SRR M

Year ended 31 March 2023
HEr—_ T —F=A=+—HILFE

16. EAEEE®®

HERHREZH

o RZZE=Z=F=ZA=+—0  AEE®ERH
E B E#I577,00078 7T I A0 78 5 FA # & Z&E 49549,000
B (ZEZZF - HEBEH964,000% T & EE
AL E9929,000/87T) - BB ABENEE
BEEBERI  MERRYEBEINERNRE -
EEETSAEEEEE -

17. R—EBREQRANRE

2023

HK$'000

FTHER

Cost of investment in an associate M— B E A R IR E AR 11,200
Share of post-acquisition profits and other comprehensive JEAG W 1% s T R Eo 2 TE

income Weas 18

11,218
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17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE
(continued)

Details of the Group’s associate at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:

RE I ERER MR
Year ended 31 March 2023
BT —F=-HA=+—HIFZ

17. R—EBEQARNKRE &

AEEBERARNBRERROFBAT

Proportion of Proportion of

Place of Principal place of ownership interest  voting right held
Name of entity incorporation business held by the Group by the Group  Principal activity
AEERAN FEERFAN
ERsH LA 4t 2 TEEENY BERERRLA REELA FEXH
Joy Chance Hong Kong Hong Kong 50% 50%  Property holding
Investment Limited
("Joy Chance")
BREEERAR(ER]) FE Bt 50% 50% HEME

The Group has 50% ownership interest and voting
rights in Joy Chance. By considering that the Group
has no sufficient dominant voting rights to direct
the relevant activity of Joy Chance unilaterally, the
directors of the Company conclude that the Group
only has significant influence over Joy Chance and
therefore it is classified as an associate of the Group.

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group's associate is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts
shown in the associate’s financial statements
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

AEBEHEAERNS0%EEEERRIRFZRE - 28
HAKBEYERHNOTAMRERE T EIETER
MRS - ARREERA/AKEEHERRS
BEAFES  ARBENBARKSENBE QT -

BRAAEERZARNYBEERREIIIINT - A
THBEMBEARBE RRRNRIERBMBERE
ERRENPFEHRERPITOEE ©

2023
—EB-=F
HK$°000
FE&T

Non-current assets

IERBEE 24,657

Current assets

mBEE 5

Current liabilities

mEaE 2,226

ERERBRAG 202223 F F W
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M

Year ended 31 March 2023

HE—F-—=—F=HA=+—HIFZ

17. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 17. R—EBEQXTNRE®)
(continued)
2023
HK$'000
FTERT
Revenue KA =
Loss and other comprehensive expense for the year FANEBEREMEEASE (7)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial LB ER B E EHN RS R R AR 2
information to the carrying amount of the interest in NAEENREBESRAT
the associate recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:
2023
HK$'000
THERT
Net assets of Joy Chance ElRMEEFE 22,436
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in Joy Chance ~ REBR BRI EEA #E
Edad=atl 50%
The Group’s share of net assets of Joy Chance AEEEGEREEFE 11,218
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18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE I ERER MR
Year ended 31 March 2023

BT —F=-HA=+—HIFZ

18. ZBEBEEAVFEMAEZEHEE

2023 2022
—E=-= B F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Listed securities held for trading: BIEEEMN EMES :
- Debt instruments -EBIA 2,319 -
Financial asset designated at FVTPL: BERBBBHEANTERFE
LERMEE
— Unlisted life insurance policy - ELEMASRE = 8,209
2,319 8,209

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s financial assets
at FVTPL represent an unlisted life insurance policy
with an insurance company in relation to a key
management personnel of the Group. The policy
is denominated in US$. The Group paid a single
premium of US$1,025,000 for the policy.

The Group may request a surrender of the policy at
any time and receive cash based on the cash value
of the policy at the date of withdrawal, which is
determined by the insurance company by reference
to the premium paid, plus accumulated interest
earned and minus accumulated insurance policy
expenses charged and any surrender charge. The
amount of surrender charge decreases over time
and is no longer required from the 10th year of
contract conclusion onwards. The Group is entitled
to interest at a rate of 5% per annum applied on
the balance of the cash value for two years from the
date of the payment of the premium. Commencing
from the third year, the interest rate for the policy
is 1.25% per annum plus a premium determined by
the insurance company on an annual basis. After
the first ten policy years, no guaranteed minimum
interest rate is applied on the cash value.

RZEZ—_F=ZA=+—H AEEZEBER
EATEFECeMEERE —HRR AT —
NEBAASETFEERABNIELMASRE - %
RENETLFE - AEBERZREINEBMRE
1,025,000% 7T °

REBARER ZHGRF - YERREEHRENR
SEEHRBARKZ2ZEMNRE - SRR
REHF SRR R ) R EHR B R S RAERBR R T4
EET)UIRE  RRFEESHEEREROL
R AR AKESE T FMI TN ERE - NEBEHE
RXNREE BERFUDAE - WEARREE
BEREBROFNES%AE - RE=ZF  FX/ET
F1.25% IR AR B FEEMNREINIR - RRE
METFR  BERERENRERNREEE -

ERERBRAG 202223 F F W
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR M SRR M

Year ended 31 March 2023
A E A=+ —HIFE

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (continued)

19.

In June 2022, the Group submitted an application
for the withdrawal of the key management insurance
policy (the “Withdrawal”). Accordingly, such key
management insurance policy was reclassified to
current assets as at 31 March 2022.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Withdrawal
was completed and recognised a fair value loss of
approximately HK$15,000.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group
subscribed debt instruments with principal amount
of HK$13,650,000 with fixed interest rate ranged
from 7.875% to 11.7% which were listed in
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited with
variety of maturity date.

CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES

18. ZBEBZELATVEHAEZERMEE W

RIZE-_FRA AEERX—NHEIBEEHRAER
RENRERPF(RERD - Bt - ZEEBEEAR
REN-Z__F=ZR=+—BEFHEERPE
E o

B2 =F=A=+—HItFE  REREE=
B WHRER AT EEEH15,000/8 7T °

HE_ZT-_ZF=-A=Z+—H1LFE TE£ERE
EHIERSFR G LB TREPRAASEHE
#313,650,000/8 7L 0 LA B TE F]7.875% £ 11.7%
STEMEBIA -

19. ENEE &fFE

2023 2022
—E2-= —=EFT-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHxT FHET
Contract assets BHEE 18,238 19,962
Less: allowance for credit losses B OREEEEE (102) -
18,136 19,962
Contract liabilities aHaE 6,293 4,827

The contract assets represent the Group's rights to
consideration for work completed but not billed
at the reporting date. The contract assets are
transferred to trade receivables when the rights
become unconditional other than the passage of
time.

Hephaestus Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022/23
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

Year ended 31 March 2023

BE—_F-_—F=-HA=1—HIFE

19. CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES 19. EHEE BB®W

(continued)

REERRBEACENRNTEAEFHANR

There were no retention monies held by the

customers for contract works performed at the end BE o

of reporting period.

The Group classifies these contract assets as current AEBBZECNEESERRE - J??_leKE =
because the Group expects to realise them in its BERZEGNEENEATEERTE

normal operating cycle.

The contract liabilities primarily represent the
advanced consideration received from customers for
which revenue is recognised based on the progress
toward complete satisfaction of the related services.

Significant changes in the contract assets and
contract liabilities during the year are as follows:

EMNAEXERUIMATEFPNEMKE  MEKA
T51% 55 22 AR R BR A% O E E T R AR -

FRABHNEENRANABBNEREZHINT

2023 2022
—EB-=F —F-—
Contract Contract Contract Contract
assets liabilities assets liabilities
EHNEE EHEE BREE aXaE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET FHIT T
Revenue recognised FUMAREHBERS
that was included in the FRIERABA
contract liability balance
at the beginning of the
year 1,374 2,858
Transfer from contract BERFVERNENE
assets recognised at the EEREEZREW
beginning of the year to FRIE
trade receivables (15,301) (11,052)

During the year, the cumulative catch-up
adjustments to revenue (increase in revenue)
affecting the corresponding contract asset or
contract liability amounted to approximately
HK$721,000 (2022: HK$3,901,000).

As at 31 March 2023, the balance of contract assets
amounting to approximately HK$2,410,000 (2022:
HK$2,610,000) which are expected to be settled
after one year.

FR - PEEEANEERASNEBNE RTE Lqu
A (B8 U A) 49 4721,0008 0 (ZE ==
3,901,000 7T) ©

MN-E-=ZF=ZA=+—H  FEHER-—FEEE
RAKBERSRAAE2,410,0008 T (ZE ==
2,610,000/ 7T) °

EEEZERERD A 2022/23 F F W
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M

Year ended 31 March 2023

HE—F-—=—F=HA=+—HIFZ

19. CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES 19. BREE BEBE®
(continued)
As at 31 March 2023, the balance of contract RZZEZ=F=A=+—H BN —FEER
liabilities amounting to approximately HK$3,388,000 RWARE B BEERRA 73,388,000 TL(ZF =
(2022: HK$2,500,000) which are expected to be —4F : 2,500,000/ 7C) °

recognised as revenue after one year.

Details of impairment assessment of contract EREERBENENFBHN GRS P BEHmEM T
assets are set out in Note 31(b) to the consolidated 31(b) °
financial statements.

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. ESRHEHMEWRKIE
2023 2022
—E-= g
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THxT FHET
Trade receivables B 5 A 12,222 5,265
Allowance for impairment loss BB E R (830) (230)
11,392 5,035
Prepayments, deposits and other TERRIE - EHe Rk
receivables H b fE U FRTE 3,392 1,149
14,784 6,184
The Group has recognised the following trade REEDERBIUTE S RUGIE
receivables:
2023 2022
—E=H —E - F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHET

Arising from interior design and execution R EHEEFHNERRET

with customers K17 11,392 5,000
Arising from other sources of revenue B H AU AR - 35
11,392 5,035

2 1 O Hephaestus Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022/23



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

At the end of reporting period, the aging analysis
of trade receivables, net of loss allowance, based on
invoice date is as follows:

20.

RE I ERER MR
Year ended 31 March 2023
BT —F=-HA=+—HIFZ

EZREMERRIE®E)

B 5 A ORIE (40 518 B ) P s B R R B
AEI R I T -

2023 2022

—E-= —E-F

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FH&x FHT

Within 30 days 30BR 1,612 2,098
31-60 days 31£260H 2,554 773
61-90 days 61£290H - 581
91-180 days 91£180H 3,238 287
181-365 days 181%2365H 3,988 1,296
11,392 5,035

Trade receivables are generally due within 30 to
60 days from the date of billing. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest bearing. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly
by management.

Included in trade receivables is an allowance for
impairment loss of approximately HK$830,000
(2022: HK$230,000) for which the amount has aged
over 365 days as at 31 March 2023. The relevant
interior design contract was early terminated and
the payment has been withheld by the customer.

As at 31 March 2023, included in the Group's trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate
carrying amount of approximately HK$7,384,000
(2022: HK$2,875,000) which are past due as at
the reporting date. Out of the past due balances,
HK$4,122,000 (2022: HK$1,296,000) has been
past due more than 90 days and is not considered
as in default since the amounts are still considered
as recoverable based on historical experience and
forward-looking estimates.

ZEoRKFE—BREARBHBRI0E60H R E
H o AEBUTERZSEEHFEAMERR - EH
FEUGRIE TR B o ANEE sk & KI5 8 B UWGRIE
HFERIRIEE - mMAS I REEETE SR -

RZE_=ZF=ZA=+—8 BHEKFEF
B EEEEEX830,0008 L (Z T - —F :
230,000/ 7T) - EEREREHEiB365H - HEMNZER
BRETAHBERER L MEBFEMBMNR -

MN-ZBE-=Z#=ZA=+—08 A&EEEFEKRKX
BEGBEAREBHCOARMERRAEDN B
7,384,000/8 (= FE = =4 : 2,875,000/ 7T) K BE
oo EmEisER T 4,122,000 (T - —F
1,296,000/ 7T) B @ A BB 90 H TR A 4T -
FRREBEAERE LATEEE - BEZEDT
RAT LAY E o

ERERBRAG 202223 F F W
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR M SRR M

Year ended 31 March 2023
HEr—_ T —F=A=+—HILFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. EFRHEAMBERRIE D
(continued)
The carrying amounts of trade receivables are B S RUGRIERN R ERA TEEE -
denominated in the following currencies:
2023 2022
—E=F —E -
HK$’'000 HK$'000
F#ExT FHT
HK$ BT 11,259 4,905
Renminbi (“RMB") ARBTARY]) 133 130
11,392 5,035
Details of impairment assessment of trade and 2 5 M A BB R EN GO BEEHN R T
other receivables are set out in Note 31(b) to the R MFE31D) °
consolidated financial statements.
21. BANK AND CASH BALANCES 21. RITRBRSERR
Bank balances carry interest at market rates which IR1THE82120.001% £0.55% MG R KT B (= F
ranged from 0.001% to 0.55% (2022: 0.001%,). Z 2% :0.001%) °
The carrying amounts of bank and cash balances are RITRIRSERNREERN TEBE -
denominated in the following currencies:
2023 2022
—E== —F-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ExT T
HK$ BIT 4,410 19,617
uss$ EH 595 -
Japanese Yen (“JPY") HE(TBREA) = 1,299
RMB AR 71 1,727
5,076 22,643

Details of impairment assessment of bank and
cash balances are set out in Note 31(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Hephaestus Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022/23
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22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

Year ended 31 March 2023

e —F-_=ZF=A=+—HIFE

22. ESREMEFRNTIE

2023 2022
—E=-= —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Trade payables B 5 e /I8 - 90
Accruals and other payables FEETE A I CHL h FE A~ RRIE 4,309 4,350
4,309 4,440
Trade payables as at 31 March 2023 were due RZBEZ=F=A=+—H EHEMAFERHAE
within 7 days from the date of billing. HEARRET7H A EIAS -
The aging analysis of the trade payables based on EREEABNE SENFIERRSTOT
invoice date is as follows:
2023 2022
—ZE=-= —F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Within 30 days 30HA - 90
The carrying amounts of trade and other payables B 5 REMENFIENREEZATEEE
are denominated in the following currencies:
2023 2022
—E=-= —E-F
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FTER FHET
HK$ BT 4,302 4,397
RMB AR - 8
New Taiwan dollar (“NT$") meBlwmar)) 7 35
4,309 4,440
23. AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR 23. BN—RESEMR
The amount due to a director is non-trade in nature, EN—R2EZEEZFERIESHHLE  BHFAR 22K

unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. BIRBESRIER o

EEERARAD 2022235 5% 213
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE IR R MR
Year ended 31 March 2023
A E A=+ —HIFE

24. LEASE LIABILITIES

24, HEEE

Present value of minimum

Minimum lease payments lease payments
RERERE BREHERERE
2023 2022 2023 2022
—E-=E —Z- = —EC-=E —ECZCF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR T#x TET
Within one year —FR 408 409 397 386
In the second to fifth years, E_ERE(REBEEME)
inclusive 182 590 180 578
590 999 577 964
Less: Future interest expenses B ARRF B (13) (35)  N/ATEA N/ATE
577 964 577 964
Less: Portion of amount due for 35 : R12{E B REIHEE
settlement within 12 months MEeBEHD (R
(shown under current HEBEETIIT)
liabilities) (397) (386)
Amount due for settlement after ~ M12{E A4 2| E4E E 1)
12 months i 180 578
2023 2022
—E-=F -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&x FHEIT
Lease payments: MERFK -
Total cash outflow for leases (Note 32(b)) TSI & i H 4258 (BF:E32(b)) 3,925 4,419

At 31 March 2023, the incremental borrowing rate
applied on the calculation of present value of lease
liabilities was ranged from 2.63% to 3.06% per
annum (2022: 2.63% to 3.06% per annum).

The Group uses the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rates to discount future lease payments since
interest rates implicit in the leases are not readily
determinable. In determining the discounts rates for
its leases, the Group refers to a rate that is readily
observable as the starting point and then applies
judgement and adjusts such observable rate to
determine the incremental borrowing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. DEFERRED TAX

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following
is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purpose.

RE I ERER MR
Year ended 31 March 2023

B2 F_—F-H=+—=HIFE

25. JEEBIR
NEAMBRARLIE - B TREEHAEERR
BRI o AT RRES 2 MM = AREHRE
ERDHT ©

2023 2022
—E-=F —EF-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Deferred tax assets EETIAE E 16 48
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHIEA R (181) -
(165) 48
The following are the deferred tax liabilities/(assets) T AREERREE BT FERRBIELTHIE
recognised and movements thereon during the BE/(EE)RHEEE :
current and prior years:
Deductible tax  Right-of-use Lease
depreciation assets liabilities Total
TEBE
nE  RABEE HEaE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL THL FEL FEL
At 1 April 2021 R-E--#mA—H (35) 661 (667) 41
(Credit)/Charge to profit or loss (Note 11) GIA)/ Bk eBEEN) 8) (522) 523 7
At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2023 WZE--#=ZA=t-HRk
Z2-=4NA-H (43) 139 (144) (48)
(Credit)/Charge to profit or loss (Note 11) GEA)/HkaBEEEn) 213 (49) 49 213
At 31 March 2023 RZEZ=F=f=1-H 170 90 (95) 165

At 31 March 2023, the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately HK$2,000,000 (2022:
HK$2,000,000) available for offset against future
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the unused tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The unused
tax losses will be carried forward indefinitely.

MWTZE-=ZF=ZF=+—08  AEEHEAE K
IR ) B9 AR ) B AR T A5 18 492,000,000 7T (==
Z 4% : 2,000,000/ 7T) © B3R AR R 5 F it = 2 A
TER - B ASEHERERERELEHREE
E o ABATIEEIBEERILEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE IR R MR
Year ended 31 March 2023
HEr—_ T —F=A=+—HILFE

26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. B’
Number of shares Amount
RO EE Ex-c}
Notes HK$'000
Bt zE THEL
Authorised: EE
At 1 April 2021 R-E-—%FmA—H
= Ordinary shares of HK$0.0001 - BRAE{E0.00018 LA
each LRk 100,000,000,000 10,000
Share consolidation Bina ot (b) (80,000,000,000) -
At 31 March 2022 and R-ZB--F=Zf=+-HR
31 March 2023 —BE-=ZF=ZH=+-8
- Ordinary shares of HK$0.0005 - BREE0.00058 LAY
each BER 20,000,000,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAE
At 1 April 2021 R-ZZE-—%FNA—H
- Ordinary shares of HK$0.0001 - BRE{E0.00018 LA
each LEmk 1,221,052,631 122
Repurchase and cancellation of RIDEER Rt
shares (a) (115,904,000) (14)
Share consolidation BRinadt (b) (889,802,105) =
At 31 March 2022 and RZBZZEZA=+-HR
31 March 2023 —E-=f=ZA=+-H
- Ordinary shares of HK$0.0005 - BREE0.000558 LAY
each EER 215,346,526 108
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Note:

(a)

(b)

Repurchase and cancellation of shares
During the year ended 31 March 2022, the
Company repurchased its own shares as follows:

26.

RE I ERER MR
Year ended 31 March 2023
BT —F=-HA=+—HIFZ

e NE

GEX

(a)

BADEEE R T 8H
REE_Z-_—FZA=+—HIFER  KXAQ7
BEOEAFHROOT :

Number  Highest price  Lowest price
of shares paid per paid per  Aggregated
repurchased share share price paid
2EE sRed SREM
ROEE BaER BIEEK EfBER
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
BT BT TR
Before share consolidation: RIHE BT - Before share consolidation:
= June 2021 —E--FXA = June 20200,960,000 0.076 0.070 7,457
= July 2021 —Z-—%+R = July 2021 7,840,000 0.067 0.063 507
— August 2021 —Z--%N\A — August 202,520,000 0.043 0.043 65
- September 2021 —T--FARA ~ September 2020,000 0.042 0.042 2
110,360,000 8,031
After share consolidation: RBRAEHE After share consolidation:
- September 2021 —ZT--EhA - September42022,000 0.475 0.230 1,549
- October 2021 —E-—-%+A - October 2@2720,000 0.480 0.430 1,306
117,152,000 10,886

The above shares were fully cancelled during the
year ended 31 March 2022.

Pursuant to section 37 of the Cayman Islands
Companies Act, an amount equivalent to
the nominal value of the shares cancelled of
approximately HK$14,000 was transferred to the
capital redemption reserve and the share premium
account was adjusted accordingly.

Share consolidation

With the approval of the Company’s shareholders
at an extraordinary general meeting held on 31
August 2021, every five issued and unissued shares
of HK$0.0001 each were consolidated into one
share of HK$0.0005 each in the share capital of the
Company with effect from 2 September 2021.

(b)

RN ERBE S —E=A=t+—HIEE
BEABGEH -

REFEHBSRREEI7R - BEXRDEHEROE
BEZ&E#14,0008 TEERERABERHE -
Bt s (B MR O AR FEFREE -

BHAEH
RAEQNFTREE-_ZE-_—FNA=+—HBETZRK
RERIReiEE  SRAKRESREE0.0001E T2
BEITRABITRODEAHBE—RARBRAFTF
M E{E0.00058 L2 Bfh BT =——FNLA=H
HBAERY -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE IR R MR
Year ended 31 March 2023
B — iF = A= +— HEFE

27. RESERVES
(a) Group

(b)

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and
movements therein are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

Nature and purpose of reserves

()

(i)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, the application of the
share premium account is governed
by the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. Share premium of the Company
is distributable to shareholders subject
to the provisions of the Company’s
Memorandum and Articles of Association
and provided that immediately following
the distribution, the Company is able
to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

Capital redemption reserve

The capital redemption reserve
represents the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company repurchased and
cancelled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. RESERVES (continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves
(continued)
(iii) Other reserves

Other reserves comprise:

- the adjustment of legal capital
of Absolute Surge Limited
(“Absolute Surge”) to reflect the
Company’s legal capital (arising
from a reverse takeover (Note));
and

- the difference between the
nominal value of share capital of
the subsidiaries of Absolute Surge
acquired over the nominal value of
the share capital of Absolute Surge
issued in exchange therefor.

Note: On 13 November 2019, the Company

completed an acquisition of the entire
equity interests of Absolute Surge by
issue and allotment of 760,000,000
new shares at the price of HK$0.19
each which constituted a reverse
takeover.

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopted a share option scheme on
30 July 2012 (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to the
eligible participants who contributed to the growth
of the Group. Under the Share Option Scheme, the
directors may grant options to eligible full-time or
part-time employees, including any executive, non-
executive and independent non-executive directors,
and consultants or advisers of the Company and/or
any of its subsidiaries. The Share Option Scheme as
valid and effective for a period of ten years from the
adoption date.

27.

28.

RE I ERER MR
Year ended 31 March 2023

B2 F_—F-H=+—=HIFE

X TC
(b) REZMERAR®)

(i) HAfbfEE
HEMREERE

- #ZAbsolute Surge Limited
([Absolute Surge]) % E ALK
AN A B EE R (B A BRI
BB« &

- FrdEEAbsolute SurgeI B A &)
BRR AN EE R BRATET
Absolute Surgefx NEBE 2 = £

P 5 EA:;: hWE+—A+=8" &
ANEIEBBIETIR0.19B LB
1% %577 K At 760,000,000 4% 37 %
5+ LASTRCUEE Absolute Surge”
2 ERHE - WA R UREE -
i AR RS &

ARRRZB——F+ A=+ BRMN—ABERE
Z([BRETE])  SHEAYAKEERELER
MAER2EERMERNEE - RIFERET
3 EFARARRALELEEAMNBRARNAE
RERSRBES (BRIMAMAT  FRTREL
FHTES  URFEBALBER)RLBERE B
PRt &) B R B AR A R M A R R AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4= A

ARA TSR MR

Year

E3

28.

ended 31 March 2023
CEC=F=HA=1—HIFFE

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme, and any other option schemes is not
permitted to exceed 30% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time. The
number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted to any individual in any one year is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the issued share capital
of the Company without prior approval from the
Company'’s shareholders.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to
any of their associates, are subject to approval
in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted to
a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the closing price of the Company’s
shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5
million, within any 12-month period, are subject
to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

Options granted must be taken up within thirty days
of the date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per
grant.

Options may be exercised at any time during a
period to be notified by the Board upon the grant
of options provided that the option period shall
not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the
options. No minimum period for which an option
must be held is required. The exercise price, which
is determined by the Board is the highest of: (i) the
closing price per share on the date of grant; (ii) the
average closing price per share for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of a share.
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28.

29.

30.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Options do not confer rights on the holder to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

No share options were granted by the Company or
exercised during the years ended 31 March 2023
and 2022. There are no share options outstanding at
31 March 2023 and 2022.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group leases office premises for its operations.
On 1 January 2022, the Group entered into a
tenancy agreement with the landlord, Waldorf
Holdings Limited (a company controlled by Mr.
Norman Chan) in relation to the lease of office
premises for a term of 12 months commencing from
1 January 2022 and expiring on 31 December 2022
at a monthly rent of HK$293,000.

On 1 January 2023, the Group entered into a
tenancy agreement with Waldorf Holdings Limited in
relation to the lease of office premises for a term of
12 months commencing from 1 January 2023 and
expiring on 31 December 2023 at a monthly rent of
HK$293,000.

As at 31 March 2023, the outstanding lease
commitments relating to the office premises is
HK$2,637,000 (2022: HK$2,637,000).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and
to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets.

28.

29.

30.

RE I ERER MR
Year ended 31 March 2023

BT —F=-HA=+—HIFZ

BT 8 (®)
BRI EE TR A AERRS IR BRRAE LR
R 2R -

REE-_ZE-_=ZFR T -_—"F=ZA=+—HLF
B ARaWER L B ETEEMERE - R
T CFRCE - —F= A=+ —HEERKRITE
BB e

KEHEZH

AEEHERLEMEEEE - NE-__F—A
—B - AREEREIEEEEFGR AR (RERLEE
2HlZ AR ERZ  RRAEE =T ==
F—B—RA#E-_T-_—F#+-_A=-+—HItHE
WAEWE - BE12MER - AT A293,000/8 7T °

R-ZE-=F—A—B A&EREFBEEFRAQ

AMPAEYERETUHERS AT - =F
—A-BE_T_=F+_A=1+—RAAH+_@
A+ A#H293,000% 7T °

RZEBE-_=ZF=ZA=+—8 BEBRAZEVEN
REBEREAYER2,637,0008 T (B - —F :
2,637,000/ 7T) °

EXERER
AEBEREANBRGEASEURFEEES
BERE)  WARREHDm M AE MR HRMH
B Wi REBEARE - WREAKAK -

REFHURHEERRE - ARE AL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M
Year ended 31 March 2023

A E - F=A=+—HIFFE

30. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) ~ 30. ERBEREE @)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing AEBERERAGBHREZEER - R ETIIRE
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided BERERAERERAE - B FEREERE
by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total RHEABERRERBCEEYE - EREER
borrowings and lease liabilities less cash and cash e MR R PR | NERFEE (EA) &t
equivalents. Total capital is calculated as “equity” 8o

as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position, plus net debt, where applicable.

The calculation of the Group’s gearing ratios are REBERNEXRBEL EZERUATEIRETE

based on the following data:

2023 2022
—E-= —EF-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBxT T
Lease liabilities HEaE 577 964
Amount due to a director B —REEFHIA 260 -
Less: cash and cash equivalents B IRe MRS EEY (5,076) (22,643)
Net cash BeFR (4,239) (21,679)
Equity T 44,796 47,848
Gearing ratio BEXRBERLE N/ATE A N/AZ 3 FB
At 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group is in a net RIB-=FKR-_TBE-__F=A=+—H KA&EH
cash position. BAFIREMM
31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 31. €T H
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) €T AEHR
2023 2022
—E_-= —E- %
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHET
Financial assets SREE
At amortised cost REHA AR E 19,445 28,303
Financial assets at FVTPL BREEERATEFEZ
TREE 2,319 8,209
Financial liabilities SRaE
At amortised cost b BN 4,358 4,158
Lease liabilities HEaE 577 964
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments
include financial assets included in trade and
other receivables, bank balances, financial
assets at FVTPL, financial liabilities included in
trade and other payables, amount due to a
director and lease liabilities.

Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management
of the Group manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented in a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
(i) Currency risk

The Group is mainly exposed to the
foreign exchange risk of US$, RMB, NT$
and JPY. Under the pegged exchange
rate system, the financial impact on
exchange difference between HK$
and US$ will be immaterial as all US$
denominated monetary assets and
liabilities are held by group entities
having HK$ as their functional currency,
and therefore no sensitivity analysis
has been prepared. For RMB, NT$ and
JPY, no sensitivity analysis has been
prepared as the amounts involved are
insignificant. The Group does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy in
respect of foreign currency transactions,
assets and liabilities. The Group monitors
its foreign currency exposure closely and
will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

RE I ERER MR
Year ended 31 March 2023
BT —F=-HA=+—HIFZ

3. SRMI A
(b) REREEEEREE

AEBENTIECHMTABREAAES REM
EWFENERMEE  IRTTERR - BBIRE
BAFEFEZEREE FAESRHEM
ENFRENERAR BN -REFHER
HERIE -

R ITEAEMBEEENEPRERE - HZE
SRITEMAENRRBFETSER (%R
B - FIRER MEMERRR) - EERER KX
RBESRER - AW EEKZ SRR K
KEINOT - AEBEBEEEHZSRABRET
B RET UBRKEEICRIUEE &
iiiid

5 &L b

() EEEER
AEBFEEBEBEETL ARE -
A& A E K SNE R B o fEH B E R
BIET  ARFTEUERTAHENEEE
ERAEHHAEBTANEEEHNER
BEEE  BWUBATEETZHENEN
EZBNMBFEMRTRE AT ER
BGBEDIN - RARKE - ¥ RA
EmME @ AR E G/ - B &
IREGRBE DN - NEBIWEFRINER
5 BERBESITINEEFBE - K
SEeTYERHIINERR TRES
BEGE B EAIMNER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M
Year ended 31 March 2023

A E - F=A=+—HIFFE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i1)

(ifi)

Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to variable-
rate bank balances. The Company’s
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of
interest on bank balances. The Company
manages its interest rate exposures by
assessing the potential impact arising
from any interest rate movements based
on interest rate level and outlook.

Bank balances are excluded from
sensitivity analysis as the management
considers that the exposure of cash flow
interest rate risk arising from variable
bank balances is insignificant.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price
risk mainly through its investment in
debt securities and its investments in key
management insurance policy measured
at FVTPL. The management manages
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio
of investments with different risk and
return profiles. The Group’s equity price
risk is mainly concentrated on debt
securities quoted on the relevant stock
exchange and the surrender value as
defined in the insurance contract. The
fair value of the unlisted investment will
fluctuate, subject to the returns which
are at the discretion of the issuers of
the investments. Such contracts have
minimum guaranteed returns during the
holding period. Management is of the
opinion that the price risk arising from
the policy is not significant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

Other price risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity to every 20% change in the
fair values of the listed debt securities
(2022: 10% change in the fair values of
the key management insurance), with all
other variables held constant, based on
their carrying amounts at the end of the
reporting period.

RE I ERER MR
Year ended 31 March 2023
BT —F=-HA=+—HIFZ

3. SRMI A
(b) 2RBEREEAERBEKE

miS AR (E)

(i)

E A (E1E /A Bz ()

MT - BRELITEBEEHFRREBR
MEEEE S LETEKESFHNATE
F20%E( T _—F : HTEEH
AEBREHAFETI0%ES) NEE
J‘g“o

Increase/ (Decrease)/ (Decrease)/
(decrease) in Increase in loss Increase in
fair value before tax equity
AFEEM  BREAERED) (R Y)
J/(BD) Vg ! /M
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% FET FTET
2023 —E-=F
Debt securities, at fair value (&% &% (R A F(E) 20 (464) 464
(20) 464 (464)
Increase/ (Decrease)/ (Decrease)/
(decrease) in Increase in profit Increase in
fair value before tax equity
ATEEN  BRHANEF D) )
J/(RY) Vg /M
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% TET FEL
2022 —E-CF
Key management insurance, ~FEZERASRE
at fair value (BAFE) 10 821 821
(10) (821) (821)
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RE IR R MR
Year ended 31 March 2023
HEr—_ T —F=A=+—HILFE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s
counterparties default on their contractual
obligations resulting in financial losses to
the Group. The Group’s credit risk exposures
are primarily attributable to financial assets
at FVTPL, trade and other receivables,
contract assets and bank balances. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements to cover its credit risks

associated with its financial assets.

Financial assets at FVTPL — Key management

insurance policy

The Group's credit risk on key management
insurance policy held is limited since the
counterparty is a top-tier financial service

provider with good reputation.

Financial assets at FVTPL — Debt securities

In respect of debt securities at FVTPL, the
Group invests in debt securities with non-
credit rating. The directors regularly review and
monitor the portfolio of debt securities and
regularly monitor the credit risk by realisation
in the market. Details of the terms of these
investments are disclosed in Note 18. Summary
of the fair value and principal amount of these

debt securities are set out below.

3. ERMI A
(b) ¢RERETEEERBE®)

EE R KR A

FERREERAKREXSZHFEREEH
BEEMERAEERZPHRRNER - K
SENEERRIZREBBESZRATE
HEZERMEE  EHNREMEWHE A
MEENRITER  AREALESAEME
A EMEENREEREERESRE
EREHEERR -

BB RN FEFAEZEBEE -TEE
HABRE
HRRXZEFRE—HEBERIN—RERBR
BHER  DEASERRMBEIEEE
ABRENEERBRAR -

EBRm LA FEGTEZTHEE — EF5E
=
RBEBBRRAFEFENEBESMS -
AEERENBEEEIRANELES - EF
TR REREHESAS  WEBEM
LERATHEREERR - AFRENGK
AHBRME18FRE - ZFEBEFHAF
BERANSBEHMIAT

2023

—EB-=F
Fair Principal
value amount
ATE KEEE
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET
Non-ranking T AR 2,319 13,650
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets

In respect of trade receivables and contract
assets, individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers. These evaluations
focus on the customer’s reputation and past
history of making payments when due and
take into account information specific to the
customer obtained from external valuer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the customer operates. Monitoring
procedures have been implemented to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, management
reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt and contract asset
regularly to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are recognised for irrecoverable debts.
In this regard, the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group's exposure to credit risk
is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer, therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk
primarily arise when the Group has significant
exposure to individual customers. As at 31
March 2023, the Group had concentration of
credit risk on trade receivables as 50% (2022:
82%) of its trade receivables were due from
two (2022: four) customers which contributed
over 10% of the Group’s trade receivables.
As at 31 March 2023, the Group had
concentration of credit risk on contract assets
as 26% (2022: 27%) of its contract assets
were due from two (2022: one) customers
which individually contributed over 10% of
the Group’s contract assets. Management is
of the view that these customers are certain
reputable companies with high credit-ratings
in the market, hence, the credit risk is limited
in this regard.

RE I ERER MR
Year ended 31 March 2023
BT —F=-HA=+—HIFZ

3. SRMI A
(b) 2RBEREEAERBEKE
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(continued)

The Group measures loss allowance for trade
receivables and contract assets at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a collective and individual assessment.
As the Group'’s historical credit loss experience
indicates significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the impairment
loss based on past due status is further
distinguished between the Group’s different
customer bases.

The customer bases consist of the following
groups, classified by credit risk characteristics:

Collective assessment

Group A: Individual customers and corporate
customers have no historical
default record

Individual customers and corporate
customers have delayed repayment
record and overdue more than 60
days but within 180 days but no
historical default record

Group B:

Other customers are neither in
Group A and B but not credit-
impaired

Group C:

Individual assessment
Credit-impaired trade receivables and contract
assets are assessed for ECL individually.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(continued)

For Group A, the Group has monitoring
procedures in place to make sure that the
credit limit granted to these customers
maintains at an acceptable level. In this regard,
management considers credit risk in respect of
these customer is significantly mitigated.

For Group B, in view of the history of business
dealings with the customers and the sound
collection history of the receivable due from
them, management believes that there is no
material credit risk inherent in the Group's
outstanding receivable balance due from these
customers.

For Group C, expected loss rates are with
reference from external valuer's information.
These rates are adjusted to reflect differences
between economic conditions during the
period over which the historical data has been
collected, current conditions and the Group's
view of economic conditions over the expected
lives of the receivables.

Credit impaired trade receivables with
gross carrying amount of approximately
HK$766,000 (2022: HK$230,000) as at 31
March 2023 were individually assessed. At
31 March 2023, the balance of impairment
loss in respect of these individually assessed
receivables was approximately HK$766,000
(2022: HK$230,000).

RE I ERER MR
Year ended 31 March 2023
BT —F=-HA=+—HIFZ

3. SRMI A
(b) 2REREEEERBEKE

FERB KRBT E
EZREMBERTELREKEE (&)

HRAME - AKREBECHITEERF BRI
TREEPNEEREEREFEAERIKF -
HULTE ERERR/ZEREFPNEER
EAMEREE o

BB - ERIBERZFEPHERBERIA
REWZEREPRENBRLER M - B
ERRANEERWZETPHAREREBYR
RESTEFEEANBEREERR -

HRCHE - BHEBRXIIZZINEHERD
BRFH AEECDHARBLLEETHE
PAR BRI S 38 1 BUBR BRI M0 8B AR - B AT
AT B 7R 6% (8] 5 8 LS SR TR TR B 4R B A A AR
MENBEZBHER -

RZTZ=F=A=+—H EEAEYD
766,000 7T (Z T = —4F : 230,000/ 7T)
HIREERENE SRR ED E/TEFF
HeR-ZE-_=F=A=+—H ' ZZE@E5
FE S FE W IB R R B B 1B 45 8240 /£ 766,000
WL (ZZT = Z4F : 230,000/ 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE IR R MR
Year ended 31 March 2023
A E A=+ —HIFE

insignificant and hence, no loss allowance has
been recognised.
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REIREE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 31. €T HEE
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) SREAREEEERBE®E)
and policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EERMBERES G E
(continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets F 5 H N B B A 4B B ()
(continued)
The following table provides im‘prmation about TEEMHEBAEEZ S EWHER T =
the Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECL —ER-—E-—FE-A=-+-—BHEERR
for trade receivables as at 31 March 2023 and RIS EIBYAR -
2022.
2023
“BC-=F
Average  Gross carrying Loss Net carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
S8 -Ed REAE BERE REFE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% THER T FHR
Provision on collective basis  ZEBEERHE
Group A AR 0.5% 6,639 (32) 6,607
Group B B4 0.6% 2,812 (16) 2,796
Group C (| 0.8% 2,005 (16) 1,989
11,456 (64) 11,392
Provision on individual basis  XERIEERE 100% 766 (766) -
12,222 (830) 11,392
2022
—ECCF
Average Gross carrying Loss Net carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
FHEERER FHBE BEAE REFE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Provision on collective basis  FEREERHE
Group A AR 0.2% 3,586 - 3,586
Group B B4 0.1% 1,123 - 1,123
Group C (| 0.6% 326 - 326
5,035 - 5,035
Provision on individual basis % fERIEE&1E 100% 230 (230) -
5,265 (230) 5,035
* The expected credit loss for trade receivable is * B RWRIENEREESBEMTRE - At E



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(continued)

The following table provides information about

the Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECL for
contract assets as at 31 March 2023 and 2022.

31.

RE I ERER MR
Year ended 31 March 2023
BT —F=-HA=+—HIFZ

EMIA#E
(b) SREREEEERBEKE

FERB KRBT E
EZREMBERTELREKEE (&)
TREHREBAKEANEENR T _=F

NTE-—HF=-A=+—HBHHEERRKRNE
BzEEEMNER -

2023
ZEC-=F
Average Gross Loss Net carrying
loss rate carrying amount allowance amount
FHERR REAE ERAR REFE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% A7 T#7 7
Group A A 0.6% 18,238 (102) 18,136
2022
Average Gross Loss Net
loss rate carrying amount allowance carrying amount
THERX RREE BEEE REFE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TEL TEL TEL
Group A A 0.35% 19,962 -* 19,962
* The expected credit loss for contract assets is * AHEEMNTRBEEREMNTRE - Bt

insignificant and hence, no loss allowance has
been recognised.

The average loss rates are with reference to
external valuer’s information. These rates
are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic condition during the period over
which historical data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group's view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of
receivable. The grouping is regularly reviewed
by management to ensure relevant information
about specific debtors is updated.

ERERIE RS -

FHERXTD2EINEBHEMOEMNSLE -
AEBEHEBLTETRAE  URBRE
BEBRMEEENR - B AR BAE
B8 UG RFEF NG BERRANE IR
BMER - EEEEHMEHNIOME - BEFE
BB AREEERSRIER -
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Year ended 31 March 2023
—E—CHFEZ A=+ HILFE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(continued)

The following table shows the movement
in lifetime ECL that has been recognised for
trade receivables and contract assets under the
simplified approach.

3. ERMI A
(b) ¢RERETEEERBE®)

EE R R E G

EZREMBENTELREKEE (&)

TRINTEEATERE SRR HIBERE K
BEERNEHNAMEEERNES -

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

not credit credit
impaired impaired Total
20N 2H%EH
EEEE FEEE
WEHE % 35
FEHE FERE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THT THT
At 1 April 2021 R-ZE-—FNA—H - - -
Impairment recognised in profitor ~ FMEZHERARE
loss - 230 230
At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 R=E-=F=ZA=+—-HK
“E--FMA—H - 230 230
Impairment recognised in profitor ~ PBEFERKRE
loss 166 536 702
At 31 March 2023 R-ZEZ=%=A=1-H 166 766 932
Other receivables H KL TE

For other receivables, management makes
periodic individual and collective assessments
on the recoverability of other receivables
based on historical settlement records and
past experience. Management considers that
there is no material credit risk inherent in
the Group's outstanding balances of other
receivables.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group has assessed
that the expected credit losses for these
receivables are not significant under the
12-month expected loss method. Hence, no
loss allowance has been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Bank balances

The credit risk on bank balances is limited since
the counterparties are banks with high credit-
ratings.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

The following table details the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay.

RE I ERER MR
Year ended 31 March 2023
BT —F=-HA=+—HIFZ

3. SRMI A
(b) 2REREEEERBEKE

FERB KRBT E

RiTHs:
MRRZEFHREEFRBRSHORT
IRTTHEBNERERBRER -

REE SR
AEBNBREEERERENNERRDE
EHRF - BEESARASHEBARTER
RN BERPNRBHESTENR

TRHFVNAEETESRABHORBRALH
2IEA - TIREAEE A B B SR R &
ERHRERABERTERERERE -

Total

Weighted ~ On demand contractual Total

or less than 1to 2to undiscounted carrying

interest rate 1year  2years  5years cash flow amount
REXE BRARR

mEFINE -§n -EZWF WERLF RERELE RELE

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TEL  TAT  TAR AL TR

At 31 March 2023 RZBZ=F=F=1-H

Trade and other payables B S REMERFTE N/ATER 4,100 = = 4,100 4,100

Amount due to a director BN —ZEEHE N/ATER 260 = = 260 260

Lease liabilities HEaE 408 182 = 590 577
4,768 182 - 4,950 4,937

At 31 March 2022 R-B-ZEZR=1-H

Trade and other payables &5 REMERFE NAT R 4,158 - - 4,158 4158

Lease liabilities MERRE 409 408 182 999 964
4,567 408 182 5,157 5,122
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RE s
Year ended

2P-F -

WRMIEE
31 March 2023
ZFZA=F—HIFE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(9]

Fair value measurement of financial
instruments

Some of the Group's financial instruments are
measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes. The finance department of the
Group includes a team responsible for the fair
value measurements of assets and liabilities
required for financial reporting purposes,
including level 3 fair value measurements.
This team reports directly to the directors for
these fair value measurements. Discussions
of valuation processes and results are held
between the team and the directors at each
reporting date.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is
available. For instruments with significant
unobservable input under level 3, the Group
engages third party qualified valuers to
perform the valuation.

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial assets
are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the
fair values of these financial assets are
determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used), as well
as the level of fair value hierarchy into
which the fair value measurements are
categorised (levels 1 to 3) based on the
degree to which the input to the fair
value measurements are observable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Fair value measurement of financial
instruments (continued)
(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial

RE I ERER MR
Year ended 31 March 2023
BT —F=-HA=+—HIFZ

3. SRMI A
() £¢RMIBENAFENE®D

() FREFEZLAFEAENEREEN

assets that are measured at fair AFEE)
value on a recurring basis (continued)
Fair value Fair value
as at as at
31 March 31 March Fair value  Valuation techniques and key
2023 2022 hierarchy  inputs
R-Z=-=fF pPZZT--F
ZR=+-H Z=ZA=t+—H
HAFE MATE APEESR FRERWNRIZEHAHE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET
Financial assets at FVTPL
EREHERATEFE SREAE
= Unlisted investments — Key - 8,209 Level 3 Discount cash flow. Future cash
management insurance contracts E=H flows are estimated as gross
-HITRE-FEEBABRRE redemption value and interest
=X income, taking into
consideration the pattern of
crystallising the contracts and
surrender charges, if any. The
series of periodic net income
for the contracting period is
then discounted.
HRALTE - RRBLREL
Zratn AR EARER
BE(A)  RABECEER
MBRALEE - ARESLE
60— RIUE B F RN THT
o
- Investment in debt securities 2,319 - Level 1 Quoted market price

- BHESRE

& MHERE

During the years ended 31 March 2023
and 2022, there were no transfers
between level 1, level 2 and level 3 fair
value measurements.

HE_ZS-_=FKk-_FT-_—"F=A=+
—BIEFEE - FE_HE=FNF
BRBR 7 B EEE -
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e R R M

Year ended 31 March 2023

A E - F=A=+—HIFFE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Fair value measurement of financial
instruments (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value
measurement

3. ERMI A
() ¢RMIBENAFENE®D

(i)

FE=MDFEFENHEE

Financial assets at FVTPL

ERERBEATVEIEZSRHEE

2023 2022
—E== —F-—

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHERT FET

At the beginning of year REH] 8,209 16,452

Disposals HeE (8,194) (8,206)
Change in fair value recognised in A E#EFER N A FE

profit or loss b= (15) (37)

At the end of year REFR = 8,209

Of the total gains or losses for the period
included in profit or loss, approximately
HK$15,000 (2022: HK$37,000) relates to
unlisted investments — key management
insurance contracts held at the end of
the current reporting period. Fair value
gains or losses on contracts are included
in the line item “Other gains and losses,
net” on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities that
are not measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

The directors consider that the carrying
amounts of other financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate
method in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

Year ended 31 March 2023

HE—FE-—=—F=HA=+—HIFE

32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 32. FEREREBERWE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Reconciliation of liabilities from (a) MEEBHELABHE
financing activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s THRFAVNAEERETHEENEEES -
liabilities arising from financing activities, PEReRIIRSEH METDHELENE
including both cash and non-cash changes. BEAHREMNECKLHERRRERENE
Liabilities arising from financing activities are EXAEENGERERERANDERRER
those for which cash flows were, or future PEANRERENEE -

cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.

Lease liabilities Bank loans
HESE RITEXN
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET
At 1 April 2021 RZE——FHA—H 4,451 45,113
Cash flows ReRE (3,540) (38,051)
Non-cash changes RS EH) - (8,206)
Interest expenses F B 53 1,144
At 31 March 2022 and RZZEZZF=A=+—HK
1 April 2022 —E-—_FPMA—H 964 -
Cash flows BeRE (409) -
Interest expenses MEFRXZ 22 -
At 31 March 2023 RZZE_=F=A=+—H 577 -
(b) Total cash outflow for leases (b) HERSRHEAEE
Amounts included in the consolidated RHEEFAGZERERERNECERIET
statement of cash flows for leases comprise BH
the following:
2023 2022
—E== —F -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Within operating cash flows KEIREREN 3,516 879
Within financing cash flows BMERSREAN 409 3,540
Lease rental paid EffAERe 3,925 4,419
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fra IR M

Year ended 31 March 2023

e —F—=F=HA=+—HIFEF

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33. BBARS
The directors of the Company are of the view that RARBEERE  FA - BUATETNXIER G
during the year, transactions with the following Rl H 5 -

parties are considered as related party transactions:

Name of related parties Relationship with the Group
B s BB HEASENER
Mr. Norman Chan A former executive director and a former director of
significant subsidiaries of the Company
PR % 4 AIITEER A AR EAMBEARMNATES
Waldorf Holdings Limited Controlled by Mr. Norman Chan, a former executive director
and a former director of significant subsidiaries of the
Company
FEEEARAA HREERIITEEZE RAARIERME AR ATEE) 26
In addition to those related party transactions and BARE MR E Mt TR B RS R
balances disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated BRON - REERFANBEH IS0 ¢

financial statements, the Group’s related party
transactions during the year are as follows:

(a) Transaction and balances with related (a) EEEBAINRZRER
parties
Transactions with related parties 2023 2022
HEB TR S —=E-= —E-—
HK$"000 HK$'000
FET FET
Consultancy fee paid to PR 58 & 2 T R BRI B
Mr. Norman Chan (Note (i) CiEz0)) 313 -
Office rental paid to Waldorf MEESEERARINEH
Holdings Limited (Note (ii)) FIENEY i kel bR R (1)) 3,516 4,011
Balances with a related party 2023 2022
ERRAEE 5 Y ASBR —B=-= —E_
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Rental deposit held by Waldorf HESEEARARFAN
Holdings Limited (Note (ii)) MHEZ () 586 586
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(a)

(b)

Transaction and balances with related
parties (continued)
Note:

(i) The transaction constitutes a connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules. However, these
transactions are exempt from the disclosure
requirement in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules as it is below the de minimis threshold
under Rule 20.74.

(i) The transaction and balance with a related
party were conducted on terms and
conditions mutually agreed with the related
party. The details of continuing connected
transactions are set out in the announcement
dated 3 January 2023.

Key management personnel
compensation
Directors are the key management personnel

of the Group whose emoluments are disclosed
in Note 13.

The emoluments of directors and other key
management personnel are as follows:

RE I ERER MR
Year ended 31 March 2023
BT —F=-HA=+—HIFZ

33. EBARSZ#)

(a)

(b)

BHEBLNR S RERE)

GEE

iy ZRXFERGEMLEMHRNFE20EFMATEN
BER S - A - BRZRXHERIFANE
2074 RERERE At ERREST
GEM ET R RIE20E M ERTE -

i) S B 0 5 T A B e S BB 7
I 2 #0017 - R
HERNRSA-—T-=F-A=AMA

=i

FTEEBEASHMH

BEDNAEENEEEEAR  FENHE
WERWTE13 -

BEENHMIZERABNBSOT ¢

2023 2022

—E-= —EF-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
THxT FHET
Salaries and allowances Fre MERG 1,435 3,359
Other benefits (represent rent paid) HEmEFGEENES) 348 348
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RRIE & 21 5 20 54
1,803 3,761

The emoluments of key management
personnel are determined by the directors of
the Company having regard to the respective
responsibilities of the individuals, the
performance of the Group and market trends.

At 31 March 2023, included in accrued salaries
was an amount of approximately HK$71,000
(2022: HK$32,000) being accrued emoluments
in relation to key management personnel
which are unsecured, interest-free and settled
in cash.

TEEBEABNMEIHARREEKFT R
ZEATZENELE  ARENKRBERTIS

BERET -

R-ZZE-_ZFZA=+—H8 " E:iHFLEE
EBEEXEZEEEAB ZEFEE471,0008 T
TE T4 :32,0000870) c BEKE %
BRUB &M -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M
Year ended 31 March 2023

A E - F=A=+—HIFFE

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 34. ARRZHBEMRRERRBEEEE
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the (a) AQFZHBRRE
Company
Notes 2023 2022
B 5T —E=-= ==
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THxT FHEIT
Non-current asset kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R—ERB AR ZEE 87,608 87,600
Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E b e Gk IE 92 -
Prepayments AR RIR = 118
Amount due from a subsidiary &4 — FE B /B 2 B 7 E 7,873 10,040
Bank balances RITHERR 54 52
8,019 10,210
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables — FEFT & F & H b FE S 508 817 961
Amount due to a director B —REEFHIE 260 -
1,077 961
Net current assets RBEEZFE 6,942 9,249
NET ASSETS EEFE 94,550 96,849
Capital and reserves EXRR#E
Share capital [N 26 108 108
Reserves e 34(b) 94,442 96,741
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 94,550 96,849
Approved by the Board of Directors on 23 June KEFEN _T_=FAAZT=A#ER
2023 and are signed on its behalf by: HERKEE
Huang Liang Yip Hiu Ying
) HEEL
Director Director
EE EE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

Year ended 31 March 2023
E-F-=F=A=+—AUEE

#

E —

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 34. ARRZHBERRERRBEERE @)

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

COMPANY (continued)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) ALQBZRERE
Capital
Share Treasury  redemption  Accumulated
premium shares reserve losses Total
RAEE
RiyEE  EFRD [t 25 EB Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THET TR TR
(Note)
(PfE)
At 1 April 2021 R-ZE-—%#MmA—A 156,179 - - (43,193) 112,986
Total comprehensive expense for & 2 i 5 4278
the year - - - (5,319) (5,319)
Repurchase of shares BB - (10,886) - - (10,886)
Share repurchase expense RiDBERY - (45) - - (45)
Cancellation of shares B nE8H (10,940) 10,931 14 - 5
Changes in equity for the year ~ FRiEL# (10,940) - 14 (5,319) (16,245)
At 31 March 2022 RZZ--—#=R=1—H 145,239 - 14 (48,512) 96,741
At 1 April 2022 RZE-_FMNA—H 145,239 - 14 (48,512) 96,741
Total comprehensive expense and  F R FE X A% K
changes in equity for the year BER2E - - - (2,299) (2,299)
At 31 March 2023 RZZ-=F=R=1—A 145,239 - 14 (50,811) 94,442

ERERBRAG 202223 F F W
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE IR R MR
Year ended 31 March 2023
HEr—_ T —F=A=+—HILFE

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

34. ARBRZMBRRRRFEEE B (4

COMPANY (continued)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) AQBZRAEESH(E)
(continued)
Note: B 5T -
Number
of shares Amount
BB EE x|
HK$’'000
FHET
At 1 April 2021 R-ZEBE-_—FmMA—H - -
Before share consolidation: RGBS GHAT :
Repurchase of shares (including related expenses) A& {738 [0 (B2 FE+EFRI ) 110,360,000 8,066
Cancellation of shares (including related expenses) & {p st #H (B IEMERAF ) (108,800,000) (7,999)
1,560,000 67
Share consolidation RN (1,248,000) -
312,000 67
After share consolidation: RIBHEHE :
Repurchase of shares (including related expenses) B D& (B 3EBRIRI ) 6,792,000 2,865
Cancellation of shares (including related expenses) A% 5 84 (R R B R FI ) (7,104,000) (2,932)

At 31 March 2022

R-ZB--_#=A=1+—H
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35. SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 March 2023

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE I ERER MR
Year ended 31 March 2023

BT —F=-HA=+—HIFZ

35. BT
NIE-=ZFN T —FZA=+—HZHERQ

and 2022 are as follows: RGBT -
Places of incorporation Issued and Percentage of
Name of subsidiaries and operation paid up capital ownership interest Principal activities
BRTR
WELAREH AR IREE LS BRRE BEERZAIL TERHR
Direct Indirect
Ef S
ABSOLUTE SURGE LIMITED British Virgin Islands/ uss7 100% = Investment holding
Hong Kong
ERRAES/BR TEL 100% - RE#ER
ABLE RICH INVESTMENT(HK) LIMITED  Hong Kong HK$8,000 100% - Proprietary investment
(2022:-) (2022: 100%)
EREE (BB BRAT &R 8,000 7 100% - MERE
(ZB--%F: (ZE-—%:
) 100%)

BTR (HK) LIMITED Hong Kong HK$1,000 - 100%  Provision of interior design and
execution services and
property investment

&% 1,000/87C - 100% REZEAREARATREUAR
NERE
BTR (INTL) LIMITED Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Inactive
i 10,0007 - 100% EEBED

BTR WORKSHOP LIMITED Hong Kong HK$200,000 - 100%  Provision of interior design and

execution services
& 200,000 7 - 100% FREZEARERMTRE

EEEZERERD A 2022/23 F F W
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B %=

For the year ended 31 March 2023
B2 T -=—F=A=1+—HIFFE

The following is a summary of the published results WU TNALAEBRGIAEATBREENETIEEEULE
and assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five ERBEME  IHBEEAFREARAIR-ZT—NLF
financial years, as extracted from this annual report and ~+— AU R BRERLFEHH SRS -

the accountants’ report as contained in the Company’s

prospectus dated 4 November 2019.

RESULTS: E
For the year ended 31 March
BZ=A=1-HILEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-c=F —E-— —E-—F —E-EE “E-NE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THET THET FET
Revenue N 35,490 51,725 53,238 73,088 69,810
(Loss)/Profit before tax BRI (E1R) R H (2,772) 5,731 9,441 (39,450) 20,148
Income tax gt (280) (1,580) (1,228) (3,196) (2,982)
(Loss)/Profit and total FR(EE),/HH
comprehensive income for REEKHEE
the year (3,052) 4,151 8,213 (42,646) 17,166
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES: EERERE:
For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+-HLEE
2023 2022 2022 2021 2020
—E-=E —E-- —E-- T —T-THF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tz THT TET THET TET
Non-current assets ERBEE 13,919 1,338 13,357 22,305 11,354
Current assets RBAE 42,497 57,721 100,365 91,684 57,403
Total assets EERE 56,416 59,059 113,722 113,989 68,757
Non-current liabilities FnBaE (361) (578) (964) (1,357) (136)
Current Liabilities REAE (11,259) (10,633) (58,121) (66,208) (48,151)
Total Liabilities BEAH (11,620) (11,211) (59,085) (67,565) (48,287)
Total equity EneE 44,796 47,848 54,637 46,424 20,470
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